Public Document Pack

ENFIELD

Council

Contact:Jacqui Hurst

Cabinet Secretary

Direct : 020 8379 4096

or Ext:4096

Fax: 020 8379 3177 (DST Office only)
Textphone: 020 8379 4419 (in Civic Centre)
e-mail: jacqui.hurst@enfield.gov.uk

THE CABINET

Wednesday, 10th July, 2013 at 8.15 pm in the Conference Room,
Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, EN1 3XA

Membership:

Councillors : Doug Taylor (Leader of the Council), Achilleas Georgiou (Deputy
Leader), Chris Bond (Cabinet Member for Environment), Bambos Charalambous
(Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Youth and Localism), Del Goddard (Cabinet
Member for Business and Regeneration), Christine Hamilton (Cabinet Member for
Community Wellbeing and Public Health), Donald McGowan (Cabinet Member for
Adult Services, Care and Health), Ayfer Orhan (Cabinet Member for Children &
Young People), Ahmet Oykener (Cabinet Member for Housing) and Andrew Stafford
(Cabinet Member for Finance and Property)

NOTE: CONDUCT AT MEETINGS OF THE CABINET

Members of the public and representatives of the press are entitled to attend
meetings of the Cabinet and to remain and hear discussions on matters within Part 1
of the agenda which is the public part of the meeting. They are not however, entitled
to participate in any discussions.

AGENDA - PART 1
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Members of the Cabinet are invited to identify any disclosable pecuniary,
other pecuniary or non pecuniary interests relevant to items on the agenda.



DECISION ITEMS
URGENT ITEMS

The Chairman will consider the admission of any reports (listed on the
agenda but circulated late) which have not been circulated in accordance
with the requirements of the Council’s Constitution and the Local Authorities
(Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information and Meetings) (England)
Regulations 2012.

Note: The above requirements state that agendas and reports should be
circulated at least 5 clear working days in advance of meetings.

DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

To note that no requests for deputations (with or without petitions) have been
received for presentation to this Cabinet meeting.

ITEMS TO BE REFERRED TO THE COUNCIL

To confirm that there are no items to be referred to full Council.

ISSUES ARISING FROM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
PANEL/SCRUTINY PANELS (Pages 1 - 12)

6.1 Reference from the Crime and Safety and Strong Communities
Scrutiny Panel — Metal Theft

A report from the Crime and Safety and Strong Communities Scrutiny

Panel is attached. This identifies a number of recommendations
following the scrutiny review into metal theft in Enfield. (Non key)

(Report No.21)

(8.20 — 8.30 pm)

REVENUE OUTTURN 2012/13 AND 2014/15 BUDGET AND FINANCIAL
OUTLOOK

A report from the Director of Finance, Resources and Customer Services will

be circulated as soon as possible. This will set out the overall Council

General Fund and Housing Revenue Account outturn position for 2012/13

and will provide an update on the 2014/15 budget. (Key decision —
reference number 3731)

(Report No.22)

(8.30 — 8.35 pm)

To Follow



10.

11.

12.

CAPITAL OUTTURN 2012/13 (Pages 13 - 28)

A report from the Director of Finance, Resources and Customer Services is

attached. This informs Members of the capital investment undertaken in

2012/13, and the way in which it has been funded. (Key decision —
reference number 3732)

(Report No.23)

(8.35 - 8.40 pm)

QUARTERLY CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT (Pages 29 - 46)

A report from the Chief Executive is attached. This presents the third

quarterly report on the Corporate Performance Scorecard. (Key decision —
reference number 3715)

(Report No.24)

(8.40 — 8.45 pm)

ALLEGED CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY BLACKLISTING (Pages 47 - 50)

A report from the Director of Finance, Resources and Customer Services is

attached. This highlights the practice of “blacklisting” which has allegedly

been wused by construction companies to restrict the employment

opportunities for workers in the industry based on their affiliation to trade
unions. (Key decision — reference number 3742)

(Report No.25)

(8.45 — 8.50 pm)

BARNET, ENFIELD AND HARINGEY (BEH) CLINICAL STRATEGY

A report from the Director of Health, Housing and Adult Social Care will be

circulated as soon as possible. This will set the context for local health

services and appraises Cabinet of the outcomes of work undertaken across
the Council to date. (Non key)

(Report No.26)

(8.50 — 8.55 pm)

To Follow

ALMA PHASE 1 (ACADEMY STREET) DEVELOPMENT - COMPULSORY
PURCHASE ORDER (Pages 51 - 76)

A report from the Director of Health, Housing and Adult Social Care and
Director of Finance, Resources and Customer Services is attached. This
recommends the making of the Academy Street CPO to enable the
acquisition of the third party land required to deliver the Academy Street
development. (Report No.33, agenda part two also refers) (Key decision —
reference number 3694)
(Report No.27)
(8.55-9.00 pm)



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

TENDER FOR THE PROVISION OF HOUSING RELATED FLOATING
SUPPORT (Pages 77 - 84)

A report from the Director of Health, Housing and Adult Social Care is

attached. This sets out the process and result of the tender for three Housing

Related Floating Support contracts and makes recommendations for the

award of contracts. (Report No.30, agenda part two also refers). (Key
decision — reference number 3724)

(Report No.28)

(9.00 — 9.05 pm)

RE-PROVISION PROJECT - NEXT STEPS (Pages 85 - 88)

A report from the Director of Health, Housing and Adult Social Care is

attached. This proposes a way forward in terms of the next steps in the

development and delivery of the re-provision project. (Report No.31, agenda
part two also refers) (Key decision — reference number 3593)

(Report No.29)

(9.05-9.10 pm)

CABINET AGENDA PLANNING - FUTURE ITEMS (Pages 89 - 92)

Attached for information is a provisional list of items scheduled to future
Cabinet meetings.

NOTICE OF KEY DECISION LIST

Members are asked to consider any forthcoming key decisions for inclusion
on the Council’'s Notice of Key Decision List.

Note: the next Notice of Key Decision List is due to be published on 30 July
2013, this will be effective from 1 September 2013.

MINUTES (Pages 93 - 104)

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting of the Cabinet held on 19
June 2013.

MINUTES OF ENFIELD RESIDENTS PRIORITY FUND CABINET SUB-
COMMITTEE - 6 JUNE 2013 (Pages 105 - 112)

To receive, for information, the minutes of a meeting of the Enfield Residents’
Priority Fund Cabinet Sub-Committee held on 6 June 2013.

MINUTES OF POLICY CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 17 JUNE 2013
(Pages 113 - 116)

To receive, for information, the minutes of a meeting of the Policy Cabinet
Sub-Committee held on 17 June 2013.



20.

21.

22.

INFORMATION ITEMS
ENFIELD STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP FEEDBACK
There are no written updates to be received at this meeting.
DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To note that the next meeting of the Cabinet is scheduled to take place on
Wednesday 18 September 2013 at 8.15pm.

CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting for
the items of business listed on part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that they
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).

(Members are asked to refer to the part 2 agenda)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 6

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2013/2014 REPORT NO. 21

— . Item: 6.1
MEETING TITLE AND DATE: Agenda — Part: 1

Crime & Safety & Strong Subject: Metal theft
Communities Scrutiny
Panel 18" April 2013
CMB: 4th June 2013
Cabinet: 10 July 2013

Cabinet Member consulted: N/A

REPORT OF: Crime &

Safety & Strong
Communities Scrutiny
Panel

Contact officer and telephone number: Mike Ahuja 020 8379 5044

E mail: mike.ahuja@enfield.gov,uk

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report identifies a number of recommendations following the scrutiny
review into metal theft in Enfield.

1.2 The Council has suffered significant financial losses due to metal theft from
parks and of gullies.

1.3 This is a national issue due to the large increase in prices of metal driven by
global economies and increased demand. No metals are immune to being
stolen, but a combination of value, demand, quantity, uses and ease of theft
makes some metals more prone to being targeted than others.

1.4 A Local Government Association survey undertaken in February 2012
covering England and Wales found that 7 out of 10 councils had suffered
metal theft.

1.5 Both the police and scrap metal dealers have highlighted the difficulty in
identifying stolen metals.

1.6 A new Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 received Royal Assent on the 28th
February 2013. It is designed to bring reform to the industry and providing a
key element in the fight against metal theft. The Home Office is responsible
for the Act’'s implementation. The anticipated date for this is October 2013;
guidance and regulations will follow in due course.

Classification: Unclassified



Page 2

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is asked to consider the report and approve recommendations 2.1,
2.3,2.5, 2.6,2.7 and 2.8. Please note that recommendations 2.2 and 2.4 will be
forwarded to the Metropolitan Police:

Prevention

2.1 When a new application for registration is received from an address where
there is already a registration in place under a different surname; the system
should automatically flag this as a potential issue for investigation.

2.2 Local police should undertake training on metal theft in the same manner as
the British Transport Police. Currently this training is provided by Metal &
Waste Recycling Limited.

2.3 Council should consider replacing existing metal at the end of its lifetime or
when stolen with an alternative material, particularly in areas with low public or
council footprint.

Enforcement

2.4 Prompt response requested from the police when scrap metal dealers phone
to report a suspicious transaction.

2.5 The Council request that consideration is given by the Home Office for a new
crime classification for metal theft and for this to be made a national
requirement. This is to allow metal theft to be recorded as part of the standard
report rather than being a searchable crime. (subject to approval by English
Heritage in areas with a conservation status). In addition the three Enfield
MP’s be asked to formally support this request.

Other

2.6 Consideration is given to publishing an annual report on scrap metal dealers
and itinerants flagging up examples of good and bad practice.

2.7 During the winter period metal mechanical and grass cutting equipment not in
use by parks should be stored in a more secure location.

2.8 The Council consider collecting white goods for free. The Council should
consider using an incentive to encourage residents to use the Council to pick
up white goods. This service should provide a date and time for collection to
ensure that the goods are collected by the council.

2.9 Note the following recommendation has gone to the Cabinet Members for

Environment and Community Wellbeing and Public Health for an immediate
response:
Until the charges for the new Licensing scheme are in place the Panel would
recommend that the Council examine how it can be more robust in the current
registration process and where possible a charging mechanism should be
introduced for enhanced services within the registration scheme prior to
implementation of the Act. This could contain training for those wishing to
register to cover their responsibilities under current legislation and under the
new Act. This could also include an explanation of the Council’s
responsibilities and enforcement activiies and provide an ID badge
confirming registration details for display in vehicle or on site. The charge
should be made using a cashless system mirroring the amendment to the
Scrap Metal Dealers Act.

Classification: Unclassified




3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Page 3

BACKGROUND

Rationale for the review

At the Annual planning meeting of the Crime & Safety & Strong
Communities Scrutiny Panel a review of Metal Theft was agreed and a
working group was formed (comprising Clirs: Mike Rye, Lee
Chamberlain, Simon Maynard and, Co-optee Brian Waters).

The issue of metal theft is of great concern to both the community,
businesses, individuals and the Council and is a big issue both locally
and nationally.

A Local Government association survey undertaken in February 2012
covering England and Wales found that 7 out of 10 councils had
suffered metal theft. The most commonly taken items were
gully/manhole/drainage covers and roofing materials. The number of
metal theft offences in the UK has doubled over the last 5 years.

The Association of Chief Police Officers have estimated that the cost of
metal theft is more than £770 million every year as thieves target the
transport system, parks, schools , hospital and places of worship.

The prices of metal has risen considerably driven by global economies
and increased demand. No metals are immune to being stolen, but a
combination of value, demand, quantity, uses and ease of theft makes
some metals more prone to being targeted than others. Copper and
Lead are the most targeted.

Issues
The group learnt that it is very difficult for both the police and
scrap metal dealers to identify stolen metal.

Should a case go to court it is very hard for the genuine owner
of the metal to confirm beyond any doubt that the metal is theirs.

Enforcement

There is no specific offence of metal theft, which means incidents
involving metal theft cannot be separately identified within standard
police datasets. Consequently there are no precise estimates of all
types of metal theft nationwide (including at a local level).

A new crime classification for metal theft would have to be instigated
by the Home Office and made a national requirement. The MPS
currently have flags that relate to metal theft in the crime reporting
system which are searchable and in addition the analyst within
Operation Ferrous London regional intelligence unit has developed a
more extensive search.

The Council request that consideration is given by the Home Office
for a new crime classification for metal theft and for this to be made
a national requirement. This is to allow metal theft to be recorded as

Classification: Unclassified



3.1

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

Page 4

part of the standard report rather than being a searchable crime. In
addition the three Enfield MP’s be asked to formally support this
request. Recommendation 2.5

Prevention

The cost to the council is significant with over £300,000 spent on metal
replacement in 2010/11 on highways and over £24,000 on
replacement of items stolen from Parks. This figure does not include
the damage often caused by flooding when pipes are stolen from
places such as changing rooms.

Council should consider replacing existing metal at the end of its
lifetime or when stolen with an alternative material, particularly in areas
with low public or council footprint (subject to approval by English
Heritage in areas with a conservation status). Recommendation 2.3

The working group attempted to organise a meeting with all scrap
metal dealers and itinerants. They noted that 8 letters were returned
gone away involving 8 names but only 2 addresses. No itinerants
made themselves available.

When a new application is received from an address where there is
already a registration in place under a different surname; the system
should automatically flag this as a potential issue for investigation
Recommendation 2.1

Actions- meetings and visits

The working group have met on 4 occasions and received information
from the Community Safety Unit and met with officers from
Environmental Crime, Licensing, Highways, Parks and the
Metropolitan Police to collect evidence on the issue.

Visit to Scrap Metal Dealer

The working group visited Metal and Waste Recycling in Kenninghall
Road, meeting with its Director. This is the 3™ largest scrap metal
dealer in the UK and a major employer in Enfield employing more than
88 people on site and dealing with 500 subcontractors. Their Head
Office is in Edmonton and they have a further 15 sites across the UK.

There is a high turnover of metal from the site, with the site being
completely cleared and refilled on a monthly basis. They have a
turnover of £350 million. They are currently the sole contractor for the
MOD and for the old BT cable.

The group heard at the visit of how metal theft effects scrap metal
dealers and the challenges this crime causes. Scrap metal dealers
themselves are highly susceptible to theft from their sites and this site
pay £55k per month in security fees. Staff safety was also a cause of
concern for them. He cited examples of staff being attacked and
threatened.

Classification: Unclassified



3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

Page 5

The metal is often received in broken down form with no identifying
marks and it is not possible to tell whether or not it is stolen

The group heard that even if all metal was marked with smart water it
would be unlikely to be detected by dealers. The metal often arrives in
a skip and it is not viable to hand scan every single metal item. Current
marking does not confirm whether or not an item is stolen or who owns
it just that it is marked. There are many legal reasons why marked
metals maybe offered as scrap.

The Director of Metal and Waste Recycling raised an issue of when
thieves try to sell them metal which appeared to be stolen and the lack
of response from the Police. An example was given of copper cable
when the police were called. The thieves managed to take the cable to
an industrial estate and cut it up into segments without any police
intervention.

Prompt response requested from the police when scrap metal
dealers phone to report suspicious transaction Recommendation 2.4

A further issue can be that even if a case goes to court it is very hard
for the genuine owner to confirm beyond any doubt that the metal is
theirs.

The Director of Metal and Waste Recycling advised that he runs
afternoon training sessions on a monthly basis for British Transport
Police.

4. Findings

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

This section of the report provides a summary of the findings by the
working group.

As there is no specific offence of metal theft, little information is
recorded on either suspects or offending patterns.

At the time of this report there are currently 11 registered scrap metal
dealers, 60 itinerants and 590 registered waste carriers registered in
Enfield.

The difference between a Metal Dealer and an Itinerant Metal Dealer is
that the Metal Dealer operates from specific premises where metal is
taken to and from and stored. The ltinerant Metal Dealer disposes of
the articles and does not have a store of their own nor do they use
another's store. Where a person carries on business as a Metal Dealer
and also as an ltinerant Metal Dealer they shall require a licence for
each activity.

Over the last 10 years the type of Registration has changed
dramatically. Since April 2011 only itinerants have registered, a large

Classification: Unclassified



Page 6

number have registered between April and December 2011 often with
multiple names registered at the same address.

4.6 Under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 1964 all scrap metal dealers and
itinerants must register with the Council. Registration does not require
any decision to be made or any permission to be given. The applicant
must complete and sign an application providing at least one proof of
address. The Metropolitan Police Service also visit to confirm that they
are actually residing at the address. If the address is confirmed the
Council must register the applicant. There is currently no charge for
this service.

4.7 The responsibilities under the 1964 Act are as follows. The Police
investigate theft and identify stolen metal. Councils are responsible for
maintaining a register of dealers in their locality; ensuring that dealers
comply with their responsibilities under the Act; providing leadership in
tackling the issue. The Environment Agency is responsible for issuing
environmental permits and monitoring sites for pollution. Dealers in
scrap metal are responsible for notifying authorities of their operation
and keeping adequate records of transactions to fulfil the act.

4.8 From the Register it is apparent that multiple names are often
registered at the same address. The working group were advised that
this is an issue and if offences are committed in these situations they
usually include in addition to metal theft, benefit fraud and electricity
abstraction. Individuals often move around the country committing
offences at each location.

4.9 It is believed that in the main the metal is exported before being
recycled. Where metal is sold in the UK people will travel great
distances to get the best prices.

4.10 The Police advised that they have a lack of expertise in this area and
often refer to their colleagues in the British Transport Police for
guidance.

Local police should undertake training on metal theft in the same
way as the British Transport Police. Currently this ftraining is
provided by Metal & Waste Recycling Limited. Recommendation 2.2

4.11 The Council were collecting white goods for free. Although there is a 5
day turnaround for this service. However from April 2013, a charge will
be made for this service. The cost will be £20 for each collection with a
maximum of 3 items per collection.

4.12 When a resident contacts the Customer Service Section to arrange this
service, it is suggested to them that they use 123Recycle for free who
operate who operate in many London Boroughs including Enfield. The
call can either be redirected or the resident given the freephone
number.

Classification: Unclassified



413

414

4.15

4.16

6.1

Page 7

Should the resident request that the Council collect the item then this
will be arranged.

The Council should continue to collect white goods for free and
consider using an incentive to encourage residents to use the
Council to pick up white goods. This service should provide a date
and time for collection to ensure that the goods are collected by the
council. Recommendation 2.8

Parks are extremely vulnerable to theft. Machinery has been taken
from lock ups in parks. Locked facilities have been broken into
overnight with further damage caused from flooding as water left on
when pipes stolen. The working group was advised that Parks
equipment is stored on site all year round.

During the winter period metal mechanical and grass cutting
equipment not in use by parks should be stored in a more secure
location. Recommendation 2.7

Some examples of enforcement operations undertaken include
inspections of both scrap metal dealers and itinerants, and Stop and
Search patrols for waste carriers of metal.

The working group would like to see good practice encouraged
amongst scrap metal dealers and itinerants and poor practices
highlighted.

Consideration is given to publishing an annual report on scrap metal
dealers and itinerants flagging up examples of good and bad
practice. Recommendation 2.6

Consultations on finding and recommendations
This has occurred with the following:
¢ Metropolitan Police ( Acting Borough Commander)
Acting Head of Community Safety
Head of Regulatory Services
Highways
Parks and Open Spaces
Director of Environment
Councillor Bond
Councillor Hamilton

Legislation

The current legislation in this area is the 1964 Scrap Metal Dealers

Act. This requires councils to maintain a register of persons trading in

their area as scrap metal dealers. Failure to register attracts a fine of

£1,000 and registration must occur every 3 years. Dealers must:

¢ Inform the local council of their operation

¢ Maintain a book with details of metal received, processed or
despatched

¢ Record the description and weight of the metal

Classification: Unclassified



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

8.

Page 8

¢ Record the name and address of the person providing the
metal
¢ Record the registration of the delivery vehicle

In December 2012 a cashless system was introduced. It became an
offence for anyone to buy scrap metal for cash or by any form of
payment other than a crossed cheque or electronic money transfer
under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act, amended by the Legal Aid,
Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders Act. The interim
recommendation is around a charge for registration to mirror this
cashless system that requires the dealer/itinerant to provide bank
details.

A new The Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 has been prioritised and
received Royal Assent on the 28th February 2013. It is designed to
bring reform to the industry and providing a key element in the fight
against metal theft.

The Act builds on measures already taken by the government,
including enhanced enforcement activity through the National Metal
Theft Taskforce, design solutions to improve traceability of stolen metal
and earlier legislative measures in the Legal Aid, Sentencing and
Punishment of Offenders Act 2012 to ban the purchase of scrap metal
with cash.

The Act replaces the outdated Scrap Metal Dealers Act 1964 with a
more robust, fee-raising license scheme administered by local
authorities. Features include the power for local authorities to refuse
and revoke a licence; giving courts the power to close unlicensed
dealers; requiring dealers to verify sellers’ identity and creating a single
publically available national register of licence holders maintained by
the Environment Agency. The Act maintains the offence of purchasing
scrap metal with cash that came into force in December but removes
the exemptions for itinerant collectors and brings motor salvage
operators within the definition of a scrap metal dealer for the first time.

The Home Office is responsible for the Act's implementation. This is
anticipated in October 2013; guidance will follow the implementation.

The working group welcome the change in Legislation and look
forward to its full implementation.

The working group would like to express thanks to all officers from the
Council and the Metropolitan Police who gave their time and expertise
to the review and to John Rice from Metal & Waste Recycling Ltd

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED
None.

Classification: Unclassified



Page 9

9. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
To support the ‘Strong Communities’ commitment from the Council's
manifesto.

Provide strong community leadership and work in partnership with others
to ensure Enfield is a safe and healthy place to live.

10. COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND
CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS

10.1 Financial Implications
Any costs arising from implementing the recommendations in this report,
will need to be met within existing resources.

10.2 Legal Implications

10.2.1 This report sets out a recommendation that the council be more robust in
the current registration process and consider introducing a charging
mechanism for an enhanced registration scheme prior to implementation
of the new Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 (the new Act) which was given
Royal Assent on 28" February 2013.

10.2.2 The new Act repeals the Scrap Metal Act 1964 and introduces a rigorous
new local-authority administered licensing system comparable to the
alcohol and gambling licensing regimes and administered by councils. The
commencement date of the new Act is not known but it is expected to
come into force towards the end of the year.

10.2.3 A number of different charging provisions have been considered to enable
the Council to adopt a charge for registration prior to the new Act coming
into force. Under S1 of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 1964 the Council is
obliged to maintain a register of persons carrying on business in the
borough as scrap metal dealers. The consequence of failing to register is
that a dealer would be guilty of a criminal offence therefore it is implied
that we cannot charge for this.

10.2.4 The council is precluded from using the general power of competence in
the Localism Act 2011 to charge for registration. There are limits placed
on use of the general power of competence and it cannot be used to
charge for services which the council is obliged to provide by stature.

10.2.5 S93 of the Local Government Act 2003 covers charging for discretionary
services if the recipient of the service has agreed to its provision. Although
a service that a local authority has a duty to provide is not a discretionary
service (and will not benefit from a s93 charging power), an enhancement
to a mandatory service, resulting in a higher standard of service, may be
considered discretionary. In this situation the Council can rely on s93 to
charge for the enhanced element of the service. Any income should not
exceed the costs of provision.

Classification: Unclassified



Page 10

10.2.6 Para 11 of the ODPM guidance states that ‘Services that an authority is
mandated or has a duty to provide are not discretionary services and will
not benefit from the new power at s93 of the 2003 Act. However additions
or enhancements to such mandatory services above the level or standard
than an authority has a duty to provide may be discretionary services’.

10.2.7 The enhancement of the registration system for scrap metal dealers
appears to satisfy the well-being criteria. It therefore seems, in principle at
least, that the council can use s93 to charge for an enhanced element of
registration. Careful consideration will need to be given to the detail of any
such scheme to ensure that the council has a sufficiently robust case for
using s93 and minimise any risk in doing so. The council could seek to
ensure that the enhanced elements of registration mirror the provisions set
out in the new Act to substantiate its case.

10.3 Property Implications

10.3.1 Property Services acts as the Council’'s landlord and as such carries
responsibility for the property portfolio together with the landlord’s
maintenance responsibilities especially within leased properties. The
Royal Assent given to Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 is welcomed as a
means to deter theft of metal from Council properties together with the
associated cost of the damage caused and resultant repairs.

10.3.2 Since 1st September 2012 it has been a criminal offence to squat in
residential properties which has lead to a greater threat of squatting to
commercial and operational properties. There is now concern that
commercial and operational property that become vacant will be at a
greater risk of squatting and metal theft.

10.3.3 With the introduction of cashless transactions this should make metal theft
less attractive and lucrative and the recent legislation will hopefully act as
a deterrent.

10.3.4 As a result of the current high value of metal any repairs carried out as
landlord responsibility should be undertaken in materials other than metal,
where possible, to deter theft and damage.

10.3.5 Where properties are deemed to be vulnerable, especially those that are
vacant, it will be necessary to consider plans for additional robust security
measures, which may incur additional cost, in order to protect the
Council’s property interests and also to maintain as far as possible the
value of the investment portfolio.

11. KEY RISKS
The issue of metal theft has become a significant risk in recent years and
includes not only financial loss (e.g. damage to property) but also
operational issues such as the disruption caused.

This report sets out some of the initiatives to help mitigate these risks,
however further additional measures may need to be considered."

Classification: Unclassified



Page 11

12.  IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES

a. Fairness for All
None.

b. Growth and Sustainability

Reducing the opportunities for metal theft and the activities of itinerant
metal dealers will prevent damage and/or loss of Council and residents'
property.

c. Strong Communities
Implementing the recommendation will reduce opportunities for criminal
activity and contribute to making Enfield a safe and healthy place to live.

13. EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS
It is not relevant or proportionate to undertake an equality impact
assessment/analysis of recommendations to reduce metal theft.

14. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS
Establishing a system to monitor the progress and outcomes of the
recommendations will enable the success of the recommendations to be
measured.

15. PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS
None

Background Papers
None

Classification: Unclassified



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13 Agenda Item 8

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2013/14 REPORT NO. 23

MEETING TITLE AND DATE:
Cabinet 10th July 2013

AGENDA - PART 1 ITEM 8

REPORT OF: SUBJECT — Capital Outturn 2012/13
Director of Finance, Resources &

Customer Services

Cabinet Member consulted:
Contact: Councillor Andrew Stafford

Richard Tyler (Tel:0208 379 4732)
Ann Freeman (Tel:0208 379 3002)

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the capital investment
undertaken in 2012/13, and the way in which it has been funded. The report
also includes the outturn position for the Prudential Indicators.

1.2  The report shows that in 2012/13 the Council’s capital expenditure amounted
to £127.0m compared with the latest programme of £148.7m. The resulting
favourable variance of £21.7m is comprised of £11.9m Housing projects and
£9.8 of General Fund projects. This is mainly due to re-profiling of schemes
where the resources will be carried forward to 2013/14.

1.3 Details of the service achievements and an analysis of the variations are
contained in the report and Appendix 1.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the achievements and improved outcomes resulting from the Council’s
investments in capital projects are noted.

2.2 That the funding of the Council’s capital expenditure as set out in this report
be agreed (paragraph 5.2).

2.3  That the outturn for the Council’s prudential indicators be noted (section 6).




3.1

41

4.2

Page 14

BACKGROUND

The Council’s capital programme for 2012/13 to 2014/15 was agreed by
Council on February 2012. The capital programme has been monitored on a
quarterly basis and quarterly reports have been considered by Cabinet in
September 2012, November 2012 and March 2013. This outturn report
represents the 4th quarterly monitoring report for 2012/13 and a summary for
the year.

PRINCIPAL ACHIEVEMENTS AND OUTCOMES

Overall the Council spent some £127.074m on capital projects in 2012/13
compared with the latest programme of £148.733m. The principal
achievements resulting from capital investment in 2012/13 are summarised
below.

SCHOOLS AND CHILDREN’S SERVICES

In 2012/13 the main priority was again to ensure that sufficient
accommodation was planned and/or secured to meet the continuing and
further increasing demand for primary school places. A total of 1,045 new
primary places were opened (595 permanent and 450 one off).

The principal achievements were as follows:

. Following extensive statutory consultation with schools and residents in
Autumn Term 2012, the schemes were progressed under the Primary
Expansion Programme (PEP) to deliver accommodation for a complete
additional seven forms of entry at Garfield, George Spicer, Grange
Park, Highfield, Prince of Wales and Worcesters Primary Schools
together with the provision 420 primary places at Edmonton County
School (Bury Campus). As part of the PEP, a scheme was also been
formulated for a new modular building at Chesterfield Primary School to
mitigate the affect of bulge classes already admitted. Because of a
combination of issues relating to the expansion and remodelling of
Garfield School on its present site, Cabinet agreed an alternative
strategy to rebuild the School completely but the School will take the
extra pupils in September 2013 for its expansion. The majority of the
scheme at Grange Park School has not progressed beyond the
designs for the planning application but the single reception classroom
will be delivered for September 2013 to enable the school to take its
extra pupils for the expansion.

o The completion of the major expansion schemes at Cuckoo Hall,
Eversley, Firs Farm, Honilands, Merryhills, St Michael’s and Suffolks
Primary Schools, the major modernisation project at Churchfield
Primary School and the new classroom block at Capel Manor Primary
School.

o The provision of further additional primary classes through modular
buildings at Houndsfield and Worcesters Primary Schools completed
for occupation in Autumn Term 2013.



4.3

Page 15

Additional primary classes opened in September 2013 following
building projects at Bowes, Bowes at Edmonton, Chesterfield, De
Bohun, George Spicer (Kimberley Gardens), Grange Park, Hazelwood,
Lavender, Oakthorpe, Prince of Wales and Raynham Primary Schools
and at Oasis Academy Hadley. Building improvements were also
completed to facilitate the arrangements for bulge classes already
admitted to Freezywater St George’s and St George’s Catholic Primary
Schools.

Proposals were progressed on the lease for the continued use of St
John’s Church premises to accommodate St Matthew’s Primary
(Edmonton Annex) and tenders invited for additional temporary
classrooms for Autumn Term 2013.

The completion of the new extension at Russet House School to
provide additional and improved accommodation for children with
autism spectrum.

The completion of the extension and refurbishment of Cheviots
Children’s Centre.

The completion of the refurbishment of 24 Cyprus Road as a learning
resource for West Lea School to accommodate young people with
learning difficulties and disabilities and the commencement of a second
phase of building improvements.

The completion of the refurbishment and extension of Craig Park
Centre for the My Place scheme.

.Academies and Free Schools

The new Oasis Academy Hadley opened on the South Street Ponders End
Campus in January 2013. Agreement was reached with The Ark John Keats
Academy to use their former premises in Bell Lane as an all age school.

REGENERATION, LEISURE AND CULTURE

Regeneration

The Regeneration Capital Programme established under Place Shaping in
2007/08 came with the expectation that capital spend would increase in
line with delivery of master planning in our priority areas. This work has
progressed over the past year, and continues to move forward, with
progress in the delivery of Ponders End, New Southgate, Meridian Water
and Edmonton Green regeneration areas. A Master Plan is in preparation
for Edmonton Green, which+ will set out future development opportunities
within a spatial planning framework.

In Ponders End, work is progressing to deliver the High Street
Regeneration Scheme (now known as the Electric Quarter). £4.685m has
been allocated from the capital programme for land assembly and
professional fees to bring forward this scheme.

Progress on South Street during 2012/13 has seen completion of the new
piazza square fronting the Oasis Hadley Academy. Continuing progress
with public realm works will continue in 2013/14 and will be delivered with

3



Page 16

consideration of the Alma Housing Development. The project includes
public realm improvements to improve safety and access along South
Street and improve the Ponders End Station concourse, with a focus on
working with partners to improve the Station Facility.

Ponders End Waterfront continues to make progress with agreement from
the community on the way forward so that this area becomes a destination
as part of the wider Lee Valley Regional Park. Progress during the
2013-14 year will be on the delivery of South Meadow to increase
biodiversity whilst providing learning opportunities and access to a
pleasant open space.

Following the successful first phase of ‘Take the High Road” with the
delivery of safety improvements to the Redbrick Estate, Phase 2 is well
underway following further consultation with residents and the
Neighborhood Panel. The first stage of was completed and included a
wide range of improvements to the High Road Open Space. The new
features incorporated in the ‘park’ comprise an under-8’s play area, large
bird’s nest swing for all ages, an outdoor gym, basketball goal and football
area. Completely renewed pathways are now lit and all grassed areas
have been renewed or seeded for new meadow areas. The total cost of
these works is £180k.

The next major phase of the Rays Road project has progressed
substantially. A contract was awarded for the complete removal of
contaminated materials from the site and was well advanced by the end of
the financial year, at a cost of £735k. Upon completion of decontamination
works, detailed designs for new open space will be finalised and presented
to residents during an open day event on the site. The next phase of
works will commence in September, starting with the new footpath link
from Montagu Road to Angel Road Station. Other elements of the work
planned for next year include an outdoor gym, community garden, and
free-run course. The improved open space which will benefit local
residents and contribute to the development of Meridian Water.

The Green Towers refurbishment completed in August 2012 with new
roofing, cladding, flooring and electrics completed. This new community
facility with launched in October 2012 and bookings have steadily
increased over the remainder of the year. Additional safety works were
completed by March 2013. The remaining amount is retention - Defects
Liability ends in August 2013.

The former Edmonton Town Hall clock was installed on the Green in
November 2012, with a launch event in March 2013. The funding for this
project was partly supported by Outer London Fund 1, with the remainder
funded from the capital programme.

Leisure & Culture

The QEIlI stadium restoration works are complete. The stadium was
occupied by Enfield Town FC in November 2011 and the club gained
promotion in May 2012 having only lost once at its new home. The
athletics track is used by various athletics groups and by schools and is
currently available for free of charge open public sessions three times
each week. Lord Coe opened the athletics track when refurbishment
works were completed and an official opening event for the entire facility
took place in September 2012 following the completion of all the building
works.

4



Page 17

The repair and restoration of Forty Hall with joint funding from the
Heritage Lottery Fund is complete and the house is now open to the
public. Final accounts are now being established. The retention payment
has been delayed in being paid as the builder and the Council’s Quantity
Surveys have disagreed on a number of issues. The CCTV installation
has been delayed due to planning discussions. The development of
Thomas Hardy House First Floor as a business centre, museum and
conrference centre was opened on time and within budget and is now
operational. Retention and final acounts will be concluded this during 2013
-14.

The Leisure Centre Capital Development Programme is nearing
completion with Albany, Southbury and Southgate all completed. The final
project is Edmonton Leisure Centre which will be completed in 13-14. The
impact of these changes has meant a significant increase in those taking
part in sport and physical activity at the Councils Leisure Centres.

Heritage & Design

The Southgate Circus project was completed in summer 2012. The public
realm improvements involved de-cluttering of the street scene, new
paving, soft landscaping and new lighting to enhance the public realm
around the iconic Grade Il listed Underground Station and Southgate town
centre.

Phases 1 and 2 of the regeneration scheme for the Crescent, Edmonton
were completed during the year. The project involves the repair and
enhancement of the front elevation of this prominent Georgian terrace to
the north of Edmonton Green, together with new iron railings along the
front and improvements to the south of the properties. The project is being
delivered in partnership with Newlon Housing Trust. Phases 1 and 2 saw
the reconstruction of Bounces Lane to the rear and completion of relevant
consents, building contracts and grant agreements with Newlon and other
private property owners. Works to the front of the properties are
scheduled to commence in summer 2013.

A Stage 1 funding application was submitted to the Heritage Lottery Fund
in October 2012 for a grant of £4.1m towards the restoration of Broomfield
House as a heritage and learning centre for the community. The bid was
prepared jointly by the Council, the Broomfield House Trust and Friends of
Broomield Park and was given strong support by HLF London which
recommended approval to the HLF National Board. The National Board
decided not to support the bid and the application was refused. Following
a feedback meeting with the HLF, a professional fundraiser is now being
appointed to advise the Council and Friends on potential funding sources.



4.4

Page 18

ENVIRONMENT AND STREET SCENE

Highway Services

Resurfaced/reconstructed 18.1km of carriageways which included the use
of recycled road materials on 5km, saving approximately 450 tonnes of
CO2

Resurfaced/recycled 3.12km of Principal roads and renewed in excess of
9km of footways

Implemented street scene improvement schemes such as Fore Street and
maintenance schemes to structures, watercourses and drainage e.g.
Albury Mews, Salmons Brook bank stabilisation, and Mollison Avenue and
Meridian Way highway drainage.

Implemented a major footway improvement and traffic safety scheme in
South Street to serve a new academy.

Planted a total of 574 new highway trees utilising funding from capital, the
RELEAF Grant and Enfield Residents Priority Fund.

Turkey Street Station Gateway and Holmesdale Gateway schemes
substantially completed on site.

A programme of trimming and dimming on street lighting throughout the
borough to enable the PFI service provider to provide flexibility on the
brightness level and operating times of streetlights in order to achieve long
term savings in energy usage and costs being implemented.

Traffic & Transportation

Delivered a range of traffic improvement and safety schemes in
accordance with Enfield’s Local Implementation Plan, including Principal
road renewal, five 20mph zones serving several schools, 11km Greenway
routes, the introduction of four CPZs, and the accessibility of sixty bus
routes.

Successfully bid and won funding for a major scheme in Ponders End area
to be delivered over the next three years.

Parks

Installation of five new Parks playgrounds across the borough, one BMX
track and a new play space at Hadley Wood Open Space

Introduction and construction of the mausoleum & burial chamber
interment facility in Edmonton Cemetery

Statutory reservoir improvements in Parks

Refurbishment of infrastructures in various Parks (e.g. Enfield Playing
Fields, Craig Park and Pymmes Park)

Improvements to allotments infrastructure.

Waste Services

Full implementation of the borough wide wheeled bin project in 2012/13,
resulting in further diversion savings, improved recycling performance and
resident satisfaction.

A successful funding bid from the DCLG’s Weekly Collection Support
Scheme, enabling capital investments on new vehicles and waste
containers to enhance recycling in estates in the next two years



4.5

4.6

Page 19

e The new purpose built Environment depot is near completion and the
relocation is planned for July 2013.

Environmental Protection

e Installation of eighty new alleygates, providing a cleaner and safer
environment for residents

Community Safety

e CCTV cameras were installed at various locations enabling increased
coverage of Enfield and providing assistance to the Metropolitan Police
incident management and evidence production. These provide positive
impacts on improving safety, deterring criminals and reducing anti-social
behaviours.

Building Improvement Programme

e A number of improvements have been made to the Council’'s property
portfolio during 12/13 to ensure that corporate buildings and their
surroundings are fit for purpose. These include the installation of new
boilers at various premises and other refurbishment works which secure
the long term condition of the buildings and will potentially result in the
reduction in carbon emissions

e Major refurbishment work for the 10" floor of Civic Centre is underway to
bring it back in to use. This is a pilot for other potential improvement
works to the building as part of the Civic options programme.

CORPORATE

Corporate IT Work Plan

Investment is being made at present to ensure that the ICT infrastructure
underpins the transformational and business improvement sought by the
Council.

Self service kiosks have been installed at the Civic Centre, John Wilkes
House, Edmonton library, and Enfield Highway library. This has increased the
options for customers to pay their bills, with longer access hours, and greater
convenience.

Corporate Property

In compliance with the Equality Act 2010 (former Disability Discrimination Act
1995), a new lift and a disabled toilet facility were installed at the Civic
Centre and Wheatsheaf Hall respectively.

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE

Replace New options Day centre for Learning difficulty clients

The New options project is progressing well, following Cabinet approval to
proceed on the College Farm site. Planning permission was obtained in March
2013 for the demolition of the existing three residential properties on the site

7



4.7

Page 20

and for a single storey new build facility. Detailed design work has been
undertaken, demolition is scheduled for August 2013, with construction of the
new build due to commence in October 2013, subject to appointment of a
contractor. The scheduled completion date is the Summer of 2014.

Reprovision of Adult social Care facilities on the Elizabeth House site

The rapidly changing financial, market and social care environment over the
recent period has had a profound impact on procurement of the Reprovision
Project and similar services. The Council has sought to procure the service
twice without success. The needs assessment identified continued clear need
for the development, along with a requirement to replace existing Local
Authority Homes. A report is going to Cabinet on the 10th July to outline the
range of options and recommend the Council to commission the construction
separate to the contract for care.

HOUSING: NON-HRA

Community Housing Programme

Private Sector Housing made a total of 356 Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG)
payments in 2012/13 of which 163 were for completed works, totalling £1,
364m. These Grants are to adapt privately owned property so that Enfield
service users are able to remain safely and independently in their own homes.

Private Sector Housing completed 31 Discretionary Grants (for Small Works
Assistance, Decent Homes Grants and Safe Homes Grants) to private
residents. This has helped those that are elderly, vulnerable or on benefits to
carry out necessary repairs to their properties which otherwise would leave
them living in property that would not meet the Decent Homes Standard.

Under funding from the North London Sub Region, Private Sector Housing
have been able to offer additional Decent Homes Grants to Enfield residents
where there is a vulnerable person living in a privately owned property and
have a Category 1 Hazards (this is serious defects under the Health and
Housing Rating System). This project is for £750,000 over a two year period
of which we have completed 169 grants with approximately a further 24 in the
system (awaiting either to be assessed/approved/completed). This funding is
to target 196 units and we are still taking in referrals.

Affordable Housing Programme — 2012/13

Development Team completed the acquisition and refurbishment of 23
Princes Avenue N13 now a council owned property which has been offered to
a Ladderswood decant. Additionally along with our RSL partners London &
Quadrant HT successfully delivered 5 x 3 Bedroom properties converting
temporary accommodation to permanent accommodation for families living in
expensive temporary accommodation.

The programme additionally acquired 2x1bed flats also167/167a South Street
to support the Alma decant programme. We will be improving these properties
in 2013/2014 ready for occupation.



4.8

5.1

Page 21

HOUSING- HRA

Works to Stock:

In 2012/13 the budget for HRA Works to Stock was £42.347m, of which
£33.142m was spent on works to improve Enfield’s Housing Stock, while the
balance of £9.205m was fully committed and will be spent in 2013/14. The
Decent Homes grant allocation of £18m was fully utilised. The expenditure in
2012/13 included:

e £19.809m (including £18.000m of GLA Decent Homes Grant) was spent
on making 1,809 properties decent, delivering 768 kitchens, 828
bathrooms, 714 central heating systems, 894 windows, 1,102 doors, 544
rewires, 717 roof works and 411 instances of structural works.

e £13.333m was spent on Landlord Obligation Works, including £3.210m
on the Lifts Replacement Programme, £1.973m on Aids & Adaptations,
£0.693m on Fire Precautions, £1.260m on Water Safety works, £1.743m
on the Estate Improvements, £0.351m on Security (for the fitting door
entry systems and related works), and £0.202m on Environmental
Improvements.

e Enfield Homes received its ALMO two-star status from the HCA in
2009/10, and was awarded an initial £64m for the first three years of its
Decent Homes Programme. A further allocation of grant funding
amounting to £44.610m has been awarded for the period 2012 to 2015.

e Actual funding received so far is as follows:

2009/10 - £14.5m HCA Approval
2010/11 - £34.0m HCA Approval
2011/12 - £14.0m HCA Approval
2012/13 - £18.0m GLA Decent Homes Grant Allocation
Total to 31 March 2013 - £80.5m
e The funding for 2013/14 has been confirmed at £12.0m, while 2014/15
has been confirmed as £14.610m, subject to performance.

e Responsibility for the Decent Homes is now with the Greater London
Authority (GLA), with Decent Homes funding having become a grant
since 2012/13, paid quarterly in arrears, against an agreed profile of
quarterly targets for expenditure and homes made decent.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The table below shows the capital expenditure incurred in 2012/13 compared
to the approved programme reported to the end of December 2012. The re-
profiling of original capital budgets throughout the year will impact on the
2013/14 total budget.



5.2

6.1

6.2

Latest -
2012/13 Adjusted

Quarter Quarter | 2012/13
K] 3 Outturn

£'000 £'000

General Fund

§Ch°.°'s & Children’s 56,639 | (1,823)| 54816| 48558 | 6258 0
ervices

Environment 21,247 1,578 22,825 22,386 552 (114)

Regeneration, Leisure & 8.686 (6) 8.680 7.861 848 (29)

Culture

Housing, Health & Adult 3530 | (140) 3300 | 2985| 488| (83)

Social Care

Corporate 1,695 812 2,507 1,358 1,127 22

Contingency 2,135 0 2,135 0 2,135

Sub-total 93,932 421 94,353 83,148 9,273 1,932

Schools Devolved / Leases 5,971 0 5,971 7,394 0| (1,423)

Total General Fund 99,903 421 100,324 90,542 9,273 509

Housing Revenue Account 48,409 0 48,409 36,532 | 11,877 0

Total Capital Expenditure | 148,312 421 148,733 | 127,074 | 21,150 509

The principal outturn variances by programme are shown in more detail in
Appendix 1. The Quarter 1 monitor in the new financial year will include
details of re-profiling from 2012/13. The latest 2013/14 programme, including
reprofiling, will be reviewed as part of the budget process to ensure all
schemes are affordable with the Medium Term Financial Plan and meet
corporate priorities.

The capital spend was financed as set out in the following table:

Source of Funding £000
Prudential Borrowing 19,106
Capital Grants and Contributions 79,919
Capital Receipts 11,401
Direct Revenue Contributions 3,410
Major Repairs Allowance 13,158
Schools Long Term Lease Liabilities 80
Total funding required to finance capital expenditure 127,074

Prudential borrowing is funded from within the overall Council budget under
the prudential code framework.

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

In setting the budget for 2012/13, the Council also set certain prudential
indicators to monitor the affordability and prudence of its capital programme.
The outturn position for these indicators is reported below.

The table below shows the capital expenditure for the year split between the
Housing Revenue Account and General Fund services. The indicator is shown
compared with the most recent previously reported position on Quarter 3
report. The reasons for the variations between the original programme and the
December monitor have been reported to Cabinet through the year as part of

10




6.3

6.4

8.1

Page 23

the regular monitoring process. The reasons for the variations to the outturn
have been discussed in detail above.

Capital Expenditure Prudential Outturn
Indicator 2012/13

£000 £000

General Fund (including Devolved Schools) 99,903 90,542
Housing Revenue Account 48,409 36,532
Total 148,312 127,074

The Capital Financing Requirement reflects the Council’s underlying need to
borrow to fund its capital programme. It has been necessary to make a
number of technical adjustments to the Capital Financing Requirement
indicator as a result of PFl assets and associated liabilites now being
recognised on the Council’s balance sheet. The movement between the
outturn and the last reported position is generally as a result of the net re-
profiling of capital schemes into future years and the use of additional revenue
resources to fund the capital programme.

Prudential Outturn
Capital Financing Requirement Indicator
£°000 £°000
General Fund 294,724 259,286
Housing Revenue Account 157,728 157,728
Total 452,452 417,014

The external debt shows the authority’s borrowing position compared with the
authorised maximum limit and operational limit approved by Council. The
authority is well within these limits which provide the scope to take advantage
of low cost borrowing opportunities if they arise and are advantageous to the
Council.

External Debt Authorised Operational Outturn
2012/13 Borrowing Borrowing £m

Limit Limit
£m £m
Prudential Indicator 500 450 294

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

To inform members of the final position on capital expenditure and financing
for the year.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE RESOURCES &
CUSTOMER SERVICES

Financial implications: These are contained in the body of the report.

11



8.2

8.3

9.1

9.3

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Page 24

Legal Implications: Under the Local Government Act 2003 the Council has a
duty to report on its capital expenditure and financing arrangements. This
report assists in the discharge of that duty.

Risk management Implications: The Capital programme is monitored on a
quarterly basis to cabinet and any variations are reported when identified.
There are risks involved in the delivery of projects on time particularly where
large amounts of re-profiling have been identified in the report. These projects
will be closely monitored in the new financial year to ensure there is no loss in
service delivery.

EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

The Council is committed to Fairness for all to apply throughout all work and
decisions made. The Council serves the whole borough fairly, tackling
inequality through the provision of excellent services for all, targeted to meet
the needs of each area. The Council will listen to and understand the needs of
all its communities.

Financial monitoring and reporting is important in ensuring resources are used
to deliver equitable services to all members of the community.

IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES

Fairness for All

The Capital programme is designed to address the values set out within the
Council’'s priorities. All projects are considered in the context of these
priorities.

Growth and Sustainability

The Capital programme is designed to address the values set out within the
Council’'s priorities. All projects are considered in the context of these
priorities.

Strong Communities

The Capital programme is designed to address the values set out within the
Council’'s priorities. All projects are considered in the context of these
priorities.

12



Page 25

"¥1L/€L0Z 4O LD Ul pajo|dwod 84 [[IM INg SUOROL}SSI siomau Aemybiy

0} 8Np pallajep sawayos - swwelbold sjuswaroidw| AemybiH Joulpy 8y 0} Ajuiew sejejas wns Bujuiewsas ay] «
pus-ieaA je pajajdwod Ajns Jou abpuqiooy |IH 66e1S e ylom alis - Aepn 40 SIUBIY YE0L3F »

€102 Ae|\ Joy 8)s uo ueys 0} pawwelboud

u98( 9ABY SYIOM PUB BAISSAI Ul Play sjusuodwod pajesliqe - Buious) Ajajes Jo |[emaual au) J0) My'GZF »
sjusuodwo9 1oy

awil} ul pes| 0} anp {1/ 10z O} paAe|ap - HOAIND }9a1S 8104 pue Jadeled 19a1)g Aing Jo Juawaoe|dal 8Y} JOF NG /13 «
uonIpuod

saouelieA Juediubls 10} suoseay

I XIAN3ddV

000.3
puadg

(49nQ) / 18pun  Buljyoud -ay

000.3
uinpno

€LeLoe

€LzLoe
jobpng jsaje]

Jayjeam Jood 0} anp pakelap - Aemjooy eled jo Juswaoe|dal ay) pue }9a.1S Aa)In] JO |[eMaual 8y} 10} 46SF «|€ /€L 0L62 0S0°‘8 €1/Z| 2uadg jeauS 1§ shkemybiH
0 8zl 8cLl sJeak aining 741
[4 820l 0€0°} [EMBUSY peoy a|didulld — €1/g) T4
sainsea|\ buioddng
€C 006'C €26'C 8 SpooyInoqyBIaN ‘SiopLioD - €1/g) 141
(8y) 801} 09 SOWBYIS g}-1 10 JO uona|dwod - 41
1N3JINNOUYIANT
A3ATOASA SNIANTONI JHUNLIANIAX3
(e2¥'L) 852'9 266'GS 18.'09 IV.LOL SIDIAYIS S.NIHATIHD B STOOHIS
(08) 08 0 Sosea |ooyos
S|00UdS 10§ Buipuny |[eJaA0 U} UIUIM paulejuod si puadsiono ay| S89Inosal
umo sjooyos ayy pue sjuelb [eyded oyoads Aq papuny st} “sjooyos Aq Apjoalip palinoul ainjipuadxa |eydes ay) siyl [(€y€‘L) yLe‘l 116°S leydeD sjooyos paajoraq
0 8629 8558y 918vS S3JIAYTS S.NJHATIHD ® STOOHIS
"SHIOM UOIIBAOUSI 81)UDD) S,UdIP(IYD SI0IABYD % BUdD YINOA Yied bield [z 85 661 652 SBWaYDS [00YdS UON
0 (S) 0/ G9 (S8l |00Yds G) SHIOAN UolNEdBId 8l
0l 0 ol s|ooyog [eads
*SJUNODOE |eul} S,J0JOBIU0D BUIPUB)SING 8} puny O} 171/€ L 0Z OIUI PIeMIo) palied ad ||im puadsiapun
ay] "£10z Aenuep ul Awepeoe mau ay) 0} paliajsuel) Sjuapnig "sAejap ey} 9)epOWLLIODIE O} JOpIO Ul SHIOM
Jo swweiBold sy} palsyje J0}0BIU0D BY] Z|0Z Joquaoa( |iun a)a|dwoo jou pip 108foid ay) ‘polad uoionisuod
pajoadxa uey) Jabuo| e 0} anp JaAemoH "Z10g IsnbBny ul ysiul pjnom awayas ay) jey) pasodold Ajjeulbuo sem jj|(g) 201°L 0698l 8761 Awapeoy As|peH siseQ — S|ooyos Alepuodas
Ll 6 9G56°L 286°| UonesIUIaPON playyaINyY |oul — sjooyog Atewud
"sjoafoid Jolew asay} puny 0} 171/ 1.0g Ol pJemio} paLled a4 [|Im puadsiapun ay |
€10z Jaqueydag u pauado aq 0} saoe|d Mau JO JaquINU By} UO J08j4e 9SIaAPe OU aq ||Im alay] ‘ssadold Bujuue|d
8y} wouy Buisue syuswaiinbai pajielap AJan ay) yim Jayiebo) sseooud Buyaiig 8y} UIYIM S|O0YDS JO SPasu WNjNoLIND splemuo
ay} ajesodiodul Ajiny 0} pasinbas swi ay) 03 anp Ajurew pajedionue uey) Jabuo| sem sjoafoid [je uo ssaiboid|(}) 8/2'L 0 112°1L €10z 1des saoe|d |00yos Alewild - paap diseg
sAejap Aue jo }nsal e se ayejul |idnd z |0z Jaquiaydas ay) 0} Joedwi 9SI9ApE OU SEM dJay |
¥1/€10Z Ol pJemio} palied aq ||im Buljyoid-al S|y ‘payieme |i}S 81 JUNOOE [eul} SIO}OBIUOD U} JO UOKEN|IDU0Dd)
ay} Jo ajyold 106pnq ay} jsuiebe pajoadxe uey) Jomols sem ssalboid aiaym sawayos Jofew || aie aiayl|o LEY'E 95122 186'GZ 210z 1deg saoe|d |0oyog Alewid - pasN dlseg
0 L ol Ll sanuag buiutea Ao
4} 0 ! €l S|00Y0g Ul Hodg @ 3d Jo} sepiunpoddQ meN
(21) e 20¢ 6LE (938 smopuIp/Sjo0y) Buipung uoIpuoy S|O0YS|
"S]S00 buiulewsal
8y} JoA02 0} paddils aq |Im s}ebpnq Bululewsal 8y} 81040184} #71/€ | 0Z O}UI JBAO UNJ [[IM UDIYM SBWSBYDS ¢ e aIdy | A 90 825 awwelbold s|es|y [0oyos - eyde) pajabie |
(61) 6l 0 saJjua) s,uaIpliyd
Nun [eussey [Idnd mau auj Joy d)s ajqeyns e Buikyuapl ul Aejep ey 0} enp si 40013 Buluiewas 8y} Isiium ‘y1/¢1.02
ol paddis aAey Ing paye|dwod Alieau aie yolym 9SNOH }9Ssny pue BaT }SaAN 1B SaWaYds 0} sajejal 0L L3 oLz G/ €96°L spaa |eloadg - [eyde) pajebie] |
12 zl (¥) zl SAljeliU| SS800Y S|00YdS

S3DIAYIS S.NJFHATIHD ® STOOHIS

sawuweibolid

€1-Z10Z uonisod uinpnQ awweiboud |eyden




Page 26

saouelieA Juediubls 10} suoseay

I XIAN3ddV

000.3

puadg 000.3
(49nQ) / 18pun  Buljyoud -ay

000.3
uinpno

€LeLoe

000.3
€LzLoe
jobpng jsaje]

JYNLIANIdX3
(62) 818 198°L 089°8 IVLOL FHNLTIND ® FUNSIFT NOILVHINIODIN
‘¥1- €102 Ul papN|oU0d a4 [|IM SJUNOJJE [eul) PUB UOIIUS)Y ‘|euonesado mou S| pue awliy uo pauado
SBeM | 00| }sdi4 @shoH ApJeH sewoy] jo juswdojanap ay} 0} piebas yipn “suoissnosip Bujuueld oy anp Aejap
u@aq sey UoNe|[elsul A1DD 'SONss| JO Jaquinu e uo paaibesip aney sAoaing Ajuenp siounod ayj pue Japjing
ay) se pakejep usaq sey JuswAed uonuslal ay} ‘paysiigelss Buieq mou ale sjunodoe [eul [eH Ao o) plebal yipn |8, 19S 88lL‘lL 9z8°lL S90IAIBS [BIN)ND
108[01d aneay] plauiN 8y} isuiebe sbuines [eudes pue ainypuadxa
ONUBABI WO} PAISAOD BIOM S)}S0D 9S8Y) ‘Uofinly 0} awed Joafoid [euiblio 8y} JO Jwal 8y} SpISIN0 SYSIY JO Jaquinu || (911) 9eG'y 0Zy'y (|1e6YIN0S ¥ AUBqY dU|) SBLUSD BINSIST]
(0) 10l 10l wnipe}s 130
/8 0 /8 awwelbold syuswanoidwi Buipjing
‘uonelauabal eale pug Siopuod Ojul pajeiodiooul aq |[IM aWayds SIU} pUE UOHEIO0SSY
Nled ssauisng UelpuUaiy Yim pasiaai Bulaq juswaalby [eba] - swayos dled ssauisng UeIpUS| "9)e)sa |elisnpul (g @seud
8y} Jo Hed e 109j01d 0} J08f0id A1 DD Eale 10} PEOY JOCIEH UO JUSWUOIIAUT O} S9lUOW JBJSUel) 0} ushum Buleq ¥valo 9Ll 0 9Ll pY J9qieH 3 dled sng uelpua|y) sajeis [eusnpul
(4 L2l ¥61 sjosfoid ubiseQ g UolEAIBSUOD
ginjol
¥S 08/ $£8 SJOMO | Ud3I9) oul — S}08[0id U1 uojuowpg
(a1njonuselju|
(z1) 4] ov B PY sAey ‘sebpug/speoy]) Jere M Uelipusiy
(z6) 191 69 ajebynos meN
‘Buined ayuelb ay) Ae| 0} }S00 BY) puB BWI} UO BWSYDS 8y} 8}9|dWOod 0} SHIOM JO UOIJEIS|920E By} 0} anp juswaaibe
JeulBLIo 8y} UBY) SJ0W 8¢ 0} JNO PauIN} ¢]/Z] Ul JUBWSNSS [Bul Y} INg Z|/L ] Ul INO paLied sem diom ‘ jdap
JUBWUOIIAUT AQ POUOISSILLILLIOD 919M SYIOM BU| "8WayDs YJed pug siapuod ay} 0} sajejal Ajuiew s puadsiano ay] [(201) 9z2 198 086 (2470 /19948 YINos /1S yYbiY) pug siepuod
€ oL €l punj ealy ymolo (4v9) - pug siepuod
FAUNLTIND B FUNSIFT NOILLVIINIOIN
(rL1) [41°] 98€°22 52822 JHUNLIANIdX3 TVLOL LNIJWNONIANT
(01) L€ 12 1143y
(911) €51 180} €zL'l awiwelbold Juawaaoidui| Bulpjing
oL e y bunied
(¥9) 28l 8Ll sjodeQ
0 cc 361 1€G awwelbold Juswade|day s[oIya/|
‘puadsiapun [eal e Jou pue adualayip
MOJJUSED B S| 90UBLIEA U} OS PUB P|OS aJe SIaquieyd [enplAIpUl SB 8INin} 8Y} Ul anp awo2ad [|IM X/ #3F UdIUm Jo
MNp0L3 Je panjeA sl jasse oy "Ajljioe Juswiaju| Jaquieyd [elng g wnajosnejy AIa}awa)) uojuowps o} selejal 3/ 73
y1/€1 Alea ul payajdwod
aq 0} ||Im pue abejs [eul) S}l Je e uone|[eisul A1DD PUe S}9JI0] ‘SaoIO Yled SaWwAid o) Juswaroidwi ayl 3813
uopeoloads ay) uo palinbal suoneoyleo
Jayuny 0} anp 1/g| [pun pakejep usaq sey yolym (3dNIN) dulyoew syted e jo uopisinboe sy o} sejelal N6£3| Ly Z6 960°L GET'L Syied
0 ¥GLl S1°L Buiphosy 3 81seM
(g1) ZhL 020} 1L Aajes Ajiunwiwo)
‘pajedionue uey) spouad uone}Nsuod Jabuol Jo Jnsal e se sawayos BunebAs|ie swos jo uonejuswajdwi sy} ul
Kejop ay} 0} anp %663 pue ‘Juswidinbg Buiysep) 194G BieID Mau 8y} jo uonisinboe ayy Ul Aejap ay} 0} sajejal 40,3 szl 091 68z uo108)0.d [elusUoIIAUT
(02) S9 Zls 866 Jay)0 8uL0g Jo8S  skemybiy
(16) 109°} 91G°) sjuawanoidw| Aemjoo - }9a4)s Ynos
(0) 926°L 926°L Buiwig g Buiwwi |

sawuweibolid

€1-Z10Z uonisod uinpnQ awweiboud |eyden




Page 27

605 0SLLe ¥L0°L2) £eL'8hL FNNVIO0Ud TVLIdVD TVLOL ANVYD)

JUNLIANIIX3

0 11811 2£5°9¢ 6078y IV.LOL LNNODJV ANNIAIY ONISNOH

20v' (zov'2) 0 SUOHNQLIUOD Jep|oyssesT]

"¥1/€10g Ul pessac0id %893 oLl 06€ 00S 8]e0BA 0} Sjuel9

(¥2) vel'y 00y syoegAng
SHIoMm mc_u_OO\_ _umccm_Q:: 1O S1S092 ay] 1eawl

0} ¥1/€10Z Ul 8Np 000'ZF PUNOJE JO 100 [eUOIPPE UM Ing ‘Jebpnq iseje| uey) Ss8j Je Ul 8Wod sey }S00 [eul 8y v8l 8.9 Z98 s|leH Ajunwwo)
"¥1/€10g Ul 9)91dwod [lIm Jeus €1/Z1L0Z Ul pauels

syoefoud 40 JuswpWWOD By} Buussaides WEZY'|LF JO SOUBlE] BY} YIM ‘paRILILIOD A|ny SBM ¢ |/Z|0Z 104 196pNg siy L 629'L £ee'cl 796'v1 SHIOM [JBUDS) - 3O0)S 0} SHIOM
"¥1L/E1L0Z Ul 81e|dwod [Im 1eus €1/ZL0Z Ul palels

sj0@f0.d o Juswyiwwod ay) Bujussaidal W9/ G /3 JO SOUBIE] DY} YIM ‘PRRILILIOD A|Iny SEM £1/210Z 10} 186pnq Siy L 9/G', 60861 G8¢'/2 SBWOH JU808( - %00}S 0} SHIOM

605 £12'6 £¥5‘06 $2£'00L FNNVEO0Hd ANNL TVHINID TV.LOL ANVYD,

seLe SeL'e Aouabunuo) |eyde) ajelodio)

[44 1211 8GE‘L 105°C SIWIHOS ILVHOJHOD)

(61) 995 LS Py 80UBUPIQ - 8JJUSD SIAISS JUlOr)

(z1) zl 0 N®a Aligises 4

(0) Zl 10 cLe ue|d}o 1]

G6 0z Gl (vaq) swweiboid Ayjiqesiq

"9OPIWWOD-gNS joulqe)d 4d¥3 duj 0} papodal Ajiny ussq sey uopisod uINRNO sIy L (GE 6€0°L 8GH ze5') pund Ajold sjuapisay

31V30dd0D

JUNLIANIdX3T TVLIOL

(€8) 88Y G86'C 06€°S JHVO TVID0S LINAY ANV ONISNOH ‘HLIVIH

(z1) Gve £9v 96/ PuisnoH 8|gqep.iogy/|

VA c0ol [o]°1% Sjuelo) aduej}siIssy @r__wJOI

(sel) 111 9¢9 sjuel9 BuisnoH [euoibay gns

S8 G9¢'L 0S¥'L (pepuny Juelb wGL"|3) JUBIS sen|ioe pejqesiq

ol ¥4 XS apelbdn pue uonelbaju| - 1sii4 aled

0s 0 05 suoneydepy alejjop

(€1) 6L 901 sjual| @7 404 85U Ae@ suopdQ meN aoejday

0/ 0 0/ (Spuald HIN) 9AY Yed je }i| joosdali4

ajejs3 |eusnpul

/ 1z 8C sBuuane|) ez|/z| J0 Buljlepowsyuswysiqiniey

(1v) (6) €0l 59 9SNOH Y}8qezI[3 @ HN0D SMalpuy 1S

(1) 12 0z aljua) Aeq juowuo 0} UOISUdIX]

I XIAN3ddV

saouelieA Juediubls 10} suoseay

000.3
puadg

(49nQ) / 18pun  Buljyoud -ay

000.3

000.3
uinpno

€LeLoe

000.3
€LzLoe
jobpng jsaje]

3YVO VIO0S 11NAV ANV ONISNOH ‘HLIVIH

sawuweibolid

€1-Z10Z uonisod uinpnQ awweiboud |eyden




Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING TITLE AND DATE:

Page 29 Agenda Item 9

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2013/2014 REPORT NO. 24

Agenda — Part: 1 Item: 9

Cabinet — 10" July 2013 Subject: Quarterly Corporate Performance
Report

REPORT OF: Wards: All

Chief Executive Key Decision No: 3715

Contact officer and telephone number: | Cabinet Member consulted:

Alison Trew 020 8379 3186

Clir A. Georgiou

E mail: alison.trew@enfield.gov.uk

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Prior to the 2010 General Election and the subsequent abolition of the National
Indicator Set and Local Area Agreements, Cabinet received regular monitoring
reports on key performance measures relating to nationally set targets and local
priorities. In 2011/12 updates on performance were included as part of the
monthly Cabinet Revenue Monitoring Reports.

In the current difficult financial circumstances, there is value in demonstrating that,
in many areas, Council performance is being maintained and/or improved.

This is the third quarterly report on the Corporate Performance Scorecard that
reflects Council priorities and local resources, demand etc. The report attached at
Appendix 1 shows the latest available performance data at the end of the fourth
quarter of 2012/13.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Cabinet notes progress made towards delivering the identified key
priority indicators for Enfield.




3.

3.2

3.3

4.2

4.3

Page 30

BACKGROUND

Prior to the 2010 General Election and the subsequent abolition of the
National Indicator Set and Local Area Agreements, Cabinet received
regular monitoring reports on key performance measures relating to
nationally set targets and local priorities. In 2011/12 updates on
performance were included as part of the monthly Cabinet Revenue
Monitoring Reports.

In the current difficult financial circumstances, there is value in
demonstrating that, in many areas, Council performance is being
maintained and/or improved. It is also important to understand why
targets are not being met and whether there are further interventions that
the Council can make to ameliorate the situation, or, if it is out of the
Council’'s control, how the Council can make a case to central
Government and other public bodies.

Therefore the Corporate Performance Scorecard has been updated and
targets set that reflect Council priorities and local resources, demand
etc. The indicators are grouped under the Council’s three strategic aims,
Fairness for All, Growth and Sustainability and Strong Communities. The
scorecard also includes a number of financial health measures.

PERFORMANCE

The attached report contains the latest available performance data at the
end of the fourth quarter of 2012/13. The tables also show performance
against the London average where this is available. Where appropriate,
explanatory comments are provided next to the performance information.

Financial Indicators

This section provides an overview of the Council’s financial health. The
first three indicators give the income and expenditure position, the next
two provide an update on the Council’'s balance sheet and the final two
indicators show the cash flow position.

Priority Indicators

The Priority Indicators scorecard groups performance indicators under
the Council's three strategic aims, Fairness for All, Growth and
Sustainability and Strong Communities.

Where a target has been set, performance is rated at green if it is on or
exceeding the target; amber if there are concerns that the target may not
be achieved by the end of the year; and red when the current levels of
performance mean that the target is unlikely to be achieved.

76 performance indicators being reported, of which 74 have targets set.
Of these 46 (62.2%) are at green; 14 (18.9%) are at amber; and 14
(18.9%) are at red.



Page 31

The notes cover a number of areas and may include explanation of how
the indicators are calculated, commentary on progress towards
achieving the targets, trends over time and national comparisons

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED
Not to report regularly on the Council’s performance. This would make
it difficult to assess progress made on achieving the Council’s main
priorities and to demonstrate the value for money being provided by
Council services.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
To update Cabinet on the progress made against all key priority
performance indicators for the Council.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND
CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS

7.1  Financial Implications

The cost of producing the quarterly reports, will be met from existing
resources.

7.2 Legal Implications

There is no statutory duty to report regularly to Cabinet on the
Council’'s performance, however under the Local Government Act 1999
a best value authority has a statutory duty to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised having
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
Regular reports on the Council’s performance assist in demonstrating
best value.

7.3 Property Implications
None
KEY RISKS
Robust performance management helps identify areas of risk in service
delivery and ensure that Council resources are used effectively and
that the Council’s good reputation is maintained.
IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES
a. Fairness for All

The scorecard includes indicators that measure the Council's
progress in reducing inequalities across the Borough.



10.

11.

12.

Page 32

b. Growth and Sustainability

The scorecard includes indicators that aim to support business
growth, increase numbers of people in employment, protect and
sustain Enfield’s environment and support Enfield’s voluntary and
community sector.

c. Strong Communities

The scorecard includes indicators that assess how the Council’s
actions are contributing to strengthening communities, improving
communications, reducing crime and improving health.

EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

Corporate advice has been sought in regard to equalities and an
agreement has been reached that an equalities impact
assessment/analysis is not relevant or proportionate for the corporate
performance report.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

Robust performance management provides the Council with accurate
data and ensures that service delivery is meeting local needs and
priorities.

PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS

The scorecard includes a number of health and wellbeing indicators
that aim to address the key health inequalities in Enfield. From
2013/14, when the health reforms come into effect, further public health
indicators will be added to the scorecard.

Background Papers

None.



Page 33

© 00 000

£70C Jen
- Buney sy

[1aunoy

196pnq yum 1964e] Uo aue JeaA ay3 104 I1seda10) S1digdad 1Sa49IU]

‘anp
JleJ ASU3 USUYM SJUSLIILILWIOD SNUSA3J pue |ejided pauueld J9A0D 03 3|ge|I_AR 3JB Spuny JUSIdILNS
aJnsua 1M (Buimodlog Buipnioul) JesA ay3 Joj 3SeI340) MOYSED pue sadue|eq Ysed s,|Punod ayl

$3se29.104 S1dI929y 1S9491Ul - MO|4 ysed

'S|aA9]| 19buey Abajenys |edueuly
WD) WNIP3 S,[12UN0D 3yl YIIM dul| Ul 9Je sadue|eq pund [eJaud9 Joj suoijdafoldd pud Jeah ayl

1SB23104 MOyseD pue saduejeq ysed - Moj4 ysed

‘uJdniad Jo 1. USA0 spuny Jo Ajundas Buisniond Joy ABajedis
paAoidde s,|1ounoD 9y YIM SOUBpPIOdIe Ul 8F 0] S9NUIIU0D SJUSLIISSAUI Ysed Jo 9|ijoid Jualind ayL

suoioafouad
puD Je3A S9oue|Rg puN4 |RIBUID - }93YS ddue|eq

*€T/2T0Z Ul SUOIIIPUOD J3Y3BaM JOM PanuUI3U0Dd

10 3jnsaJ e se aJde pue sybnosoq Bulinoqybisu ul pasusiiadxs bBulag aJe S$1S0D paseatoul Jejiwis
*S1500 @oueUSjUIRW pue Jiedad Ul aseaJdoul Juediiubls e usaqg sey a4yl JesA Juslind ay3 ul jeyl
10B) 343 JO JUNOJJE S L] 1SBJ3I0) 3y '€T/ZT0T 404 MT/ZF 40 puadsiopun ue bupdafoid si wyH Syl

JUSWISAAUL yse) - 193ys aduejeg

*1eaA ay3 noybnouayy sutaied buipuads 3ou pajoipadd 09|04
191399 03 J9pJo ul pajjdde sem s12bpnqg |eauswiedap ||e ssoloe buljiyoid 3@6png uo sndoj Jajealb vy

VYH - UO0IISOd aJnjipuadx3] g awoou]

9SI1249Xd SIY] JO Jed se pasojyuow A[9SO|D OS|e SJ9M S|DAJ|
SWO0DU| padnpay ‘JeaA |epueuly 9yl Jo pua ay3 e 319bpnqg ulym |jes syuswiiedap buipuadsiano jeyy
19pJ0 ul uaxe) si uoioe ajedoidde Ajlpwiy ainsua 03 Aj9so|d pabeuew uaaq aAey saduelea 326png
9S9y] '£T0C Aleniga4 1e se payausapl usaaq aAeY puadsiapun 3ZZ9F JO SSOUBLIBA }SEIS10) PUd JBIA

Buijijo.ad 3@6png - uoI}ISOd 24N puadx3 ¥ SWOdU]T

SIYb6IYBIH Aa)

ssoueleA
1SED210) PUS JBSA - UOIISOd ainjipuadxy ¥ awodul

a13idN3

M3IASY JO ealy

€T0C 2unf 6T :UO pejelsusn

(393104d) 0 sl03edIpU] [BDURULY - MIIADY WD




Page 34

SOA

[€T yote AO3T - sewoH peBua] (%/6) 196483 MOjeq
Ajjeuibiew ‘uoioeysijes ||eJ9A0 pa3iedipul dABRY paudniad
sAonins (%t9°56) YES'E 4O B30 B JO 08E'E:ET Jel

£10¢
yalep

%00°/6

SOA

[€T yotel AQ3 - SSWOH plaiyug]

"pa3o|dwod |B303 £T0'HT 4O INO dwiy Ul pa3d|dwod
SI3pJ0 SHIOM 0¥6'ET YIM (%5886 JO 19b.ey e Jsulebe
%8%'66) 196121 paAllyde Sey 2DURWIOLDd (€T Je

€10¢
yatep

%S8°'86

SOA

'S91DURUD) J10303S jeAld JuaPIYNS

aJinboe 03 JapJo ul padojansp buiaq si Abajedys
jJuawaJandoud Ayjadouad waa) 4abuo v *spjoyasnoy
Bupiom pue sspuabe Jayyo ‘saiioyne |eI0|

19Y30 woJy puewsp paseatdul pue Addns paonpad jo
asnedaq spjoyasnoy ssajpwoy Ajjeiaualod Joj sandadoud
pajuad aieAld bunooad ul A3ndiip buoj Jeah

9y3 sem juedlylubis 340y *Siaquinu 9dNpad 0} SO0
Huiadwey pajedidijue Jo HOYS Jey |94 UOIRPOWLWIOdDR
Atesodway ul spjoyasnoy o3 buisnoy |epos jo sbuizen

v
104 AAY
90¢T

/61

£10¢
yalep

006T

SOA

‘Juswabeinoous / adIApe pue

‘(sd9plQ dseydind Atosindwo)) uoIlde JUSWII0UD
‘syuedb jo uoneuiquod e ybnoayy asn ojul Xoeq
ybnouaq aq 03 anujauod saiadold Ajdwa 10309S 3RAld

£10¢
yoJepn

14

SOA

‘pardope uaaq sey 2.n30NJis Juswabeurw I10MISED
ISNQOJ 2J0W B UOIIPPEe U] "papud mou sey Adueus)
Buisnoy |epos e bulinboe pue ssaussajaWOY U2aMIaq
Mull [eb3] ay3 1eyy sebessaw uojedIUNWWOD BuoJls Jo
jInsaJ e se Ajjed JeaA ayj Jo pud ayy e Ajdieys a3inb
paddoup apew suofedjjdde ss9jawoy Jo Jaqunu ayl

"uoiepowwodde Alesodwal ojul paseid

pue ssa|awoy se pajdadde ale aWaYdS SI9pPUJOWOH Y3
ybnoJyy pasnoyad jou asoyl “JeaA siyl yjuow Jad H¢€
Aluo 03 ZT/TT0Z ul yyuow 4ad 4 wody paulpap dn 39s
S91DURUD) 9S9Y3 JO JOqWNu dY] *dWaYdS JOpUljdWOoH
ay3 ybnouyl spjoyasnoy ssajpwoy Ajjeiyusiod

104 saipdadoud pajuad 3eald buuinboe ul Aynouyip 03
anp Ajobie| sem saoueidadoe ssS9PWOY Ul 9SeaJdUl Y|

6T
104 OAY
v ovb

6T/T1

Sa1oN

obelany
uopuo]

sjuey
uopuo

£10¢
yaiep

oov

%¥9°S6

SOWOH p|ayug Aq papiaodd ad1AIas

%6196 si1edad Y)IM UO[IDRISES [|RISAQ
S

o) e awny Jieday 03 3ybry, JusWUISA09
/oTE66 UIyIM Pa39]dWod B SIWOH PlaLuT
03 pajiodau sajedad Juabin Jo o,

uoiepowwodoe Alesodwal

9561 u1 BUIAI| SPjOYasnoy Jo Jaquinp
as( 03Ul oeg 1bnoig SSWOoH

ey Aydw3 :buiSNOH 103095 23eALId

897 seoue)daddy SS9|OWOH

J10e21pug

SSBUSS?DWoH pue buisnoH Amu_

IV 10} ssaulied 5_

$ Jopend) s103ed|pur AJLIoLd - MIIASY WD



Page 35

*Aljleuoneu o,6¢ 03 patedwod syiely pue ysibug
dul D-xV +G paAalyde p|ajjul ul 110yod sSiy] JO %< INg
saunbyy jeuoneN 03 sjidnd pabejueapesip jo uojjiodoid
Lw:m_sm Ssey p[a1ug os|e sieaA XIS 1se| ay) JoA0
puaJy buiaoadwi ue |[13S S| J9U3 J9AIMOY ‘Saliepunoq
apeub ay3 03 sabueyd ay3 Aq paidaye Al4es|d . . . sujel pue ysiibuz buipnioul
EEN I 6 %9'¢9| zE/0€ Z1/110C %029 %S'SS juajeAinbs 1o 3509 je sapeub
2J9M S3INSaJ 9Say) ‘ZT0T Ul |94 syjew pue ysijbug 5S4 SIOW 10 G JO JUBLISABILY
Buipnpul D-4vS bulasiyoe sjidnd jo abejusdiad syl * ;
0°6S :puejbug
%E"C9 uopuon
‘abelaAe [eUOIIRU DA0QR UYl0g 4B 3SdYL %68
SYIBW pue %T6: ysi|bug :aJe syjely pue ysijbu3g yyoq
ul zs) e ssauboud pajoadxa bupjew sjidnd jo o4 aylL
'SIE9A G 1Se| 93 JOA0 dseaJdul z
EEN %¢T B pue s}NsaJ sieaA 1se| uo juswaArosdwl %9 %¢8| TE/TT Z1/110C %0°9L %008 abeis Aay e syjel pue ysi|buz yyoq
e U93q Ssey aJayl ‘aA0J4dw 03 panuijuod sey plaul Ul 9A0QR J0 { [9AJ] 1B JUSWDASIYDY
"%6/ J0 dbeiane pue|bug ayy ueyy 491339 SI playul
'(9%95) abeiane |euoireu
9yl mojaq sI (%E€S) ysiibug ueyy uayjo si abenbue Adeua3i
asoym sjidnd *(9,G9) abeiaAe |euoneN ayy ueyl pue abenbue ‘uojzediuNWWO)
4191399 wuoyiad (9%/9) ysibu3g si abenbue| 3s41) asoym pue juswdo|aAaQ |euonyow]
SOA sjidnd pfayu3g ul ‘sAoq ueyy 4132q wlopad SHIH “sieah %9'¥9| TE/0€ Z1/110C %€’SS %009 pue [eld0s |euoslad Ul s3|eds
G 1sed ay3 J9A0 JudwaAoldwl 9% Tz B pue aduew.loyiad Y3 JO yoea Ul 9 1se9| 1e yym abeis
TT-0T0Z uo juswaAolduwi jJuiod o4LE B UIIS uollepuno4 siea\ Alde3 ayj ssoJoe
aAey 9\ "4edA uo JedA aaoidwi 03 S9NUIRUOD plaljul sjulod 8/ 31Se3| 3B JO JUDWDASIYDY
‘04,69 S| abeuane |euoineN
abessn ue
SSI0N co_u:o@_ cow_v:ow__ 403e31pu]
juswuredy [euozeonp3 (q)|
[€T yotew AO3 - sewoH playuz ] “(A0qe) uoid||0D
ok JuSy Z000OH Ul In0 13s anss| ayy Aq pajoedw €102 o . % . of i S9WOH p|ayugz Aq pabeuew
ua3aq sey pue (9%t6°2) 19biel apisino Ajjeuibiew yolep hot6'C 86°C ot6'C Se ‘sjueuajl JuaJind JO Siealle Judy
S| UY2Jde|n JO pUd 0} %86°C I8 OURWIONDd €T YdJepn
[€T yose AOF - sewoH plaiua ] (3)1lenb
dol) %72/'66 03 paYl| USSQ dARY P|NOM 3eJ UOIID3||0d
9NJ} 9y} paJ4n0220 dABY JOU JOJID 3Y3 PeH "$T-£T10C
Ul 91n3edy ||IM peslsul pue £1-z10¢ 404 3ebyioN ojul
paisod ©g jo0uued 006°'9TF J9A0 JO DWODUI SIy] "a4njie) (sJeadde jual
SOA sbunnsod e 01 anp passa20.d JoU SeM Uddely Ul PaAISIS mLH%N %0T 00T %6966 %TE 00T buipn|pxa) anp juad jo uouodoud
sjuswAed bBulnieay 91 dwWodUl ysed y * 9jidenb 42en e Se SOWOH p|ayu3 AQ pa3da||0d Judy
doy apisino Ajjeuibiew pue 3obiel mo|aq sI %69°66 1O
UJNIN0 juelNSaJl 3yl pue yodely bunp juswAed jigap
10241p Ajyauow Jo 92Ad AQ pajoedw AjlaAanebau uasq
sey 2ouewJloyiad Jeah ||ny ‘pajedidiue sy (€T yolep
abeuan ue
S9ION :o_u:oM :ow:ow__ 403e01pur




Page 36

%869 ! NIS paynuapl ou yum sjidnd

%T8 TZ : JUsWaeIS dul NIS Ym sjidng

*JB3A ISe| WOl 9%+t G AQ paonpad sey deo ayl
's1eaA ¢ 4oy douewdopad 3saq Jno S| pue

JedA 3se| wouy pamodieu sey des NIS UON/NIS YL

%¢'89 : den NIS UON/NIS uopuo]
%t 9 :des NIS UoN/N3S pue|bug

%¢EE

ze/1e

TT/110C

%00'tvv

%06 :N3IS ON yim sjidnd

%8605 : Juswalels dul NIS Yiim sjidnd

'SIedA /£ J0j 1s9q

9y3 S| @ouewloyiad sieaA siyl ‘sieaA ¢ ise| ay3 Joj 0S
sey pue 2onpaJd 03 SaNUIIU0D NIS ON Yum siidng pue
juawaiels buipnpul NIS yim sjidngd usamiaq deo ayl

%€ T8 :den NIS UON/NIS uopuo
%G T8 :de9 NIS UON/N3IS pue|bul

S ad

ze/TT

21/1102

%00°€S

%86 LY

syjew pue ysijbug -oul 3529 D -V
G buinsiyoe - deb NIS-uou/(NIS)
SpaaN |euoeonp3 |epads ayl

"%Z°09 :sjidnd Jay3o ||V %t 0 S|esw
jooyds 92344 104 9|qibld agq 03 umouy sjidnd “sjidnd
J9U3o ||e pue s|eaw |ooyds 2aJ4 40} 9|qibie sjidnd

UM JuUdWRA0IdWI 0%t Z B UDDS dARY 9\ “Sload
J12y3 pue s|eaw |ooyds 234} Joj 9|qibija sjidnd usamiaq
deb juswaAaIyde By} 90Npad 03 S9NUUOD plalyug

%€ 8T

ze/oe

Z1/1102

%09°€¢C

%86°0%

Ploysaluy syie pue ysijbug z abeys
A9y buiaaiyoe - deb N3IS-uou/(N3IS)
SpaaN |euoeanp3 |epads ayl

%S8 S! ¢SH

Je |9A3] padadxa bulasiyde |WSH 104 9|qibid Jou s|idnd
%L S! TSH

Je |9A9] pajdadxa ayy buiaaiyoe |\SH 104 91qibie sjidnd
'INS4 104 9|q1b1j@ jou sjidnd asoyy pue

WS4 J0J 9|qib12 sjidnd usamiaq deb o4LET B S| 2J43y)
s93ed1puUl S9|ge) aduewdoyad ayy ul ‘deb ayy Buimouaepn
‘su9ad J1vy)

pue (|NS4d)s|eaw |ooyds 2aJ4 104 91qib@ sjidnd usamiaq
deb juswaAslyde ay3 sAosdwl 03 SSNUIIUOD plalug

%TET

T€/PT

TT/1102

%00°LT

%0¢'0¢

1 sabeis Aay| 1e [9A9)

pa30adxa ay3 buiasiyoe sisad Jiayl
pue s|eaw |00yds 9aJ4 J0) 9|q1b1d
s;idnd usamiaq deb juswaAaIydy

SOA

"(34a @Ya Aq pasn uolulaQ dYl) ZT°E€'TE U0 Syjuow
T 404 94BD Ul U93Q pey Oym 3SOY3 J0J uoeNd|ed
|E20] JNO S| SIY] 2dUdY QT UBYY SS9| SI ‘D-4VS bulaaiyoe
‘H0y0d UaIp(IyD 48V PAX00T JO Jaquinu sp|syul
'suoseaJd Ajljennuapyuod 4oy

‘190 40 QT |enba siaqunu 340yod ay3 JiI saunbiy ysignd
Aluo 34@ ay3 s! sIy3 Joy uosead ay| “(34@) uoneonpy
4O jusweda@ auyj jou pue Y plaiyu3 AQq paje|ndjed

Sl 9%/ ZZ 40 a4nby siyl *A|9so|d siyl Jojjuow Ajjenuiauod
wiea] 924N0S9Y pue SS920y uol3ednpy pue yjjesH ayl

21/1102

%0°0¢

%00°€T

Z sobeis Aay| 1e |9A9)

pa30adxa ay3 buiasiyoe sisad Jidy3
pue sjeaw |ooyds 3a.j 4oy 3|qibie
sjidnd usamiaq deb juswanaiydy

odlL

pue|buz

pue uopuoT Yjoq 1eys J913aq bujwdoyad s pjaiyug
9,GG :9beuany pue|bug

9%T9 :9beiany uopuo

%¢’8S

zE/9T

TT/1102

%00°£LS

%L T

(sonnewsyiew

pue ysibug buipnppul) $ abeis
A3y je (Jus|eAInba 10) S3ISID D-xV
G Buiaaiyoe uaupjiyd 191je paxooT]

SOA

abelane |euoneu
343 ey} Jo1aq pue abelaAe uopuo 03 |enba si piaiyug

%8 :9beiany puelbug
0,98 :9beJaAy UOpUOT

%608

zEe/ST

Sa]0N

obelany
uopuo

sjuey
uopuo

TT/1102

%0008

%009

6T Jo abe ayy Agq uonedyyljenb
€ |9AS7 B JO JUBWIARIYDY

%00°98

6T Jo abe ayy Ag uonedyljenb
Z 19A97 B JO JUBWARIYDY

J0jea1pu]




Page 37

obelany uey
SeIoN uopuo-] cow_v:o._ lojedipul
uaJp1yD buip.enbayes (p)|
[ELILSER
SOA paAaiyoe 319bue :MLH%_M %0°Z8 %7128 Aue Bujal@dad sjuald JO) JeahA
3U3 Ul paMaIABJ S3UBI|D JO JaquinN
"}9S eIRp WNWiuiW 3snJ|
HIW 9y Jo Jed se saunbly
paysiignd |euy Buniemy
€8 sl 19buey €1/21 €107 jJuswAo|dwsa
SO "€T/2T Aenugad4 jo pus yIen €8 SL LOT ul S92IAJSS Yjjesy |ejuswl
Alepuodas BulAl@dad S3Npy 4O ON
9y3 1e JuswAojdwa pied Ul 919M SDIIAIDS Yi|esH |eIUS
Adepuodas buialodad sjualpP
G/ SI UIN1IN0 |BUOISIAOIY
jJuswAojdwa
SOA T1/1 €1/2102 ovT obT pled Ul SYSSYD 03 UMOU| SJUSID
pajgesip buiuies| 3npe jo JaquinN
5 %08 m%>> J1edA 2y3 40y
196483 Byl *M3IADI 1O JUBSWISSISSE Uk HBUIMO||04 DDIApR '
pue uoljewlloul 1o 9DIAISS SJaded e BulAledal Saled 81 €102 . . . uoReuLojul PUB SDIAPE 40 EDIAISS
SOA 046" Alun loyany|  8T/¥ 510 %00°0S %689 %SS LY S,191e2 2ly|oads e pue malAad 1o
STCE S! SIUL "%6°9p SI SOIAISS paseq AJunwiiod e %S'2C B JUSWISSasSe spaau Bulaledal siale)
BulAleDa) sjual|d [|e Jo abejusdiad e se 2DJAISS S,Jaled 0 o
e HUIAI9Ia SJaded Jo Jaquinu ay3 €T YdJey pus ayl 1y
. (synpe |le)
SOA paAdIyoe 39bieL %C'8L JUSWISSISSE D1eD [0S JO SSAU|PWI ]
sjnpe [|e Joj sjeydsoy ||e wod}
ab.aeydsip ajedoidde pue Ajpwiniy
. 1T 404 / . Buiyell|oe) U a1ed paseq-Ajunwiwod
A '19q0300 Ul 3|qejieae ony gz TP S 08's pue (3nde-uou pue a3nde)
94 ||Im 24nbyy |euly ay3 aJ10j949u3 uonedlqnd |euiblio S90IAJDS |eyidsoy jo Joedwi ay)
Jaye syjuow 9 saunbyy papuswe ysignd puejbul salnsesawl) aJed JO sJajsueld) paAeaQq
SHN ‘papuswie usaq 3dUls Sey Ydlym uoi3da||0d
eiep siy3y ojul 3ndul sem eiep snoauodtd se ‘anoadwl
[['M INQ uinynNo |eniul ayy st /°g JO IduUewW.oiad
"196pnq
|euosiad e 03 Jajsuedy ued eyl SDIAIDS UM SIudld (%4
saA |e303 syuasaudau 326.e3 BYL "% b8 4o 39b1ey U3 Mojeq 10y oAY|  §z/S %bE 19 ﬂcw__wohamwm_%_wwﬁ“m wn_ww@wﬁ_h\%wﬂ
SI siyl ‘JeaA |eppueuly ay3 bulnp uoddns pajoadip 9%8°95 : ;
419S paAIadal pey sjualp £/SS ‘€T JeW JO pud 3yl Iy
abeuany yuey
SSIoN uopuoT| uopuo 103e31puy

2.eD [E1POS NPV (9)]




Page 38

odlL

"uaJpiyo

Ino jo awos jo AjIxajdwod buisealoul ayj J@aw

03 uoisinodd mau BulAjiauspl ul paA|oAUl Ajjueisuod

os|e aJde (1¥y) wea) BuluoISSIWWO0D S221N0Say

03} SS90y 9y} pue Ss.daJed J93s0j 9snoy-ul ||e syoddns
MOU pue papuedxs uaaq sey sawuwelsboid dais

Ul SHIWVYD 9yl "juswade|d 1xau ayj Jo sjuswadinbau
9y} wJoyul 03 sdjay pue umop ax0.q juswadeld sy
Aym BuiAjiauapi ul s3sisse Siyl "umop syealq juswade|d
B J9ASUIYM p|ay aJe sbunas|y uondnisig pue
sjuswaoe|d ulejulew pue asi|Iqeis 03 p|ay aJe sbuiesy
AJjIge3s 'ssad0.4d [aued juswade|d 9yl ybnoayy

wea) usawabeuely Joiuas ayl Aq Ayjigels 1oy Ajesod
paJojiuow aJe sjuswade|d ||y ‘S9sed Jno Jo Ajxa|dwod
Buiseasoul ay3y 309|424 Jo3edipul Ssiyy aAaiyoe o3 buljiey
uaJp|iyd ayl 'syuswadeld o|geis ul buiuiewas aydssp
103edIpul SIY3 Ul paunod J4abuo| ou aue 0S pue SiedA
9T paudn] aaey ajdoad HBunoA jo Jaquinu y "sdeaA

Z J19A0 J0J Juawade|d Jualdnd JIy) Ul uaaq pey sieah
G'Z ueyy aJow Joj J9le pax0o0| uaJp|iyd /8 4O IN0 ¢S

T
10} BAY
%¢€°L9

¥1/0T

€10¢
yatep

%0°S9

%8°6S

J4dlL

*ss@20.4d |aued juswade|d

ay3 ybnouayy Ajjigels pue ssauajeridoadde Joy

wea| juswabeuely J01USS ay} Aq Aldeinbad pasiuinads
Qg 0] 2NURUOD sjuawadeld "Ajaybils asealdap pjnom
24nbly Y3 papn|oul 30U 349M 3SBUY I ‘d03edIpul SIu)

u] pajunod pue abueyd jusawade|d e se paplodal aq
I3snw juswade|d wody buissiw si pjiyd> e usaym potad
HOyS AJOA B UDAD 1BY] S91rls pue aAldidsald AJaA si
103edIpul SIyl J40j UOI3R|NJ|RD JO POYlIdW Y] "p|o SIedA
/T-GT usamiaq pabe aie (dA 8T) %61 ‘HM0Yyod ualind
9y3 Jo Dy J19bunoA ueyy Appusnbauy siow aAow

dA J9p|0 3eyl pasiubodad si 31 "ueaA ayjy noybnoay)
uaJp|IyD 12y pax00T ||e JO S9AOW Judwade|d ||e
Jojiuow Aj9so)d |pued juswade|d 2yl "JeaA syl buunp
S9AOW judwade|d aJow JO € pey uaJp|iyd /€ JO |rI0] Y

vl
10J aAY
%L'8

/21

£10¢
yalep

%0°CT

SOA

uona|dwod Ajpwi %08

ueyj aJow aAdlyde ( pjaiu3 pue uoins ‘uopbuliH )
"TT/T10C

JeaA jo pua 34a 9ay3 Aq paysiignd se ‘sanoyine |edo|
93443 Ajuo - uona|dwod Ajpwi Jo ajed 3saybiy puodas
3yl 9ABRY 9M ‘sailuoyine |edo| Jojededwod Jno Uy
"€T0Z YoJe| Jo pua ayj e se sAep Bupiom g¢

ulyIm pa3a|dwod sjuswssassy 240D (%E8) 90ZT1/T00T

0¢
10} DAY
%Y vL

0z/s

£10¢
yoJepn

%0°€8

SOA

‘siabeue|y

40} buiias aandalqo ybnoiyy pue dnous juswabeue|y
JeuonesadQ ay3 ybnouayy padtojuial buiaq si syl
JuswaAoJdwl SPaauU ||13S 9AI|2q 9M Jey) eaJe ue S|
SIyl se |9A3] ybiy e je Jojedipul Juasald ay) Joj 19bae)
Y3 buidasy aJie am ‘suwiiuesw ayj ul ‘padnNpoJiul

S| Juawissasse a|buls mau ayy uaym (Jojedipul
JUSWISSaSSY 210D 9Y3 [|IM se) JedA ay3 bulnp jpunjop
9W023q [|IM J03ReDIpUl SIY] "SJUDWISSISSY |eI}U] JO 3.l
uone|dwod 3saybiy ayi aaey am ‘ (uaAl|d bulaquinu)
sapiloyine |edo| Jojededwod Jno UIYyIm ‘1aAamoy
19b.4e} Mmoj2q sulewad J03edIpul SIY} 10} 9DURWI0LDd
‘sAep bupjlom QT ulyym

p232|dWod SjUBWSSISSY |RINU] JO %8°08 = L92C/TEST

e/u

e/u

S9J0N

obelany
uopuon

sjuey
uopuo

£10¢
yalep

%058

%808

%L°99

juawaoe(d jo yibua| :uaipjiyd Jaye
pax00]| Jo syuswade|d jo AJljigels

%L TT

(4edA ay3 bunnp syuswade|d

2Jow 10 934Y3 YIM yodep

T€ Je 49)ye Pa300| UIP|IYd JO %3Y1)
"S9AOW JO Jaquwinu :uaJpiyd Jaye
pa00] Jo syuawade|d Jo Ajljiqels

%8°€8

JUSWISOUSWIWOD J19Y)
10 sAep BUJOM GE UIYIIM INO paLlied
319M 1ey) 24eD |BID0S S,Uap|Iyd

10J SJuSWISSasse 210D Jo abejuadiad

%S°S8

|edajad Jo sAep BUPOM QT UIyIM
1IN0 pallied a1ed [edos s,ualp|iyd
10} SsjusWISsasse |e3iul Jo abejuadiad

Jajealpug




Page 39

'saouepuane
9seaJoul 03 padjay SABY S243U9d a4nsia Aueqly mH\NHmNW 1/9'T09 265£'€H9 51d0ad BUnoA - mbm%mwwwmxw_uww_
pue Aingyinos ‘e3ebyinos je sani|ioey paysiqiniay :
' s saouUepUSNY
SOA €r/zroz 86S°¢CE S90°L¢ NPy - suoissas juswdojpAaq suods
. 1964e] JO JUBWDASIYDR JDAO Y} / soouepuany 9jdoad BunoA
A 109|424 saniAiRde didwAjeled pue didwA|Q wody sainbiq €r/¢toe - SU0ISSas Juawdol|anaq s3lods
abe.uan ue
SSI0N co_u:o@_ cow_v:ow__ 403E31pu]
ain3in) pue pods Amu_
‘abesaAe uopuoT ayl ueyl 49139q
S| 90UBWIOMD SPIa1UT "yMiq UaAIb Ajjuadad pey Jaylo
auo pue uosiid ul a1am omy ‘bujuies) pue juswAojdw3 o1
‘uoi3edNp3 ul J0U SIBARD| 3JBD 6 By} JO 'dduewoad €1/2102 . . . Bururesy 4o JuswAojdwa
SOA uo 0edwi juediyiubis e aAey aJdojalayl sabueyd L%h oY 9t/€ 0O %0°SL %6°0L %C 9L ‘uoiIedNPa Ul SI9ARD| 9JB)
||lews pue 10y0d ||ews e uo paseq S J403edipul H1°L9
Syl "Jopenb siyj paseatdap sey duewIopdd ‘buluied|
pue juswAojdw3 uoiedNP3 Ul dJe SISARD| 2Jed TE€/2C
J1eaAk ayjy Joj s|edtsjal ST JUSWISSASSe
SoA 0697 [2101 B JO JNO SJUBLISSISSY |RIIIUT SWO0I3q J0) aAY|  8T/S cmLH%_m %0°'S8 %/.°68 [eniul 03 uo Bulob aied [e1Pos
0] UO JUSM 2JBD |BID0S SUSJP|IYD 03 S|edtasoy /92 %8S/ S,uaJp|Iyd 03 s|edlasad Jo abejuadlad
‘abesaAe uopuoT Y3 ueyYl 4933199 SI p|alJuU3 8007 UIS
AJ3U23SISUOD DUOp dABY 9M Sk Jaquildas wody syabie)
9,001 4no Buneaw aq ||IM M 3B} JUSPIUOD d1e M 0z sojeasawn
SOA B J9W 20UIS dARY pUE SIY} mwww_wwn\v_uuwwhcww_o\m_wW 40y ane| 0Z/€T r_w_mm_\m %0°00T %0001 P2JINb3J UIYIIM PIMBIADI UM YDIYM
oyl ‘Jaqwaydas ul Aep suo AQ passiw buiaq (sbuiqis %1°86 S9sed uo13d9304d pjIyd Jo sbejusdiad
O0M]) 9DUDJIDJU0D MIIADJ U0I13D30.4d plIyd B 03 aNp si
SIUL "%/ 86 S| 9|edSawWi} padinbad 2yl UIYlM pamalAal
2JoM UdIym sased uoijdajold pliyo jo abejusddad syl
‘abesaAe uopuoT ayl ueyy 49139q
pue 9,0T MO[3q Y30oq SI p|aiyug ‘poob AIaA S| 90T uey)
Jamo| souewiogiad e jey) pasiubodad Ajjeuolieu si I s1eaA om] 1sed
'sieaA om] 3sed ay3 ul uejd uondajold pjiyd B U0 ua3q €T €10z aU3 Ul - 3w 3Usnbasqns 10 puoIas
SO pey /T Ucﬂcm_a u01399301d P[IyD B uo usaq Ajsnoiaaid lojany| €2/v yolen %09 %L'9 %€'9 B 10} UB| UOII0230.d PIIYD JO 2[gNs
pey 94 ‘syjuow ¢T ised ay3 bunp uejd uoid30id %L'TT 3y} BUILI023q UBIP|IYD JO SBLIUSIDd
PIlyD e 03 1o3[gns awedaq oym ualpiyd £/ 343 4O ; ’
‘sieaA om] 3sed ay3 ul uejd uopzdajold pliyo
snoinald e pey oym UaJpjiyd S3UN0d MouU J03edipul SIyl
obelany uey
SSION uopuo :ow:o._ Jojenipul




Page 40

BuIsse20.d jujauag pue AISA0D9Y 1o ‘U0OI1D9)|0) SWOdU] E_

(s24nbi4 |euld) 048 - @snoH Aingsijes
(s24nbi4 |euld) SH9'TT - SIUSAZ

(s24nbi4 |euld) Q90°/ - @1e1s3 B ||eH Ajo4
(sa4nbiq |eulq) £/8'0T - @43uad 3jepbng
(sa4nbig |euld) vH8'T/ - 913UdD SHY PRy
797'70T V1oL

€1/2102
$0

00008

SOA

(sa4nbi4 |euld) Z6£S - @SNOH Alngsijes
(sa4nbl4 |euld) pS've - SIUaAg

(sa4nbig |euld) ££5°8e - 21e1s3 B ||eH Ajlod
(saanbiq Jeulq) TE8'ST - a.3uad 3jepbng
(sa4nbi4 |euld) ¢00'0TT - 243UsD SHY PIaY|IIN
20€'$8T TV1OL

€1/2102
$0

000'0LT

(*sanianoe aanisod
u) 9|doad bunoA jo uonedpiyied

*Je3A Jeyl JO /€ Joj uado

Ajuo 21042193 pue HuipeJy 1o} UOSEIS MaU S} Ul SBM
[IBH ®U3 €T-ZTOT Ul 2J0JaJd3Y) "2T0Z dUNf YiQE Uo sem
JUSA Youne[ad 9y 'SjuaAld aJly ajeAlld pue ssauisng
10J pue ‘Uuoi3edNpa pue SJUSAD ‘salliAlde abeilay pue
S}e J0j SIDIAIDS MBU Y}IM dsnoy dlIo3siy e se ojqnd
3y} 03 pauadoal ||eH dYL 'syjuow ¢T 404 ZT-1T0T
BulnNp Juawysigingad ||nJ 104 paso|d sem ||leH AMo4 'z

"SNUSA SSaUISNq pue 3J43uad sue ue se Buipesy Jo
u0Seas 1S.1) S) Ul Sem 11 €T-ZT0Z 4e9A ayl ul a10jo4ay)
‘T10Z J3QUWSAON Ul 9SN SSBUISN( 104 2J3Usd e se pue
2J]USD S)le ue se paydunejad sem a1ua) ajepbng T
:suoseal

Buimo||0) BU) 03 NP £T/ZT0Z 40) 000’E I8 395 196.e ]

(saunbi4 |eulq) 0T - 9shoH Aungsijes
(seunbid |euld) 0SE - SIUSAT

(seunbi4 |euld) 8£8¢ - 21€1s3 B ||eH Ajlo4
(sa4nbi4 |euld) SST - 843ua) sepbng
(sa4nbiq |euld) 6TTE - 243U8D SHUY PIaYIIIN
996/ - TV.LOL

€1/210¢
0

000°€

SOA

€T-¢10¢ 404 |en)oe
9] U0 958910Ul 9%¢ e Je 39S SI 19b4e) T-ET0Z 94l

*S2DIAJSS Buljuo Jno jnoqe ajdoad Hujja) pue sallelqi|
ul sanianoe buipianoidd Aq abesn Buiseasdoul yim

JJe1s youeuq ysel pue syabiel youelq 39S am JeaA yoeg
:oouewlolad anoldwi 03 Bupye) ale am suoiloe 1eym

'sJa1)ddns aseqejep auljuo WOl pue sdpAjeue

9|6005 BIA SBWO0D BIRP BUI|UO pue S3lIe.ql| Ul paj|eisul
SJ93unod 9jdoad wo.) SBWO0D SYSIA [edISAyd J0j eiep
9y ‘buimodb s| 901A19S 4no Jo dadse Siy3 auljuo //ve
9|qISsad0e aJe ‘saseqejep 90UDJDJ9J SUI|UO ‘S|emauadd
‘suoeAtasad a|dwexa J0) ‘S9DIAIDS DJ0W Sy SIIIAIDS
1Ino 03 sse20e auljuo snid salelql| plaiyu3 03 SHSIA
|ea1sAyd Jo Jaqwinu paje|nwind ayj Moys J03edipul siyl

Sa]0N

obelany
uopuo

sjuey
uopuo

€1/2102
$0

000'00%'C

€O0T'T8 3y3 punode ssuewdojad
panoiduwil AP pue ainseaw 0])

SMAIY BAIISOd Ul uoneddied dAD

, (1aA3] |20 1k sue |je ul Jed bupiey

ece vl 91doad) sMV ay3 Ul jJuswabebus

. 9|doad BunoA pue

cee UBJP|IYD 10§ SBIHAIOR SHY JO JSGUINN
628'889' 2l1U0J309|3 pue

|en1oy SASIA Adelqi [|e Jo Jaquinn

J0jea1pu]




Page 41

abeian ue

SSION cov:oﬂ cow:ow__ 103e01pur
_ SSaUSSaPH0M B JuswAojdwig Amu_
| Ajlqeureisns g yamoln ()|
"9ouew.oad (sAep aepuajed jo
SoA s,deaA snoiaald ay) paJa1lag aAey am abueyd 1°¢T| Ze/vT mLH%_m 6 WL Jaguwinu abeiaAe) ssoueIsSWNOID Ul
pajuapadaidun Jo JeaA e ul — souewlolad Jua||9aX] 4 abuey) ijouag Joj sawil] buissad0.d
"9douew.0ad (sAep aepuajed jo saqwnu abeiane)
SoA s,deaA snoiaald ay) paJa1lag aaey am abueyd vyl CE/LT mLH%_m €T £9°€Z swied Jjouag xe] |1ouno)/buisnoy
pajuapadaidun Jo JeaA e ul — souew.lolad Jua||9ax] 4 M3N 404 sawli] buissadold

"paau auinuab ul asoyy

10} 9|ge|ieAR dpew pue palanodad bulaq ssiadoid

2Jow ul 3nsaJ |Im SIYyL “‘ybnodog ay3 UIyIm pne.y

Adueua) 9oL} 0] S924N0SaJ dJoW paRIwWwod ‘buipuny

JUSWIUIDAOD |BUJIDIXD 0} Uonippe ul ‘sey [1DUN0) Byl

‘ease Ajolid A e se pue ‘ssa2dns snoiaald 03 ang

JeaA eyl

Bulinp paJaAodad alam sajpiadodd Jo Jaquinu paosnpal

e ‘uo13ndasoldd S|yl 03 S924N0S3J JO UOISIDAIP d1elaqi|op
ay1 01 anQg ‘pneds Adueuay HBunwWiwod (3noge mH\Nﬁmmmv 0S 0S mwww_wm_wmammro_m:rw__w_‘__u_mﬂmm_mm\_/mw%.ﬂ.

BuuIyl 10) Aj3uaJind SOy J04 JUBLID19p pasealdul : : :

ue se ||9m se |1Duno) ayy 104 Adignd aAlsod

Ul pa3jnsad siyl ‘uopuo ul 9dA3} S} JO UOIIDIAUOD

|NJSsa20Ns puodas ay} Ajuo ul buinsal uoiyndasoud

SIY} 919|dwod 0] apew Sem uoisap Yy "builg)

-gns Joj jueua) e bupndasold Joj Ajunpoddo ay

pajuasaJdd yoiym auo Buipnjpoul asolde sased xajdwod

|edaAas ‘aeaA ayl buung -saiuadold jo Aianodal

2y3 uo buissndoy 924nosad uoiebiisaAul buisnoy ayl

uo A|9|0s paseq sem £1/ZT0z 404 19bJey |euiblio ayl
€102 . . "Pa13A0d3l
yatep %00°¢L %0E’EL sjuawAediang Jyauag BUISNOH JO %
AJNoIIp |eldURUL Ul S9SSauUISNg s¢ €102 . . (u01303]|0D JedA
SoA SWOS pue d3ewWI dIWOoU0dd a3idsap U0I11D3[|0d poos) \_Hm\tow.w,m Se/oc usien %0.°86 %09°86 u1) pa129||0d sy SSauUIShg JO %

0
9¢
€70C . . (uonosjj0d
SOA 93w J1Wou0d3 2)1dsap 3.t U0I3d3(|0d pooD \_Hm\t%.m,m 9Z/L1 ulen %0656 %0856 Je9A Ul) pa1da||0d X |IPUNOY) JO %
0
obelany uey

SeIoN uopuo cow:o._ lojedipul




Page 42

0f

ssauljues|) g bulpAday ‘@1sep Auu_

%06 43N0
buibesane ‘anosduw) 03 panuiuod sey €10z A pue 7 Soom g
soA Iudy ut Souewopad pue 9,08 3e 398 USaq sey B8y | 1) 57y | gz/TZ €1/210z|  %00°08 %5558 uIyIM passaoud suonesijdde JayI0
PI-€T10C UL 'SUOISIDIP JO SSaulwRy 3y} saoldull 03 9%€°08 :suonedijdde buluue|d jo buissadoid
aoe|d ur 3nd usaq sey ueld uoioe uy ‘(%S8) £T-210T ° YRR : :
JO Jayuenb |euly ay3 ul paaoidwi souewdoyiad ayl
04,8/ JoA0 Buibeiane ‘anoidwil 01 panuiuod sey
€702 Ae pue |ludy ul @ouewdoyad pue 9,0/ 3B 19S bz Soom g
soA cwmm%\,moﬁw%;w Yo O and uesg oy ueid vome Uy| | 104 V| ve/ze €1/z10z|  %00°S9 %obb 65 UM passad0.d suonesyidde Jouli
3061B3 959 BY3 JO HOYS ||3S Sem Ing “(%E9) ET-2T10T %9°89 rsuoiedydde buiuueld Jo bulssado.d
JO Jayuenb |euly ay3 ul paaoidwi souewdoyad ayl
%8 03 paAoidwi Jayny abeiane Ae |HdY %6/ 1d192ad Jo sAep g ulyIm
SOA pa22Xa 03 £T0Z U2Je B a4 ul panoidwi aouewdoyiad €1/270C %862 paJajsibad ate jey) suonedidde
‘ue|d uonde ue jo uondnpoJiul 3yl buimojjod Buruue|d pijea e Jo abejuadiad
abeuan ue
SSION :ou:oM :ow:om_ Jojesipug
Buluueld (q)|
£1/90/+0 91epdn jseq
(3{n*02'gamsIwouU  MMM)
So13s1je3s |euoljeN 104 32140 |yl
AQ papiaoad ‘uoijewdojul 39x4eW Inoge| [eIDIJ0 924N0S
9belaAy uopuoT jsuiebe jos jobie]
'9JeD |RID0S puR UY3j|eay Wody Z6 pue Sa2IAI9S Jodsuedy (9 03 91
woJd) GZT ‘|1e3ad wod) THT ‘saolaias poddns ssauisng €1/2102 . 5 . abe) uone|ndod abe bupop :plaRUl
SIA woJy §87 ‘suonisod asay} papiaoid aAey SUOREIO| T9T e/u B/u O %6°89 %619 %99 U1 23ed JuswAojdws :ppRul g1 Aq
‘11oUN0D paJojiuow 103edipul shidaJjuadqor
plau3 Aq paJojiuow se ‘ybnoloqg ayjy ul sassauisng
AQ pajeatd usaq aAey sqol mau 40T 21ep OL
*ZT0Z 29Q Jo pua 03] pouad Jayenb unoj 1oy sI e3eQq
'00S'#0¢ Jo uone|ndod abe
bupjiom e jsuiebe ‘(sjeway 00S5'SS pue ajew 00S’'TL
) 3uswAojdwa uj 9jdoad 000’/ZZT sjuasatdad o6 19
€107 YyoJen ul 9jdoad
BunoA 133N £6€ 949M BI3YL "%t 'y 919M S13IAN
9J9YM yjuow 3Se| Wolj uoidnpad e S| SIYl "%T'{ 1e
S133N SMOUS ydJe|y 10) elep 3saie| 9yl ‘paplodad os|e
SEM 047 { 9J9UM JBDA 1SB| J0J UOISSIWLgNS JUd|[9IXD dY3
saydjew syl "%S'S Jo 1964ey e jsujebe si SIyl ‘%'t 44 (133N)
SaA SI 34Q 9Y3 03 4edA £T0Z-2T0Z 2U3 J40J a4nbly papodau J10) aAY| 2zZ/ST %02t Buruiesy 4o JuswAojdwa ‘uonedNpa
|eul} ay3 snyjy pue abesaae yjuow ¢ ay] ‘Alenuer %8’ Ul JOU 24 OYMm Sp|o JedA 8T 03 9T
- J9qWDAON J0OJ SUOISSIWINS SYjuow € ayj Jo abeiane
ue bupjey Aq paje|nojed si aunbiy JesA jJo pus ayl
%/, ‘AY UOpUOT
%8S AV pue|bug
abeuan ue
SSION :ou:oM :ow:om_ Jojesipug




IT

sajey WD Amv_

ssiIuNwWwo) buons Amv_

(se@1324e610) JoquianoN
ul sem aoueldwod uou Jayyo Ajuo ayl ‘(joyodje)

sjonpold pajolasald

SoA jueldwod uou sem auo ‘€10z YoJepw pue Atenuer €1/2102 %6
usaM3laq IN0 pallied S1s9) oM) Byl JO ‘eoueldwod ° abe Jo ajes s9jes By} SoNpay
uou uj p3Nsad SIS 7T 40 N0 ¢ ‘€T1/2T0T Ul
U0I109104d |BJUSLIUOIIAUT AE_
buiysodAly 1C Hunysod
JO |9A9] 9|qeidadoeun ue bujaey suoi3ed0| pajdadsul Joj any| T12/6 €1/2102 %0°'T %0°T -Al4 JO |9A9] 9|geidaddeun ue sey
006 J0 1IN0 € Ajuo 03 s@jenba souewdoyad siyl %9°'T jey) pue| paydadsul Jo abejusdiad
"396.483 %7 By} UIyIm 44
saA sem @ouewlopad [enuue ay3 38y} BULINSUD ‘o6g T 10y ony| zT/TT £1/210C %0°C %0°Z :&Hw mm%vw_uwm_mmwﬁ%wmm&mhwu
SeM £T-7T0zZ 40 ASAins |eul} syl Joj 2ouewdoyiad syl %Z't :
"1964e3 BY3 URY] J9139q %T (44
Aleau sem 2ouewIopad [ENUUE DU3 38y} BULINSUS ‘0G 103 9AY| ZZ/TT €1/2107 %0°L %0°6 m:p_u\__wmwmm%vw_uwm_vn_nmwn“wwuwmm&wuwwu
SeM £T-7T0Z 40 ASAJINS |eul} ay3 Joj aduewdoyiad syl %69 :
"196483 95 By} ulyum €C
saA l]oM sem souewLiopad [enuue au} 18Uy BULINSUS ‘07| | 10y aAY| £2/0T £1/2102 %0°S %02 en hm%>w_uwm_vn._u_m%owuwmm&muwms
SeM £T-2T0¢ 40 ASAINS |eul} ay3 404 Sduewoyad syl %%b°S Y3l puej p 13 d
'9|q1ssod
ue umm._‘_umwwmmﬁrwwum\_wm__mom@m_ u_un_v muu m\_ﬁmm_ﬂ__w\»w__w._vwﬂmwu% _w_mw SVl /T ejep Hupsodwod pue buipAdaa ‘asnad 1oy
SoA 01 Spua) JeaA oy Jo 91eJ BulPAISL 359MO| Byl ybnoyly %¢'SE| €D ON gr/eroe %00°8¢ %0e’sE JUSs 91seM pjoyasnoy Jo a6eIuIIad
"9 pue 100 usamiaqg poliad ayj J10j 91ep 03 paplodad
1saybiy 4no si 949 /€ J0 Souewdolad €0 syl
"TT0¢ ul poltad
juajeAinba ay3 uo uondnpals yy/630z7 e syuasaidal
son pue pjoysaiyl 39b4e3 ayy uiyum 635 si yy/636'0sp SV1 1 ejep €1/2102 o p pjoyssnoy
40 @duewlopad 10z 22@-4dy ‘pjoyasnoy Jad b306S v'LLE| €D ON €0| U/6%00°95t yy/6360°'609 Jad a3sem pjoyasnoy |enpisay
Jo 1964e) JB3A JO pud 3y3 builedw spiemo)] spuaJy
|lenuue snoiaaad uodn paseq 39s aJle syabuaey Alajend




Page 44

SOA

hETo¥]=3]

A10308(edy Ajyguow ay3 buipaadxa sI aduewdoiad
JUDJIND "JUBWIRAI] DAIIIBMD Ul SJasn Bnip Jo siaquinu
3y ul aseauoul 32643 99t B SI SIYL "890T S! 396.e)y
puD JeaA 9y} pue sjudld ZE/Z SBM Uddely Ul auljaseq
9yl "(wa3isAs buliojiuol juswiead) bniq |euonen)
SW.LAN Aq pajepijea usaq jou

sey pue ejep |ed0| S| Adenuefr 03 300 1yl 9jou asesd|d

£T0¢C
Atenuer

LT0'T

SOA

‘abesane pue|bug ayj

U3IM Bul| Ul SI SIYL "suol3s|dwod [Nyssadns JO %28 T
J0 19b4e) pud JedA B UO paseq S| Siyl ‘A103da(ed)
Alyauow ay3 buipasdxa S| aduewdoiad 1yva

Sa]0N

obelany
uopuo-]

sjuey
uopuoT

€T10¢
yatep

%¢8'vT

4!

ceL

sJasn joyodje Aldewid Buipnppxa
‘(obe Jo sieaA 8T 19A0) suasn bniQg
|IV - Juswieau] 9AI309}43 ul siaquuinn

%9°L

:s1asn |joyooje Adewiad Buipnppxa
‘(obe Jo siedA 8T JOAO) JudWIRAI]
ul s19sn bnuq ||e 404 (%) 21ey
uol3a|dwo) |nyssaoons diysiaulied

Jojeaipu]

Buieg |I°9M B Yl|eoH Su_

SOA

"£10¢

[4dy JO se 9T 03 SIy3 paonpaJ yolym uoije|sibas| 03
sabueyd ay3 Jo peaye swiPIA AQ JbunoA bulAjiauspl
J1eaA siyy usxepapun 30|id uopuo] YIoN e se

|loM se 22ouaplyuod pue buijiodas pasoidwi yioq 309)4a.4
0} A1 SI Yalym ‘€1-ZT0¢ Ul S9sed AQ 4o Jlaquinu
paseaJtou] ue uaas aAey ap “(A1u3 JO Julod 91buls)
30dS Aouabe-i3nw mau ayj ul aouasald AQ Jejnbad

e buipnpul ‘siy3 aAslyoe sn djay 03 sassaosodd jo
obuel e aARY 9M ‘SHN pue 321|0d 9yl Se yons sapuabe
Aax Jay3o yum diysiauied ul Bupdop) TuoieSIWIIDIA
jeadad Jo sadueyd J1dy3 aonpad 03 Japdo ul (AQ)
9DOUD|OIA D13SWIOP JO SWIPIA YIM HIOM 03 S| Wie InQ

e/u

e/u

€1/210¢
0

%¥°6T

SOA

‘118 %E’8

ue uUddS sey 901|0d ueljodolid|y dy3 ‘porad swes

3Y3 JOAQ "S20UD4J0 AI2qQqod pue SWld JDIYSA Jojow
U] S9seaJddap 03 anp SI YdIym ‘ZT-110Z Ul polad swes
9y3 03 uosiedwod ul JedA |elouBUl SIY) 10} S9OUDL0
QWD SAISINboe Ul UoIIPNPal °,Z 'y B US(q Sey aJayl

ze/1e

£10¢
yalep

8¥8L

SOA

asealdap
%SG'G B Ud3S sey 201|104 ueyjodoJia|y ay3 ‘poriad swes
3yl JSAQ "ZT-TT0Z Ul pouad swes ayy 01 uosuedwod

ul JeaA enueuly Syl %0°Z Aq |19 WD 2301

€T10¢
yalep

€26'CC

SOA

'sbueb pue sp1b jJo sanss| ay3
0jU] YoJeasad pue suoissas ul-||eD sbues ano Buipnjoul
‘S1y3 opjoey 03 Aemuapun 3Iom Jo AJalieA e S| a4ay) pue

pJeog saniunwwo) Jabuoils g Jajes ayy 104 sanoud
Jea|p om) aJde sIb pue uswom suiebe 2dUd|0IA

pue 22U3|0IA YINoA ‘pollad awes siyl JOA0 ||B) %9°S
B U93S sey ||eJaA0 301104 ueiljodolis 9yl ‘¢T-TT10¢C
Ul poliad swes ayj} Uo asealdul 9,6'Z B sjuasaldal
€T-2T0C ul saouayo Ainful yaum adu3|0IA GOL'T dYL

Sa]0N

obelany
uopuo-]

sjuey
uopuoT

€10¢C
yoJepn

1991

S0L'T

%9°LT

92UD|0IA
213SaWOp JO sjuspioul jeaday

8¥8L

SawiLd Jo Jaquinu
- 9184 3w aAnIsinboe snolss

£€e6'ee

S90UBLO |B101 - AJoieS Ajlunwwio)

199'T

Aanful yim 20U 0IN

J0jea1pu]




Page 45

el

SOA

'sanbua auoyds|ay J0j swny
Mead pue popuad buljjig ulew Xej |1DUNOD papn|dul
SIYl "pPaAISdal S||BD T699E JO INO palamsue S||ed 8EHEs

%t €6 = 2ouewlopad JesA ‘yddep 104 S| uMoys a4nbi4

Sa1oN

obelany
uopuo]

juey
uopuo

€10¢
yalep

%S6

%7116

(000T 6££8 020 J2quinN duoyds|a])
213U SIDIAIDS JaW0ISN) S,[1PUN0D
Y3 Ag paisamsue s||ed jo abejuaduad

J107e21puf

JoeIUO0) JowWolsn) Auu_

(s493s169.4 9seasip uo ajdoad jo

HoQ ay3 Ag papiaoad Jaqwinu a3ewiisa ue) uoleindod
21q1b1|2 3Y3 sI sIY3 ‘00¥6£ S! J0jeuiwousp ayL

'00S6 40 19b1e} B

jsuiebe paAladal SHI9YD Yieay £0SS Ud3q SARY 243y

€1/2102
0

%€6°9

*(sJ93s1694
9seas|p uo 9jdoad jo HoQg ay3 Ag papiaoad Jaquinu
ajewsa ue) uonejndod 2|qibyd ay3 SI SIY3 ‘00v6/

S| lojeujwousp 9yl 006ST 40 39bJe) e jsuiebe 94/71
sem $0O-TO Ul paJaJ0 SHI2Ud yjjeay Jo siaquinu ayL

€1/210¢
0

%0¢

SOA

aun[ YiZT anp st ejep O "$O ul buiwod
s19)Inb jo Ajuolew ‘sieninb z/GT si 39baey |enuuy

€1/2102
€0

0S6

SOA

1edA

1se| uo saoe|d 8 jo jusawanosdw] aApRIsod AJSA e SI SIyL
"uopuoT ul zg/ze ol paxued si pue % Hg plRIUT
*AjIsaqo pue jybiamiano

40 sysu 3saybiy ayy yum sdnoub asoyy o3 payabaey

pue ybnouoqg ayj ssoJoe AjjestaAiun yioq ‘pauue|d aie
pue 2oe|d uaxe} aAey SaljAIROe |euoizowold jo abuels vy
95970 40 JYBISMIDA0 D49M OYM UdIP|IYyd

JO Saljlwey 104 DIIAIDS Jauled} Y3|eay dY3 RBIA Spew dJam
Joddns jo sua)j0 (9 JeaA pue uondadad ul ualap|iyo
sainseaw swwelboid juswainsesw pjiyd |euoleu
3y3) |ooyos je buunseaw pue buiybiam Huimojoy
sjuawauanseaw jybiam g Jybiay s,us.p(iyd ay3 yim
papiAnolad a1om sjuaded ||e ‘desA djwspede 3se| Siyl

%€ e

ze/ee

Z1/1102

%00°9¢

SOA

‘SjuapISal |BIO|
Ag asn Juayluny abeinooua 03 paJojiey Y pajen|eAs buiaq
aJe 9say) pue ybnoioq ayj ssotde papinold suoissas
aJde a1ayl !(y-0 pabe) uaip|iyd pue sajjiwey) 104
suoissas Ajiaoe |edisAyd pue bBuies Ayyjesy apiaoad
0] JJB1S 243Udd S,uadp|iyd 03 papiaold ussq sey bujuied |
ybiam buiso| ul

uswom spoddns pue 341 03 Je3s Ayjeay e 326 saigeq
saJnsus siyl - £10¢ buunp $z 4oyiny e uiesy oy sueid
aJe a9yl 'ybnoioqg ayj ssolde SaJ43Udd SUBJp|IYd JO
obuels e je uswom 03 Hoddns apinoid pue paules] aJom
siad|ay buipasjisealq z1:9]A1sa) Jaiyyjesy e bujuiene
ul poddns juem pue JybiIdMISA0 B18 OYM USWOM
jueubaud BulAjiauspl siauledy yjjeay pue saAIMpiw
X9S9|PPIIN YHON Sopnjoul abe uoiydsdsy yoea.

uaJp|Iyd 240439 A}Saqo juaAald 03 MJom diystaulied

%L°0T

ze/ee

Sa]0N

obelany
uopuo

sjuey
uopuo

ZT/1102

%0°CT

%L1

(sAnEINWND) paAIadal
-S323yD yijesH SHN - yijesH 2liqnd

%6t

(aAnne|nWND) paJalyjo
-S934D YijesH SHN - Yi|esH aliqnd

T€S'T

slapinb
Bupjows xoam § - YyijeaH d1qnd

%0 ¥

9 JB9A Ul UaIp|Iyd
abe |ooyds Alewud ul ANsSaqo

%€EET

uondaosay ul ualpjiyo
abe |ooyos Atewud ul ANsSaqo

J0jea1pu]




Page 46

SOA

sAep QT ulyyum pied
9J9M SIDI0AUI JO 94,G 28 "POAIRIAI /7S ZTT JO S9DI0AUI
00£'60T Syuasaldal sAep Qg UIYHUM SDDI0AUI %ET L6

o1
104 BAY
%816

91/€

€1/2102

%S6

's309(0.4d Jo uoizejuswa|dwi

pue suojjelIeA |RUOSEDS 0} 9Np 93BN3IdN|} ued

SJ9quUUNU JUSPIdUT W] 30eJ3U0D 3y3 Inoybnoayl 1w
u29q sAem|e sey jJusWaINSeaW SIY] ‘U0IIN|0SaI JUBPIdUl
10} pOPa2Xd pue paAllyoe 9q 03 SaNUU0D V1S

€1/2102
$0

%S6

"€T0T Yd4ew 1€ Ag obeys podas yelp
0} ue|d }IPNY [BUISIUT BU} JO %/6 BUlIBAIIRp ‘€1/2T10C
ul |[9M AjjeaJ paw.oyiad weal JpNy |euJdajul 9yl

€1/2102
$0

%S6

J9jsuely Dvg
Aq pied mou aJte siuajddns uno jo Ajluofew 3sea ayl

€1/2102
$0

%S6

‘syjuowl
$Z 31se| ay3 Jano aoe|d uaxe) buiaey sa|es Jo WZZF
J9A0 U3IM SS320NS sueaA snolnald ay3 uo spjing dJom
SIyl ‘syosse bujwdiojiadiapun Jo snidins jo suopoesued)
¥T eIA paAaiyde sem ainby SIyL *000°'005'9F 4O

24nb1y sajes 1ob4e} ay) JOA0 9SeaJdul 9,09 B Ul pa3jnsad
000°00%'0TF JO £T/2T0T 40§ paASIYdE S|esodsip |enjoy

€1/2102
$0

00000597

ssas0.4d

93e40d10) s,|1oUN0) ay3 Jo apisino aoe|d ul sassedold
jJuswabeuew 23U3SER UMO JI9Y) dARY S|O0YDS
"S|00YIS Ul 9DUSSCe SSaUMIIS 10) 39S S| 19b4ey oN

sAep

abessne 98'9 = 314 abelane $96'/1S0| SAep 9°650°+€
:s|jooyods

€TOC'E0'TE O3 CTOC' V' T
woJy poriad ay3 J40) 3duasqe SSauddIS sjuasaldal eyeq

€1/2102
0

989

14

%t6

sjuswnedaq ||e
104 sAep Q€ ulylm pied sa210AUl JO o

%98°66

SiN0OY g UIY}IM paA|0SaJ Sjuapioul
"L1'T (T Ayuaass) Ajold ybiH

%L6

3|npayds
uo 94 - awwelbold JIpNy |eutajug

%896

sJ91ddns
0} suopesuel) SOyg 21U043d3|T 9%

000005213

awuwesboid
s|esodsiq Ajadoud s,|1ouno)

LY'S

(sdopenb § Buijjod) |puuosiad
Jooyos - sAeq IS abeuany

SOA

sAep abeiane ¢4°8
= J14 abeiane z/y£/150| sAep 0T1°€82'6¢ :93elo0dio)

€T0C°E0'TE 01 €TOC'¥0O'TO
woJy poriad ayj J40j 3dUasge SSauddIS sjuasaldal ejeq

S3joN

abelany
uopuoT

juey
uopuo

€1/2102
$0

£¥'8

19'8

(s4openb ¢ bujjjod)
JJe1s a3eao0dio) - sAeq IS abeuaay

Jojed1puf

slojedipuy 93ed40di0) [1Puno) AE_




Page 47 Agenda Item 10

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2013/2014 REPORT NO. 25

MEETING TITLE AND DATE: Agenda—Part: 1 |item: 10

Cabinet 10 July 2013 Subject: Alleged Construction Industry
Blacklisting

REPORT OF: Wards: All

Director of Finance, Key Decision No: 3742

Resources and Customer

Services Cabinet Member consulted:
Clir Andrew Stafford

Contact officer and telephone number:
David Levy 0208 379 3212
E mail: david.levy@enfield.gov.uk

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report highlights the practice of ‘blacklisting’ which has allegedly been used
by construction companies to restrict the employment opportunities for workers
in the industry based on their affiliation to trade unions.

The report sets out Enfield’s proposed responses to these allegations and
highlights the Borough’s ongoing commitment to the creation of well-paid jobs
for local people. It also highlights Enfield’s commitment to Fairness for All, and
the provision of job opportunities for everyone. The Council will not tolerate
illegal employment practices, and has set out in this report the steps it will take
to minimise the risk of such situations arising in the future.

2, RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is recommended to

a) Condemn the alleged practice of blacklisting by construction companies.

b) Supports the national union campaign by not allowing tenders from companies
who subscribe to the use of unlawful construction industry blacklists from the
date of this Cabinet decision.

c) Agree to the amendment of the Council’'s procurement documentation for future
construction projects, which will request bidders to confirm that they do not
subscribe to the use of unlawful construction industry ‘blacklists’ and exclude
tenderers who refuse to do so.

d) Encourage other publicly funded organisations to adopt the same approach in
their procurement practices.




Page 48

BACKGROUND

A number of construction companies have been challenged about
allegations of supporting the existence of and subscribing to unlawful
construction industry ‘blacklists’, which detail covertly gathered
information on construction trade unionism, militant tendencies, trouble
making, etc. Blacklisting is an unacceptable practice and cannot be
condoned. Various unions including GMB, Unite and Unison are
leading a national campaign aimed at forcing those who have been
involved in blacklisting to apologise to those who have been affected
by it.

It is alleged that the construction industry blacklist was collated by the
Consulting Association (a private consultancy) and was then provided
at a cost to construction companies as they sought to recruit/avoid new
workers. Action was taken against the Consulting Association for
misuse of data under the Data Protection Act..

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED
Not applicable.
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

Owing to the concentration of construction activity in and around large
cities, many of those alleged to have been discriminated against live in
the country’s major cities, and this practice may have disadvantaged
residents of Enfield.

Given the potential impact on residents of the area, this Council —

(a) Deplores the use of unlawful blacklisting;

(b) Supports the national union campaign by not allowing tenders from
companies who subscribe to the use of unlawful construction industry
blacklists from the date of this Cabinet decision;

(c) Agrees to the amendment of the Council's procurement
documentation for future construction projects, which will request
bidders to confirm that they do not subscribe to the use of unlawful
construction industry ‘blacklists’ and exclude tenderers who refuse to
do so.

d) Encourages other publicly funded organisations to adopt the same
approach in their procurement practices.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND
CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS

6.1  Financial Implications

There are no financial implications arising directly from agreeing the
recommendations in this report.



6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.3

Page 49

Legal Implications

The Employment Relations Act 1999 (Blacklists) Regulations
2010 ("the Regulations”) generally prohibit the compilation, use,
sale or supply of prohibited lists.

A prohibited list is a list which

(a) contains details of persons who are or have been members
of trade unions or persons who are taking part or have taken
part in the activities of trade unions, and

(b) is compiled with a view to being used by employers or
employment agencies for the purposes of discrimination in
relation to recruitment or in relation to the treatment of workers.

Blacklists containing details of trade unions members and
activists whose purpose is to discriminate against workers on
grounds of trade union membership or activities, would be
regarded as a prohibited list. The Regulations gives rights to
persons to complain to an employment tribunal if such person
has been refused employment or employment agency services
or has been subjected to a detriment for a reason related to a
blacklist. The Regulations make such conduct unlawful,
however, apart from a prosecution under the Data Protection Act
of 1998, there is no other legislation in force making such
unlawful action a criminal offence.

Regulation 23(4) of the Public Contract Regulations 2006
implements Article 45(2) of the Public Sector Procurement
Directive (2004/18/EC) and gives contracting Authorities a
discretionary right to debar contractors that meet any of the
requirements set out in Article 45(2). One such discretionary
right is if the contractor is guilty of grave misconduct (a serious
wrongful, improper or unlawful conduct) in the course of its
business profession proven by any means which the contracting
authority can demonstrate.

The Council can therefore consider adding elements to the
Councils procurement documents requesting confirmation from
bidders as to their use of such unlawful construction industry
blacklists. Any such additions to the Councils procurement
documents will need to be in a form approved by the Assistant
Directors of Legal and Procurement.

Property Implications

None



10.

1.

Page 50

KEY RISKS

Amending the Council's procurement documentation as detailed in the
report should significantly reduce the risk of engaging companies that
use blacklists.

IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES

8.1  Fairness for All

Approval of the recommendations will ensure that trade union
members are not discriminated against in terms of employment
opportunities

EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

If approved, the recommendations will positively impact on
discriminatory practices. This will result on positive benefits for all
Enfield residents who are union members looking for employment in
the construction industry. For this reason, it is not deemed relevant or
proportionate to carry out an equality impact assessment/analysis.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

There are no performance management implications arising directly
from agreeing the recommendations in this report.

PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS

This proposal will help ensure that health and safety considerations are
not overlooked on construction projects which will contribute to
minimising public health issues on major schemes.

Background Papers

None



MEETING TITLE AND DATE:

Page 51 Agenda Item 12

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2013/2014 REPORT NO. 27

Agenda - Part: 1 ltem: 12

Cabinet — 10 July 2013 Subject: Alma Phase 1 (Academy Street)

JOINT REPORT OF:

Development - Compulsory Purchase Order

Ray James, Director of Wards: Ponders End

Health, Housing and Adult
Social Care and James

Rolfe, Director of Finance, Cabinet Member consulted: Clir Oykener
Resources & Customer Cabinet Member consulted: Clir Stafford
Services

Contact officer and telephone number:
Peter George (x3318) / Nick Fletcher (x1781)
Email: nick.fletcher@enfield.gov.uk

1.1

1.2

1.3

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of the report is to recommend to Cabinet the making of the
Academy Street CPO to enable the acquisition of the third party land required
to deliver the Academy Street development. This is required as a contingency
measure should the Council fail to reach a negotiated settlement with the third
party landowners.

The development is of strategic importance to the Council because the new
homes will be used to re-house residents from the Alma Estate which is subject
to a major regeneration initiative. These homes will be the first new council
homes built in the Borough in over forty years.

This report contains the relevant documentation required to make the Academy
Street CPO 2013.

2.1

2.2

2.3

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is requested to note the draft statement of reasons attached to this
report which sets out the justification for making the Academy Street CPO 2013
in relation to the red-line land shown at Appendix 1.

Cabinet is requested to note the indicative timeline for the CPO process for the
Academy Street CPO 2013 attached to this report as at Appendix 3.

Cabinet delegates authority to the Director of Health, Housing and Adult Social
Care in consultation with the Director of Finance, Resources and Customer
Services:




Page 52

a)

b)

c)

d)

To publish the draft London Borough of Enfield (Academy Street) Compulsory
Purchase Order 2013, to seek confirmation of the Secretary of State and if
confirmed, implement the Order.

To modify the draft Statement of Reasons, attached as Appendix 4, the Order
Plan and effect any other procedural requirements including (but not limited to)
the publication and service of all notices and the presentation of the Council’s
case at any public inquiry;

To acquire any interests in land within the Order area by agreement and the
making of payments equivalent to statutory compensation and the provision of
property or services in lieu of compensation, in contemplation of the Order being
made.

If and when the Order is confirmed then to acquire by compulsion and make
payments of statutory compensation, if voluntary agreements cannot be
reached.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

BACKGROUND

The Academy Street site is a 0.6 hectare site in Ponders End the
majority of which is owned by the Council and is sited adjacent to the
new Oasis Hadley Academy School. In July 2012, Cabinet approved
the development of the site for a 100% affordable residential scheme to
re-house Alma Estate residents affected by the regeneration.

The site has been temporarily referred to as Academy Street due to the
adjacency of the new Academy School. Following discussions with the
Alma Residents Association it is proposed, subject to the outcome of
the consultation exercise, to formally rename the new street Dujardin
Mews after the decorated Enfield Olympian Charlotte Dujardin.

The Council appointed Karakusevic Carson Architects and Maccreanor
Lavington Architects in autumn 2012 to design a mews street on the
site. On behalf of the Council, the design team worked up detailed
proposals and submitted a detailed planning application for 38 new
homes, which was approved at Planning Committee on May 24™ 2013.

The intention is to provide 19 Council rented properties for existing
Alma secure tenants, and 19 shared-equity properties which will be
made available to Alma resident leaseholders. These new affordable
homes are essential to enable the successful rehousing of Alma Estate
residents.

Colleagues from across the Council including Development & Estate
Renewal, Urban Design, Traffic & Transportation, Development




3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

Page 53

Management, Planning Policy, Neighbourhood Regeneration and also
Enfield Homes, were involved in formulating the design proposals and
a design representative from the GLA gave advice throughout the
process and was supportive of the approach taken and outcome of the
scheme proposal. Specialist technical advice from quantity surveyors
and engineers was provided from consultants on behalf of the Council
and the appointed design team, which informed the decision making
process and outcome of the proposal.

The design team presented their draft proposals at a resident
consultation event on 11" December at Ponders End Youth Centre.
This event was well attended by Alma residents and of the 48
questionnaires that were returned, 90% were in favour of the site being
used for new housing. There were no objections to the proposals from
any residents including those living adjacent to the site on Falcon
Crescent.

The procurement of a house-builder has commenced, with five
shortlisted firms being invited to tender during the first week of July
2013. The preferred house-builder is expected to be appointed in
September 2013, with a start on site currently programmed for
November 2013. A construction programme of twelve months is
currently anticipated.

The CPO is specifically required in relation to two third party owned
land interests:

> The carriageway running through Gardiner Close
> The public right of way on the western edge of the Academy
Street site

The third party land has been highlight in the red-line plan appended at
Appendix 1.

Development of the Academy Street site has always been on the
premise that the Council can agree both permanent vehicular access
for prospective residents and temporary construction vehicle access
along Gardiner Close, which runs through the Robbins Hall site to the
immediate south west of the Academy Street site.

The Council is negotiating with representatives of Viridian, the
landowner of the Robbins Hall site, and negotiations are on-going. The
Council is seeking to acquire the freehold of the carriageway (Land
shown edged and hatched red on the Plan at Appendix 1 or
alternatively a right of access over the carriageway to enable vehicular
access into the Academy Street site.

The Council is also negotiating with those adjoining owners and third
parties who have a registered interest in the land over which the public
right of way exists (Land shown edged and cross hatched red on the



3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

Page 54

Plan at Appendix 1). The intention is to incorporate the land over which
the public right of way exists and to relocate the public right of way
along the new road constructed on Academy Street or via Nelson Road
and Gardiner Close. An order for the extinguishment of the right of way
will be sought by the Council either under section 32 of the Acquisition
of Land Act 1981 or sections 251 or 258 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 in order to enable this and the land will need to be
appropriated for planning purposes to extinguish third party rights.

The CPO of the section of the public right of way is part of the scheme
which has achieved planning consent; this land was required to make a
scheme with properties on both side of a street acceptable in planning
terms. The reasons are set out in full in the attached Statement of
Reasons.

In accordance with CPO best practice, the Council will continue to
endeavour to reach a negotiated settlement with all third party land-
owners with an interest in the land within the CPO red-line boundary;
CPO powers, once obtained, will only be used where a negotiated
settlement cannot be reached. The Academy Street CPO 2013 will
affect those interests within the red line attached in Appendix 1 of this
Part 1 report.

The Academy Street CPO 2013 is being made pursuant to section
226(1)(a) of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act which authorises
the Council to acquire land compulsorily subject to following the
procedures laid down by the Acquisition of Land Act 1981.

Land which is the Subject of the Academy Street CPO 2013

The land to be included in the CPO includes:

e All land included in the red line drawing attached to this report
(Appendix 1)

Description of the proposed Academy Street development

Ponders End is a priority regeneration area for the Council and the
Alma Estate Regeneration Programme is the flagship estate renewal
scheme for the borough. The Academy Street development plays an
important role within this programme.

The Academy Street development will include some of the first new
Council homes in approximately forty years. Planning permission was
granted for a total of 38 new homes, of which the tenure will be split
equally between Council rented properties and shared equity
properties. These new homes are exclusive for Alma Estate residents
and will assist in the decanting of Council tenants, and re-housing of
resident leaseholders.



3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

Page 55

The bedroom mix for the scheme can be broken down as follows:
- 6 x 1 bedroom units

- 8 x 2 bedroom units

- 20 x 3 bedroom units

- 4 x 4 bedroom units

The development meets the requirements of the Council's Core
Strategy in providing new family homes and the homes will be built to
Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4, except for 4 units which will be
built up to Code for Sustainable Homes Level 5 (the first homes in the
Borough to achieve Code for Sustainable Homes Level 5).

The Council has taken an approach to the development that
emphasises design quality, by ensuring that the detailed design
specification is ready before the tendering stage, and novating the
architects to work with the build contractor. Being the first new Council
homes in decades, and one of the first new developments in Ponders
End for some time, this scheme will set the benchmark for quality
housing in the area.

Purpose and Justification for seeking to compulsorily acquire the
Legal interests in the Academy Street development boundary

Compulsory purchase of the legal interests of the third party
landowners will enable the development of the site to provide new
homes, which will re-house tenants and leaseholders affected by the
Alma Estate Regeneration and ease the pressure on the Council to get
vacant possession of Phase 1 of the regeneration programme for the
new developer partner to commence works on site on schedule.

Planning Position

As described above, the scheme has achieved a full detailed planning
consent.

The London Borough of Enfield’s Core Strategy was adopted at
Cabinet in November 2010. The Core Strategy explains that the
development of the key opportunity sites in Ponders End and
particularly the former gasholder site within the South Street area is a
Council priority.

The North East Enfield Area Action Plan (NEEAAP) is currently being
drafted and the Academy Street site is proposed for new housing within
the document.

Human Rights
The Council, as a public body, is under a duty to consider whether the

exercise of its powers interacts with rights protected by the European
Convention on Human Rights. Section 6 of the Human Rights Act



4.1

5.1

5.2

Page 56

1998 prohibits public authorities from acting in a way, which is
incompatible with those rights. Please refer to the attached Statement
of Reasons for further detail.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

An alternative option considered is for the Council not to make a CPO
for Academy Street 2013. Without CPO powers the Council cannot
guarantee that the requisite land can be assembled to enable the
consented scheme to be delivered.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

To provide the Council with a legal option to ensure that vehicular
access can be secured to enable the development to take place and
that a key pedestrian route is adopted and integrated within the
scheme to ensure much needed new homes can be delivered.

The Council cannot guarantee delivery of the planning consented
development without CPO powers. These new homes are needed to
enable the delivery of the Alma Regeneration Programme.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND
CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS

6.1  Financial Implications

6.1.1 The cost of developing the Academy Street site is factored into
the latest HRA Business Plan. The cost is profiled into the
current financial year and 2014/15. The HRA Business Plan also
includes income and costs associated with managing 19 Council
rented properties, income from shared equity and HCA grant
income.

6.1.2 ltis anticipated that the costs of obtaining a CPO on the
Academy Street site will be funded from the HRA general
balances.

6.2 Legal Implications

6.2.1 Under section 226 (1) (a) of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 a local authority has a general power to make a
compulsory acquisition of any land in their area in order to
facilitate the carrying out of development, redevelopment or
improvement in relation to the land.

6.2.2 In order to exercise the s.226 powers the local authority must be
satisfied that the proposed development/improvement is likely to
contribute towards any of the following objects, namely the



7.1

8.1

8.1.1

8.2

8.2.1

8.3

8.3.1

Page 57

promotion or improvement of the economic or social or
environmental well-being of their area.

6.2.3 For the purposes of the CPO it is immaterial by whom the
redevelopment is to be carried out, i.e. the Council does not
need to undertake the development itself.

6.2.4 The making of the CPO must be In accordance with the
Council’s Property Procedure Rules.

6.3 Property Implications

6.3.1 The making of the CPO will support the on-going negotiations
with the owners of the land that the Council is seeking to acquire
and the rights over that land that we are seeking to extinguish.

6.3.2 Any acquisition of property interests by the Council must be in
accordance with the Council’'s Property Procedure Rules and be
approved by the Assistant Director of Finance, Resources and
Customer Services (Property Services).

KEY RISKS

This is included in Part 2 of the report.
IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES
Fairness for All

The Alma Estate Regeneration Programme contributes to this aim by
tackling inequality and access to social housing by providing new
homes. The Academy Street development makes up part of this
programme.

Growth and Sustainability

The Alma Estate Regeneration Programme contributes to this priority
by building strong and sustainable futures for our residents. The
scheme is the one of the first steps towards delivering the planned
regeneration of the Ponders End Priority Area, and housing growth, as
set out in the NEEAAP and the Core Strategy.

Strong Communities
The community plays a central role in driving forward change and

regeneration in the local area to create a stronger community in the
Ponders End area.



Page 58

9. EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

9.1  An equalities impact assessment is in place for the Alma project.

10. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

10.1 This report does not recommend a change of service of implementation
of new practices and therefore Performance Management Implications
are not applicable.

11. PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS

11.1  There are no public health implications to consider.

Background Papers

Appendix 1 — Academy Street CPO red-line

Appendix 2 — CPO Process flow-chart

Appendix 3 — Academy Street CPO timeline
Appendix 4 — Statement of Reasons



(1
Dwg.No.6378N
ENFIELD Scale 1:1250 @ Ad
a) Council © Crown copyright and database rights 2013 Date Feb.2013
I

elopment

Academy Street Dev

]

a)

Scheme Boundary (0.791H
7] Public Right of Way (0.081 H

% Gardiner Close

(0.061 Ha)



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 — CPO Process

Page 61

RESOLUTION
TO USE CPO
POWERS BY
AUTHORITY ‘—

LAND REFERENCING

DRAFTING OF CPO AND

NEGOTIATIONS
CONTINUING WITH
OWNERS/OCCUPIERS

MAKING STATEMENT OF REASONS

(EXECUTION) OF

THE CPO

NOTICE OF MAKING
OF CPO (28 DAY
OBJECTION PERIOD)

¥ NO OBJECTIONS

v OBJECTIONS

PUBLIC INQUIRY AND
INSPECTOR’S REPORT
TO SEC. OF STATE

SEC. OF STATE’S
DECISION WHETHER
TO CONFIRM CPO

IF CONFIRMED

NOTICE OF CONFIRMATION
OF THE CPO

6 WEEK CHALLENGE PERIOD

EXERCISE OF POWERS




Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Academy Street CPO Timetable

No. | Milestone Duration Completion date

1. | Cabinet decision 10" July 2013

2. Seal Compulsory Purchase Order 2 weeks 29" July 2013

3. Submit CPO to the Secretary of State 1* August 2013

4, Serve notices on owners / occupiers 1* August 2013

5. End of objection period 21 days 23" August 2013

6. Latest date for receiving notice of inquiry (if held) 5 weeks from expiry of objection period 28" September 2013

7. House-builder appointed September 2013

8. Latest date to hold inquiry 22 weeks from the date of notice of 29" February 2014
inquiry

9. Confirmation of Order

10. | Challenge of validity of the Order period 6 weeks from the date of confirmation April = June 2013

11. | Completion of vacant possession — serving of Notice | 14 days

to Treat (i.e. to purchase land); and a 14 days’ notice
of possession

€9 abed



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Page 65
APPENDIX 4

ACADEMY STREET DEVELOPMENT:
COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER
DRAFT STATEMENT OF REASONS

INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

The London Borough of Enfield (the Council) seeks an order under the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (the Act) to use compulsory
purchase powers to acquire third party land and access pursuant to a
decision by Cabinet on the 10" July 2013 referred to in section 2 below
(the Order Land) for the purposes of the Academy Street Development
Scheme, near South Street, Ponders End, in the London Borough of
Enfield.

The proposed order gives the Council the power to acquire the freehold
interest of part of the land subject to the Order and to acquire a ‘clean’
title to the land of which it is already the freehold owner.

The Academy Street site is held for Housing purposes within the HRA
portfolio.

In July 2012, Cabinet approved the Alma Estate Regeneration
Programme which includes the Academy Street development (Key
decision reference: 3510) that endorsed the development strategy for
the scheme.

The Local Planning Authority recently granted detailed planning
consent for the Academy Street development after a decision at
Planning Committee, where local residents attended in support of the
scheme.

The site for the proposed Academy Street Development is located in
Ponders End in the north-east of the London Borough of Enfield. The
North East Area Action Plan is in draft stage and sets out Council
objectives for this site as part of the South Street Campus area and the
wider regeneration of the area.

Ponders End is one of the Council’s Regeneration Priority Areas. The
Academy Street scheme is part of the Alma Estate Regeneration
Programme which is located in this Regeneration Priority Area and is a
project of key strategic importance to the Council, and established as a
development opportunity by the Enfield Core Strategy, adopted in
November 2010.

The development of this brownfield site will see a new mews street with
38 new homes, and high quality public realm. The vision is to create a
truly attractive residential development that sets the benchmark for
future development in this priority area.

The design team presented their draft proposals at a resident
consultation event held on 11" December 2012 at Ponders End Youth
Centre. This event was well attended by Alma residents and of the 48
questionnaires that were returned, 90% were in favour of the site being

Academy Street CPO — FINAL



1.10

1.1

1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

Page 66
APPENDIX 4

developed for new housing. There were no objections to the proposals
from any residents including those living adjacent to the site on Falcon
Crescent, who were also invited to attend.

Letters have since been sent to residents on Falcon Crescent, whose
rear gardens back onto the Public Right of Way that is subject to the
Council’'s attempts to adopt and permanently divert through the new
scheme and two positive responses to the Council’s proposals have
been received.

The Schedule to the proposed Order lists the third party interests. In
addition it also lists other parties with a qualifying interest in the Order
Land where known. Where beneficiaries of these interests have been
identified they will be served with notice of the making of the Proposed
Order. It is intended that, unless the land and access rights can be
acquired by private negotiations, the Council shall acquire them under
the Order if confirmed.

Following confirmation of the proposed order, the Council will execute
a General Vesting Order Declaration, the result of which will be to vest
the Order Land in the Council.

The Secretary of State recognises in Circular 06/04 (paragraph 24) that
there are situations where it is appropriate to make a compulsory
purchase order at the same time as seeking to purchase land by
agreement.

“Given the amount of time which needs to be allowed to complete the
compulsory purchase process, it may often be sensible for the
acquiring authority to initiate the formal procedures in parallel with such
negotiations. This will also help to make the seriousness of the
authority’s intention clear at the outset, which in turn might encourage
those whose land is affected to enter more readily info meaningful
negotiations.”

The Council has made, and is continuing to make reasonable attempts
to acquire outstanding interests by private treaty and is pursuing the
proposed order to ensure that the proposed development can proceed.
Discussions will however continue with the owners of the relevant
interests to seek to acquire the Order Properties by agreement with a
view to limiting the number of interests which need to be compulsorily
acquired.

The Council recognises that a compulsory purchase order can only be
made if there is a compelling case in the public interest (paragraph 17
of circular 06/04) which justifies the overriding of private rights in the
land sought to be acquired. It is considered that a clear and compelling
case exists in this case.

Academy Street CPO — FINAL



2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Page 67
APPENDIX 4

Enabling Powers

The Order is made under Section 226(1)(a) of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (the Act), which confers power on the local authority
to acquire land for planning purposes.

The Council thinks that the acquisition of the Order Land will facilitate
the carrying out of development of new housing on the Academy Street
site and bring significant community benefit and improvement on the
Order Land.

The Council thinks that the proposed development is likely to contribute
to achieving the improvement of the economic, social and
environmental well-being of the area for which it has administrative
responsibility.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHEME AND NEW RIGHTS

The Academy Street site is a Council owned site located in Ponders
End, on the former National Grid owned site off South Street. In July
2012, Cabinet approved the development of the site for a 100%
affordable housing scheme to re-house Alma Estate residents affected
by the regeneration.

The site used to be part of the wider National Grid site that contained
the large gasholders; and of which the majority has been redeveloped
by Oasis Hadley for a new all through Academy school. The remaining
land, which is approximately 0.5 hectares and owned by the London
Borough of Enfield, has been earmarked for residential development by
the Council in planning policy documents and as part of the Alma
Estate Regeneration Programme. The full extent of the site subject to
this CPO includes the proposed vehicular access along Gardiner Close
and the Public Right of Way is approximately 0.6 hectares.

The development land is currently a cleared site. It comes with a
number of constraints and the Council and their design team have had
to find solutions to address these constraints in the design proposal.

The development of this site was always predicated on vehicular
access coming from Gardiner Close. However, alternative options were
explored by the design team including vehicular access coming from
Falcon Road Spur to the North of the site but these were discounted
due to both technical issues and due to road safety issues.

Following publication of the contract notice on 25th February 2013, the
Council conducted a pre-qualification process to select potential
Bidders (‘Bidders’) for the role of the Building Contractor. Subsequently
the Council has entered into an OJEU Restricted Procedure tendering
process with the five short listed Bidders. It is anticipated that the
preferred Building Contractor will be appointed in September 2013 with
start on site expected in November 2013.

Academy Street CPO — FINAL



41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Page 68
APPENDIX 4

THE PURPOSE OF THE PROPOSED ORDER AND THE NEED FOR
CPO

Government guidance on the use of Compulsory Purchase Orders is
provided in the Circular 06/04, which states that a CPO should only be
made where there is a compelling case in the public interest.

The Council acts in an enabling role to ensure that housing
development meets housing need in the Borough across all
developments, but has a particular role in Estate Renewal projects
when they are existing Council freehold owned sites, such as the Alma
Estate (Core Strategy Core Policy 4).

This CPO will enable the site to be brought forward as a new
residential scheme with thirty eight new affordable homes which is
essential for the decant/re-housing of Alma Estate residents who are
being forced to move by the regeneration scheme. It will address the
current need for quality affordable and predominantly family sized
housing. This development helps the Council ensure vacant
possession of Phase 1 of the Alma Estate, particularly due to the
existing strain on available tenanted properties, and reduces the risk to
the Council of this deadline not being achieved.

The CPO is specifically required in relation to two third party owned
land interests:

> The carriageway running through Gardiner Close
> The public right of way on the western edge of the Academy
Street site

Development of the Academy Street site has always been on the
premise that the Council can agree both permanent vehicular access
for prospective residents and temporary construction vehicle access
along Gardiner Close, which runs through the Robbins Hall site to the
immediate south west of the Academy Street site.

The Council is negotiating with representatives of Viridian, the
landowner of the Robbins Hall site, and negotiations are on-going. The
Council is seeking to acquire the freehold of the carriageway, or
alternatively a right of access over the carriageway to enable vehicular
access into the Academy Street site.

The Council is also negotiating with those adjoining owners and third
parties who have a registered interest in the land over which the public
right of way exists. The intention is to incorporate the land over which
the public right of way exists and to relocate the public right of way
along the new road constructed on Academy Street or via Nelson Road
and Gardiner Close. An order for the extinguishment of the right of way

Academy Street CPO — FINAL



4.8

4.9

5.

5.1

Page 69
APPENDIX 4

will be sought by the Council either under section 32 of the Acquisitiion
of Land Act 1981 or sections 251 or 258 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 in order to enable this and the land will need to be
appropriated for planning purposes to extinguish third party rights.

The CPO of the section of the public right of way is part of the scheme
which has achieved planning consent; this land was required to make a
scheme with properties on both side of a street acceptable in planning
terms.

The Council’s aspirations for the site are as follows:-

High quality of design

Addressing deprivation

Designing out crime

Encouraging social mobility

Environmentally sustainable

All affordable housing

A large percentage of family accommodation

Reimbursement of future project costs and greatest benefit to the
Council

Timescale for Delivery

Planning application submitted March 2013
Planning permission Granted May 2013
Cabinet approve preferred Building Contractor September 2013
Start on site November 2013
First units completed May 2014

Entire scheme completed November 2014

NEGOTIATIONS RECORD

The Council has been in talks with Viridian for over 1.5 years and has

previously made an offer for the Robbins Hall site.

5.2

The Council has made contact with the third party interests in relation

to the public right of way.

6.

6.1

6.2

RELEVANT POLICY CONSIDERATIONS
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

The overarching planning principle set out in the NPPF is “a
presumption in favour of sustainable development” and reflects
the provisions in the London Plan.

The Council is seeking “to secure high quality design and a
good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of
land and buildings”.

Academy Street CPO — FINAL



Page 70
APPENDIX 4

7. LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD ADOPTED CORE STRATEGY

Core Policy 4 sets out the policy for New Housing and Housing Renewal in
Enfield.

New Housing - The new Academy Street development will include
approximately 38 all affordable (50% Council rented / 50% shared equity)
residential properties which exceeds the Core Strategy requirements for
tenure provision. The Academy Street Development is committed to
excellence in design quality and sustainability in line with the Core Strategy.
As a new housing development it takes account of the design and
construction policies and sustainable design and construction guidance set
out in the London Plan. The new homes will be built to Lifetime Homes
standards and all will achieve at least Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4,
with four achieving Code for Sustainable Homes Level 5.

Housing Renewal - The Alma Estate Regeneration Programme was identified
in the Council’'s Estate Renewal Strategy which was undertaken to inform the
future management and priorities for investment across the Council’'s own
housing stock. The Academy Street is a key development as part of Phase 1
of the regeneration to enable the Council to meet deadlines for vacant
possession.

Core Policy 5 sets out the policy for Housing Types. The Academy Street
scheme broadly accords with the Core Strategy unit mix requirements,
although it does provide a greater number of larger 3-bed plus units because
in addition to policy considerations, the mix has also been influenced by the
needs of the Alma Estate decant. The estate currently accommodates a
significant number of 3-bed leasehold properties (113 in total), and the
proposed 3 and 4-bed intermediate units will be offered to such leaseholders
from the Alma Estate. Furthermore, many of the existing 1 and 2 bedroom
properties within the estate are overcrowded, and therefore the provision of a
significant number of 3 and 4-bed units within the Academy Street
development will offer these families the opportunity to move into
accommodation which better meets their needs.

Core Policy 9 supports area based policy interventions relating to the place
shaping agenda which seek to tackle social disadvantage;

Core Policy 40 — North East Enfield

In the North East Enfield Area, there is scope to develop 1000 new  homes.
The focus for change and development, and hence the majority of these new
homes, will be in Ponders End. In the middle (of Ponders End), along South
Street, there are opportunities at the gasholder site on South Street, around
Ponders End railway station, and at Alma Estate. This collection of sites is
referred to as "Ponders End South Street Campus".

Academy Street CPO — FINAL



Page 71
APPENDIX 4

Core Policy 41 — Ponders End
The objectives of new development in Ponders End will be to create:
Up to 1,000 new homes up to 2026, with a range of sizes and tenures,

including affordable homes.

8. OTHER POLICIES

Community Strategy
8.1
The Council’s purpose in making the Order is to achieve the key community
priorities as set out in the Council’'s Community Strategy:
8.2
The Council’s vision for the borough is for a healthy, prosperous and cohesive
society that is safe, clean and green.
8.3

The Council is committed to improving the quality of life through: Employment
and Enterprise; Environment; Housing; Leisure and Culture

° The development will be promoted to produce the highest
quality architectural and urban environment.

° Improving health, housing and social care - This will be
achieved by the new development supplying higher quality
social housing stock in line with the Decent Homes Standard, as
defined by the Department for Communities and Local
Government.

o Safer and stronger Communities

. To implement a place-shaping approach to underpin the
creation of a more prosperous borough

. To enhance the health and vitality of town centres to
meet the needs of the communities they serve

o To increase the number of new businesses setting up
and coming to the area and sustaining their development

o To deliver the housing element of place shaping and
achieve sustainable housing growth

o To improve housing conditions and prevent
homelessness

Academy Street CPO — FINAL



9.2

9.3

Page 72

APPENDIX 4
o To ensure that residents have the opportunity to live in a
decent home they can afford
o To protect and improve the quality of built and open
environment
. To promote sustainable development and support

residents and businesses to preserve natural resources,
become energy efficient, conserve water, reduce pollution
and address the causes of global warming

. To increase biodiversity in order to provide a local
distinctive natural identity

° To make Enfield a place which residents can identify with
and feel proud of, and where people from different
backgrounds feel valued and can develop positive
relationships with their local community

o To promote social inclusion so that all sections of the

community are able to access opportunities, services and
improve their quality of life overview

HUMAN RIGHTS

The Council, as a public body, is under a duty to consider whether the
exercise of its powers interacts with rights protected by the European
Convention on Human Rights (the Convention). Section 6 of the
Human Rights Act 1998 prohibits public authorities from acting in a
way, which is incompatible with those rights. Various Convention rights
may be engaged in the process of making and considering the CPO, in
particular those under Article 8 of the Convention and Article 1 of the
First Protocol to the Convention.

Article 8(1) protects an individual's right to private and family life, home
and correspondence. Interference with these interests can only be
justified if it is done in accordance with the law and if it is necessary in
the interests of national security, public safety or the economic well-
being of the country.

Article 1 of the First Protocol provides that every natural or legal person
is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his possessions, and that no
one shall be deprived of those possessions except in the public interest
and subject to the conditions provided for by law. Those with interests
in the Order Land will be deprived of their property, if the Order is
confirmed but this will be done in accordance with the law and in the
public interest

Academy Street CPO — FINAL



9.4

9.5

9.6

10.

Page 73
APPENDIX 4

The European Court of Human Rights has recognised in the context of
Article 8 that "regard must be had to the fair balance that has to be
struck between the competing interests of the individual and of the
community as a whole". Any interference with Article 8 rights must be
"necessary in a democratic society". In each case the interference with
Convention rights must be proportionate. In pursuing a compulsory
purchase order, the Council has to consider carefully the balance to be
struck between individual rights and the wider public interest,.

The Council has been conscious of the need to strike a balance
between the rights of the individual (including the owners of properties
falling within the Order Lands) and the interests of the public. In the
light of the significant public benefit that would arise from the
redevelopment of the Order Lands, the Council has concluded that it
would be appropriate to make the Order, and that the Order will not
result in any unlawful interference with Convention rights. At all times,
the Council has been aware that the Order Lands include homes,
balancing this with the need to secure the regeneration of this area and
the provision of new houses.

The opportunity has been given to landowners to make representations
regarding the Council's policies that underpin the proposed Order.
Objections can also be made to the Order, which will then have to be
considered by the Secretary of State before he decides whether or not
to confirm the Order. Those directly affected by the Order will also be
entitled to compensation proportionate to any losses that they may
incur as a result of the acquisition.

CONCLUSION

The Council is of the view that the part of Ponders End comprised in the
Order Land, should be improved to the general benefit of all who live or visit
the local area. In order to achieve this, action is required; necessitating the
assembly of the Order Land to facilitate the proposed scheme should
negotiation not result in an outcome that enables the satisfactory development
of the site, according with the planning permission.

The proposed development is the product of an intensive pre-application
process and represents an opportunity to unlock the potential of a key site
within this area of Ponders End and deliver a number of significant
environmental, economic and social benefits.

Specifically, the development will:

Bring back into effective use an unused brownfield site, through the
provision of a comprehensive residential development;

Academy Street CPO — FINAL



Page 74
APPENDIX 4

¢ Provide a substantial and meaningful contribution towards housing
delivery within the Borough and enhance the overall land use mix
within the locality;

e Provide a mix of housing tailored towards meeting the needs of those
families vacating the existing Alma Estate;

¢ Deliver a high quality development that will enhance the overall sense
of place through the creation of a coherent route and spaces that
integrate the development into its surrounding;

¢ Deliver a high quality public realm of new links and spaces;
¢ Significantly enhance the ecological and biodiversity value of the site.

e Encourage the use of sustainable transport modes through enhancing
the pedestrian and cycle network;

e Deliver an exemplar sustainable development that will minimise
resource use, water and waste and maximise the use of natural
systems; and

e Ensure that the environmental impacts of the proposals are minimised
and mitigated.

The Council believes that the scheme it is promoting represents a
positive step towards the following objectives:-

(@)  the promotion or improvement of the economic well-being of
their area;

(b)  the promotion or improvement of the social well-being of their
area;

(c) the promotion or improvement of the environmental well-being of
their area.

Having considered the relevant national policy guidance and Core
Strategy Policies the Council is satisfied that there is a compelling
public interest for compulsory powers to be sought in order to secure
the proposed new development for the economic, social and
environmental improvement of the area .The Council is therefore
pursuing the compulsory purchase order and requests that the
Secretary of State confirms the Order.

Academy Street CPO — FINAL



Page 75
APPENDIX 4

11. LIST OF DOCUMENTS TO WHICH THE COUNCIL MAY REFER

Part 1 — Academy Street: Compulsory Purchase Order Report — 10" July
2013

Part 1: Appendix 1 — Academy Street CPO red-line

Part 1: Appendix 2 — CPO Process flow-chart
Part 1: Appendix 3 — Academy Street CPO timeline

Academy Street CPO — FINAL



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77 Agenda Item 13

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2013/2014 REPORT NO. 28

- . Item: 13
MEETING TITLE AND DATE: Agenda — Part: 1
Cabinet Subject: Tender for the Provision of Housing
10th July 2013 Related Floating Support — Part One
REPORT OF: Wards: All
Ray James Key Decision No: KD3724
Director of Health, Cabinet Members consulted: Councillor
Housing and Adult Social Oykener and Councillor McGowan
Care

Contact officer and telephone number:
Colin Mills, 020 8379 1456

E mail: colin.mills@enfield.gov.uk

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report sets out the process and result of the tender for three Housing
Related Floating Support contracts, and makes recommendations for the award
of contracts, detailed in Part Two.

1.2  Enfield Council invited tenders for floating support services working with People
with Mental Health Problems (130 clients) People with Learning Disabilities (40
clients) and a combined service working with People with Mainstream Housing
Related support needs (125 clients) or Substance Misuse problems (42 clients).

2, RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the contracts be awarded in line with the recommendations in Part Two of
this report.




3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Page 78

BACKGROUND

Enfield currently utilises seven Housing Related Floating Support
services working with people with mental health problems, with learning
disabilities, substance misuse problems, or who are at risk of losing
their tenancy because of some other support need. These people
include both those who have statutory needs, and those who do not
meet the statutory criteria for Adult Social Care.

Housing Related Floating Support services work with vulnerable people
living in their own homes in the community, supporting them with
sustaining their tenancy through assistance on bills and budgets, on
accessing healthcare, on social inclusion and promoting access to
employment and education.

The services are preventative — they stop people losing their homes
and they reduce need for more intensive input from social services.
The services are also focussed on independence — they are time
limited, and promote self-reliance, rather than continuing indefinitely.
Expenditure on these services thus prevents both social and financial
costs.

These services were originally funded by the ring-fenced Supporting
People programme, which was mainstreamed into Adult Social Care
funding in 2010.

As part of a programme of tendering contracts, a review of existing
services found strong demand, and anticipated an increase in need as
welfare reform changes take place, and as people struggle to find
employment.

It was decided to consolidate existing provision into three contracts,
covering Mental Health, Learning Disabilities, and a combined
Mainstream and Substance Misuse Service. The Mainstream service
can work with anyone who has housing related support needs.

This configuration of three contracts was designed so that Enfield was
not restricting the market; small providers could apply, as could
organisations that specialise in only one client group. This was
reflected in the applications at Pre-Qualification Questionnaire stage
which came from 27 organisations, of which 13 were specialist
providers, and 14 were providers who work with several client groups.
Applicants came evenly from private companies, RSLs, and charities.



3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

4,

Page 79

At Pre-Qualification Questionnaire stage providers were scored on
Quality and Technical ability (70%) and their organisation’s overall
financial viability (30%) — which relates to calculations of Gearing,
Liquidity, Suitable Trading Limited and other financial assessments. Six
submissions were invited to tender for each of the three separate lots.

Providers then submitted a response to the Invitation to Tender, which
was scored as 60% on Quality and Technical Ability and 40% on the
Price they proposed in response to the Service Specification and TUPE
information.

The results of the tender evaluation, and the recommendations to
award contracts, are included in Part Two of this report.

Providers are expected to work with clients who have multiple needs,
bringing in additional resources where necessary to avoid clients falling
in the gap between two services — for example where someone has a
substance misuse problem and a learning difficulty.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

Not providing the services

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

Many of the people who receive Housing Related Floating Support
have no other Council-funded support, and so withdrawal of these
services for them would either increase likelihood of homelessness, or
create demand on other existing services.

For those people who do meet the statutory criteria for Adult Social
Care, withdrawal of Housing Related Floating Support would
substantially increase their level of needs and put them at risk,
requiring more expensive Social Services input.

The services include specialist and experienced staff who go out and
meet people in their own homes; this is a unique resource not provided
by drop-ins.

There would be a considerable financial impact on the council if
evictions for rent arrears increased for Enfield Homes, RSLs, and
private landlords, and if homelessness as a whole increased. These
services work to prevent that from occurring.

Procuring a single larger service rather than three contracts

4.5

This would exclude smaller and specialist providers from the market.
Although a consortium of separate providers has been successful in
some areas, they work best where time and resources have been
invested to help them develop. Therefore we have chosen to specify
three contracts.



5.1

Page 80

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The recommendations have been made following a detailed Pre-
qualification questionnaire, tender process and a thorough evaluation,
using the expertise of a multi-disciplinary evaluation panel.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND
CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS

6.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

Financial Implications

6.1.1 The contracts to be awarded following the recent
tender exercise will deliver savings of £370k per
annum for the Council.

6.1.2 Funding for these services is available within the
budget for Housing Related Support.

Legal Implications

Section 29 of the National Assistance Act 1948 gives a local
authority the power to make arrangements for the welfare of
persons with mental health problems of any description. Section
(2B) (1) of the National Health Service Act 2006 places a duty
on local authorities to take steps as it considers appropriate for
improving the health of the people in its area. Section 111 of
Local Government Act 1972 gives the Council the power to do
anything which is coincidental to the discharge of its functions.

The services being procured are Part B services under the
Public Contract Regulations 2006 therefore the full force of the
regulations do not apply. The Council must still comply with the
overriding EU principles of transparency, equality, proportionality
and non-discrimination and the Council’'s contract procedure
rules. From the content of this report it appears a proper
procurement exercise has been carried out.

The contract should be in a form approved by the Assistant
Director of Legal Services.

KEY RISKS

7.1

The new configuration of the services was based on modelling
past client data. Future challenges and welfare reform may
mean that the ideal balance between the sizes of services may
change. This will be monitored by Enfield Council, and changes
can be made where necessary.



7.2

Page 81

The financial viability of providers is always a risk; this was
tested through the PQQ process. Providers are being asked to
budget for three years and are aware there will be no inflationary
increase.

IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES

8.1

8.1.1

8.1.2

8.1.3

8.1.4

8.1.5

8.1.6

8.2

8.2.1

8.2.2

Fairness for All

The services are person-centred, preventative, and accessible
to all who need them.

These services are essential for people in disadvantaged
communities, providing proactive support and coaching for a
population many of whom who do not meet the statutory criteria
for assistance from Social Services, but whose needs are more
intensive and specialist than many voluntary agencies can
deliver.

The services are proactive — they can meet people in their own
homes, which facilitates working with people who may not be
able to use traditional advice services.

The inclusion of a Mainstream service is designed to ensure that
everyone who has Housing Related Support needs is able to
access a service, not just those with diagnosed conditions.

The services will be for all adults with no upper limit, so they can
work with older people in their own homes — this is a change
from the previous Supporting People floating support contracts
which had an upper age limit of 65.

By providing a time-limited service, which people can leave and
come back to, the needs of many individuals can be supported
over the course of a year, in comparison with an
accommodation based support service which assists a few
people for a longer period of time.

Growth and Sustainability

The services have a role in encouraging their clients around
employment, training and education.

The existing services have also provided work opportunities for
Social Work students and volunteers.



9.1

10.

1.

111

12.

13.

Page 82

8.3  Strong Communities

8.3.1 The services promote community cohesion through sustaining
tenancies, and through linking people into community activities
and other services.

8.3.2 The services assist with the prevention of anti-social behaviour
by working with clients to understand and keep to their tenancy
agreements.

8.3.3 The services are focussed on developing independence, which
inherently builds people’s individual resilience, and thus builds a
stronger community.

EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

The services work with a range of people with disabilities and other
protected characteristics. Ongoing monitoring by Enfield Council will
ensure that demand and utilisation is monitored to ensure fairness for
all.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS
No implications
HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

The HHASC Procurement and Contracting Team will work with the
successful providers to ensure that they have developed suitable
Service Level Agreements with landlords, which among a range of
issues will clarify how Anti-Social Behaviour will be addressed.

HR IMPLICATIONS
No Implications as all staff are employed by external providers.
PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS

13.1 Housing Related Floating Support services impact positively on
public health and wellbeing. Maintaining appropriate and
accommodation is a key determinant of health. Services also
work on other health-related factors such as income and social
inclusion (both employment and voluntary activities), and directly
on health issues by facilitating access to primary and secondary
health services, and working with clients to support a healthier
lifestyle (e.g. substance misuse treatment programs)



Page 83

13.2 The existing services advertise in both primary and secondary
health settings, and receive referrals from a wide range of
health-related agencies.

Background Papers

None



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 85 Agenda Item 14

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2013/2014 REPORT NO. 29

Agenda - Part: 1 Item: 14
MEETING TITLE AND DATE:
Cabinet - 10" July 2013 Subject: Reprovision Project — Next Steps
REPORT OF: Ray James Wards: All
Director of Health, Housing &
Adult Social Care Key Decision No: 3593

Contact officer and telephone
number: P Cabinet Member consulted: Councillor

Pauline Kettless 0208 379 4725 McGowan

E mail: Pauline.Kettless@enfield.gov.uk

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report proposes a way forward in terms of Next Steps in the development
and delivery of the Re-provision Project.

1.2  Financial information can be found in Part 2 report.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Cabinet is asked to agree the commissioning and building of a dual registered
nursing and residential care home and then separately the procurement of the
service delivery aspect of the project , additional recommendations are
contained in the Part 2 report.

Part 1 $ltpcxgmx.doc




3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

Page 86

BACKGROUND

The Reprovision Project remit has been to re-organise and improve
care provision to older people through the reprovision of two Local
Authority run Care Homes (Coppice Wood Lodge and Bridge House)
that currently fall below CQC standards, and to establish a high quality
service within a single new purpose built, state of the art building. It has
been planned that the new facility would provide care and
accommodation for 70 plus older people with Dementia related need
on the former Elizabeth House Site, 1 Old Road, EN3.

The rapidly changing financial and market environment over the past
few years has had a profound impact on procurement of these and
similar services.

The Council over the past two years has sought to procure the
Reprovision Project twice without success. The tender package offered
to bidders was based on a design, build, operate, maintain model
(DBOM) whereby the provider would be expected to enter into a long-
term service contract to deliver the care service and would have to
fund, develop and equip a suitable dual-registered care home facility to
provide it from, which would be located on a Council owned site.

It is clear that there are factors within the wider market that should be

considered as part of the next steps decision making process including:

e Over the last two years two significant providers have experienced
considerable problems.

e Although the care home property market was until 2010 perceived
as being stable in terms of prices, during 2011 prices fell by 3.3%
and the market does not appear to have recovered

e 2011 saw 750 care homes re-assigned by landlords to new
providers due to financial challenges, with 31,000 service users
involved

Need for the service has been established through needs assessment.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED
Potential Options

Options considered are contained within the Part 2 report.

Part 1 $ltpcxgmx.doc



5.1

6.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.3

7.1

8.1

Page 87

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The proposed way forward, supported by related recommendations for
consideration has been identified as posing least risk and offers the
most viable approach, given the current market situation.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND
CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS

Financial Implications
Are contained in Part 2 report.
Legal Implications

The Authority is the Social Services authority for the London Borough
of Enfield, within the meaning of the Local Authority Social Services Act
1970, and has the responsibility as defined under the National Health
Service and Community Care Act 1990 to provide community care
services.

The Authority is empowered to procure the provision of building works
and care services pursuant to Section 1 of the Local Government
(Contracts) Act 1997, Section 29 of the National Assistance Act 1948,
Section 45 of the Health Service and Public Health Act 1968 and the
Localism Act 2011. The provision of a residential and nursing care
home at Elizabeth House is in accordance with the above legislative
powers.

The Council must also adhere to the Duty of Best Value and must
consider this duty in the manner in which the works and the services
are provided in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999.

The resultant contracts must be in a form approved by the Assistant
Director of Legal Services.

Property Implications

Are contained in Part 2 report.

KEY RISKS

Key risks are identified in Part 2 report.
IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES

Fairness for All

Part 1 $ltpcxgmx.doc



8.2

8.3

10.

1.

12.

13.

Page 88

The tender processes will be conducted in accordance with both the
Council’'s Contract Procedure Rules and EU procurement rules.
Therefore the tender processes will be transparent and fair and
encourage healthy competition within a specialist sector.

Growth and Sustainability

The new facility will offer potential work opportunities in an area of
employment need in the Borough. It will contribute to the regeneration
of the physical environment by the development of an attractive, quality
building on a currently empty site.

Strong Communities

The new service will contribute to the community by providing a quality
service to vulnerable older people in the borough, and support
maintenance of family relationships, provide employment opportunity to
borough residents and potentially be of benefit to other local
businesses.

EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

An Equalities Impact Assessment was undertaken to inform and
support the previous procurement exercises, the findings and
recommendations from this are still current

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

Contractual framework will have clear performance management
requirements with monitoring taking place on a regular basis to ensure
both timely delivery and quality.

HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

Not applicable.

HR IMPLICATIONS

Are contained in the Part 2 report

PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS

The development of the reprovision project on the former Elizabeth
House site will create a major new nursing and social care residential

facility which will provide enhanced benefit to the target service user
group within Enfield.

Background Papers

None.

Part 1 $ltpcxgmx.doc



Page 89 Agenda Item 15

THE CABINET

List of Items for Future Cabinet Meetings
(NOTE: The items listed below are subject to change.)

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2013/2014

18 SEPTEMBER 2013

1. Updated Property Procedure Rules James Rolfe

This will seek endorsement of updated Property Procedure Rules for referral
to full Council for final approval. (Non key)

2. Appropriation — Academy Street Ray James

This will seek approval to the required appropriation for Academy Street.
(Key decision — reference number 3734)

3. Update on the NLWA Procurement lan Davis

This will provide an update on the NLWA procurement. (Part 2) (Key
decision — reference number 3741)

4. Scrutiny Annual Work Programme 2013/14

To receive a report setting out the annual programme for the Council’'s
Scrutiny Panels and Overview and Scrutiny Committee. (Non key)

5. July 2013 Revenue Monitoring Report James Rolfe

This will summarise the revenue monitoring position of the Council as at 31
July 2013. (Key decision — reference nhumber 3755)

6. First Quarter Capital Monitoring 2013-14: June 2013 James Rolfe

This will summarise the position of the Council’s capital programme for 2013-
14. (Key decision — reference number 3756)

16 OCTOBER 2013

1. Quarterly Corporate Performance Report Rob Leak

This will present Cabinet with updated data against key corporate and
partnership performance indicators and will ask Members to note progress
made towards delivering the identified key priority indicators for Enfield. (Key
decision — reference nhumber 3729)

Effective date 2.7.2013




Page 90

2. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Garages Sites Strategy Ray James
This will set out the Council’s proposals for managing its HRA Garage stock
into the future — the work undertaken in the preparation of this strategy will
cover an options appraisal of each of the 331 sites currently managed within
the HRA. (Part 1) (Key decision — reference number 3726)

3. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Rent Policy and Ray James
Tenancy Policy

This will propose a rent policy and a tenancy policy to apply to the Council’s
housing stock. (Part 1) (Key decision — reference number 3735)

4. Lee Valley Heat Network — Business Plan lan Davis

This will seek approval of the Business Plan for the Lee Valley Heat Network.
(Key decision — reference number 3706)

5. August 2013 Revenue Monitoring Report James Rolfe

This will summarise the revenue monitoring position of the Council as a
whole as at 31 August 2013. (Key decision — reference number 3757)

6. Future Arrangements for ICT Delivery James Rolfe

This will seek approval of the future arrangements for ICT delivery. (Key
decision — reference number 3708)

7. Enfield Council Estate Renewal Programme Ray James

This will seek approval to authorise the Enfield Council Estate Renewal
Programme. (Key decision — reference number 3369)

8. Residential Leaseholds — Sale of HRA Ground Rental Ray James
Income Stream

This will seek approval to a proposal that the Council considers selling the
benefit of the HRA ground rental income stream relating to residential
leasehold properties in return for a premium payment. (Part 1) (Key decision
— reference number 3727)

13 NOVEMBER 2013

1. September 2013 Revenue Monitoring Report James Rolfe

This will summarise the overall revenue monitoring position of the Council as
at 30 September 2013. (Key decision — reference number 3758)

Effective date 2.7.2013




Page 91

2. Capital Monitoring 2013-14: September 2013 James Rolfe

This will summarise the overall financial position of the Council as at 30
September 2013. (Key decision — reference number 3759)

3. Budget 2014/15 and Medium Term Financial Plan Update James Rolfe
This will update Members on the preparation of the 2014/15 budget and the

update of the Medium Term Financial Plan. (Key decision — reference
number 3760)

11 DECEMBER 2013

1. Quarterly Corporate Performance Report Rob Leak

This will present Cabinet with updated data against key corporate and
partnership performance indicators and will ask Members to note progress
made towards delivering the identified key priority indicators for Enfield. (Key
decision — reference number 3733)

2. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Specialist Accommodation Ray James
For Older People Strategy

This will propose a strategy for providing accommodation for older people
within the Council’s Housing Revenue Account. It will include a review of
current provision and consider the Council’s options for providing specialist
accommodation into the future. (Part 1) (Key decision — reference number
3739)

3. Young People’s Substance Misuse Service Contract Ray James

This will consider the contract for the Young People’s Substance Misuse
Service. (Key decision — reference number 3736)

4. Crime Reduction Substance Misuse Recovery Service Ray James
Contract

This will consider the contract for the Crime Reduction Substance Misuse
Recovery Service. (Key decision — reference number 3737)

5. Adult Recovery Substance Misuse Service Contract Ray James

This will consider the contract for the Adult Recovery Substance Misuse
Service. (Key decision — reference number 3738)

22 JANUARY 2014

1. November 2013 Revenue Monitoring Report James Rolfe

Effective date 2.7.2013




Page 92

This will summarise the revenue position of the Council as at 30 November
2013. (Key decision — reference number 3761)

12 FEBRUARY 2014

1. December 2013 Revenue Monitoring Report James Rolfe

This will summarise the overall revenue position of the Council as at 31
December 2013. (Key decision — reference number 3762)

2. Capital Monitoring Report: December 2013 James Rolfe

This will summarise the overall financial position of the Council as at 31
December 2013. (Key decision — reference nhumber 3763)

3. Budget 2014/15 and Medium Term Financial Plan James Rolfe
(General Fund)

This will set out the Council Tax for 2014-15 and will set out the Medium term
financial paln for 2014-18. (Key decision — reference number 3764)

4. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Estimates 2014/15 and  James Rolfe/
Rent Setting Ray James

This will seek approval, for recommendation to full Council, of the revenue
estimates of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) for 2014/15. (Key
decision — reference number thc)

12 MARCH 2014

23 APRIL 2014

1. February 2014 Revenue Monitoring Report James Rolfe
This will set out the Council’s revenue budget monitoring position based on

information to the end of February 2014. (Key decision — reference number
3765)

Effective date 2.7.2013




Page 93 Agenda Item 17

CABINET - 19.6.2013

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 19 JUNE 2013

COUNCILLORS

PRESENT Doug Taylor (Leader of the Council), Achilleas Georgiou
(Deputy Leader), Chris Bond (Cabinet Member for
Environment), Bambos Charalambous (Cabinet Member for
Culture, Leisure, Youth and Localism), Christine Hamilton
(Cabinet Member for Community Wellbeing and Public
Health), Donald McGowan (Cabinet Member for Adult
Services, Care and Health), Ayfer Orhan (Cabinet Member for
Children & Young People) and Ahmet Oykener (Cabinet
Member for Housing)

ABSENT Del Goddard (Cabinet Member for Business and
Regeneration) and Andrew Stafford (Cabinet Member for
Finance and Property)

OFFICERS: Rob Leak (Chief Executive), lan Davis (Director -
Environment), Andrew Fraser (Director of Schools &
Children's Services), Neil Rousell (Director of Regeneration,
Leisure & Culture), Asmat Hussain (Assistant Director Legal),
Richard Tyler (Assistant Director of Finance), Bindi Nagra
(Joint Chief Commissioning Officer), Dr Shahed Ahmad
(Director of Public Health), Michael Toyer (Programme
Manager - Schools Expansion Programme) and Laura
Berryman (Press Officer) Jacqui Hurst (Secretary)

Also Attending:  Councillors Lee Chamberlain, Joanne Laban, Michael
Lavender and Derek Levy.
Members of the deputation (Minute No.4 below refers)
Several members of the public

1
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Andrew Stafford
(Cabinet Member for Finance and Property), Councillor Del Goddard (Cabinet
Member for Business and Regeneration), James Rolfe (Director of Finance,
Resources and Customer Services) and, Ray James (Director of Health,
Housing and Adult Social Care).

2
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest.



Page 94

CABINET - 19.6.2013

3
URGENT ITEMS

NOTED that the reports listed on the agenda had been circulated in
accordance with the requirements of the Council’s Constitution and the Local
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information and Meetings)
(England) Regulations 2012. These requirements state that agendas and
reports should be circulated at least 5 clear days in advance of meetings.

4
DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

NOTED, that a request for a deputation, with a petition, had been received for
presentation to this Cabinet meeting. The deputation would present a petition
from residents in and around Lincoln Road Crossing calling on the Council to
work with the relevant railway authority to ensure that the railway crossing
remained operational.

Councillor Doug Taylor (Leader of the Council) welcomed Adele Panayi,
spokesperson for the deputation, and other members of the deputation to the
meeting, and invited her to present the deputation to Cabinet.

Adele Panayi outlined in detail, the concerns of local residents regarding the
decision by Network Rail to close the level crossing at Lincoln Road. The
negative effect on increased journey times for local residents and the impact
on traffic in the area were highlighted. Residents were concerned that the
closure of the crossing to vehicles could also lead to a general closure
including cyclists and pedestrians.

Residents were dissatisfied with the lack of proper consultation by Network
Rail and asked that the Council champion the interests of its residents and
highlight the concerns which had been raised; and, seek clear justification
from Network Rail for the closure. A full and accurate traffic survey should be
conducted.

A petition by 600 residents was presented to Councillor Taylor (Leader of the
Council). The petition was headed — “We the residents are opposed to the
closure of the Level Crossing in Lincoln Road, Enfield. We urge Enfield
Council and Network Rail to work together in order to ensure that the Level
Crossing is re-opened”.

Councillor Chris Bond (Cabinet Member for Environment) responded to the
deputation. It was noted that the Council had been in discussions with
Network Rail since December 2012. An e mail had been received earlier that
day to state that a permanent closure of the level crossing was proposed,
excluding pedestrians. Formal notice of this decision by Network Rail was
awaited. Andy Love MP had previously written to the appropriate Government
Minister expressing concerns on behalf of local residents.



Page 95

CABINET - 19.6.2013

Councillor Bond acknowledged the petition which had been signed by local
residents but also noted that there were a number of residents in the area who
were content with the closure of the level crossing. The Council had no power
to instruct Network Rail. It was noted there were other level crossings in the
East of the Borough which could also be subject to future closures. The
Council was committed to having open and full discussions with Network Rail.
It was noted that this was a complex legal issue.

In response to the concerns which had been raised in the deputation,
Councillor Bond reiterated that formal notification of the closure was awaited
from Network Rail including the reasons of justification for a permanent
closure. It was noted that health and safety reasons had previously been
cited. It was hoped that the level crossing would be temporarily opened to
enable a full traffic survey to be undertaken. Councillor Bond stated that a
permanent closure would have cost implications for the Council as traffic
would need to be permanently re-directed. It was noted that the Police had
previously been unaware of the closure. The Council would address the
issues raised as far as it was able to.

Councillor Taylor reiterated that the Council had limited powers but that it
would continue to champion the views of local residents. Network Rail would
be advised of the petition which had been received by the Council.

Councillor Taylor thanked Adele Panayi for her presentation and for the
attendance of the deputation at the Cabinet meeting.

5
ITEMS TO BE REFERRED TO THE COUNCIL

AGREED that the following item be referred to full Council:

1. Report No.13 — School Expansion Programme Phase 2 2013/14 —
2017/18.

6
PUBLIC HEALTH 2013/14

Councillor Christine Hamilton (Cabinet Member for Community Wellbeing and
Public Health) introduced the report of the Director of Health, Housing and
Adult Social Care and Director of Public Health (No.11) setting out the Public
Health functions and objectives for Enfield from April 2013 in light of the
legislative and organisational changes set out in the Health and Social Care
Act 2012.

NOTED
1. Councillor Hamilton was pleased to report on the successful integration

of the public health functions under the responsibility of the local
authority with effect from April 2013, as detailed in full in the report;



Page 96

CABINET - 19.6.2013

2. Dr Shahed Ahmad (Director of Public Health) drew Members’ attention
to aspects of the report which clearly set out the Public Health functions
and responsibilities (section 4 of the report referred); the Outcomes
Framework and Enfield’s Health Needs (section 5 of the report); the
Public Health Business Plan 2013/2014 (section 6 of the report); the
Role of the Director of Public Health (section 7 of the report); and, the
Public Health Budget and Structure (section 8 of the report).

3. in response to a question raised by Councillor Charalambous, the
development of Enfield’s priorities was discussed. It was noted that the
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JNSA) was currently being finalised
from which the Health and Well-being Board would develop a strategy
to set the priorities appropriately. The various aspects of the processes
to be followed were explained by Dr Shahed Ahmad.

4, Councillor Orhan was pleased to note the inclusive work with the
Schools and Children’s Service Department and, the clear funding
which had been earmarked for child health. It would be important to
ensure that collaborative working continued in order to support the
future welfare of the Borough’s children.

Alternative Options Considered: None stated.
DECISION: Cabinet agreed
1. to note the contents of the report;

2. the key objectives for Public Health as set out in the Public Health
Business Plan (appendix 1 to the report);

3. to note the ring-fenced Public Health Budget as summarised in
Appendix 2 to the report; and previously reported within the Budget
Setting Report to full Council on 27 February 2013;

4, to note the Public Health structure as detailed in Appendix 3 of the
report.

Reason: To ensure that the Local Authority had the appropriate capability and
focus within the Public Health Directorate and ensure that Local Authority
objectives were met in line with its new mandatory responsibilities and non
mandatory responsibilities. The enable dialogue to commence with the
Council’'s new providers, and provide them with the knowledge of the criteria
that was involved when working with the local authority, which was
significantly different to the NHS. To ensure continuity of joint working with the
NHS. To ensure that the current staff who had transferred to LBE were treated
fairly in lien with TUPE principles.

(Key decision — reference number 3650)



Page 97

CABINET - 19.6.2013

7
LADDERSWOOD: APPROPRIATION FOR PLANNING PURPOSES

Councillor Ahmet Oykener (Cabinet Member for Housing) introduced the
report of the Director of Health, Housing and Adult Social Care and Director of
Regeneration, Leisure and Culture (No.12) seeking approval for the Council to
use its powers to appropriate the land required for the Ladderswood
development for planning purposes.

NOTED

1. the conditions which needed to be fulfilled by both the Council and the
developer in accordance with the previously agreed Development
Agreement, in order to allow the development of Ladderswood to
proceed, as set out in the report;

2. that Members’ attention was drawn to sections 3.11 and 3.12 of the
report explaining the conditions which would apply to the appropriation
of land;

3. that a colour copy of the diagram detailed in Appendix 1 of the report
would be circulated to Cabinet Members for clarity and ease of
reference.

Alternative Options Considered: None.

DECISION: The Cabinet agreed in accordance with section 122 of the Local
Government Act 1972 to appropriate the sites shown on the plan attached to
the report at Appendix 1 from their present holding purposes to planning
purposes and in particular the purposes set out in section 237 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990.

Reason: The Development Agreement entered into by the Council included a
requirement, as a condition precedent, for the Council to use its powers to
appropriate the land for planning purposes. If the Council did not appropriate
the land for planning purposes the developer could terminate the
Development Agreement.

(Key decision — reference number 3423)

8
SCHOOL EXPANSION PROGRAMME PHASE 2 2013/14 - 2017/18

Councillor Ayfer Orhan (Cabinet Member for Children and Young People)
introduced the report of the Director of Schools and Children’s Services and
Director of Finance, Resources and Customer Services (No.13) updating the
strategy for the provision of pupil places.



Page 98

CABINET - 19.6.2013

NOTED

1.

that a previous decision of the Cabinet in June 2012 had established
phase one of the primary expansion programme. Cabinet approval was
now being sought to establish phase two of the school expansion
programme, as set out in full in the report. This represented a robust
and comprehensive strategy to meet future demand and the Council’s
statutory responsibilities. The strategy would be kept under constant
review to ensure that the effects of any changes in the Borough
including demographic changes and welfare reform, would be taken
into account and appropriate action taken. Members noted the current
impact of the Government’s housing benefit cap on families in the
Borough and across London as a whole.

Members’ attention was drawn to sections 1.2, 1.3, 3.2 and 3.3 of the
report. Section 3.2 of the report noted the removal of three schools
from the current phase of the programme — Oakthorpe, Broomfield and
Walker. Discussions would continue with the schools and their
Governing Bodies.

Andrew Fraser (Director of Schools and Children’s Services) outlined
the difficulties that were being faced across London in meeting the
statutory responsibilities for the provision of sufficient school places.
The Council had used independent evaluations for projected pupil
numbers in the Borough. The School Expansion Programme, as
detailed in the report, provided a clear framework for the way forward
and would provide flexibility in meeting identified needs.

Councillor Hamilton expressed her congratulations to the Lead Cabinet
Members and Directors for this significant piece of work which would
ensure that the Council continued to deliver high quality education for
the Borough’s children.

Councillor Orhan outlined the new school which was being built at
Garfield; the Council had listened to the concerns expressed and was
taking appropriate action in moving forward.

Councillor Taylor commended the bold and imaginative action which
was being taken and expressed the need for sufficient Government
funding to be allocated to the Council to meet its basic needs
requirements.

Alternative Options Considered: Enfield Council had a statutory

responsibility to provide the necessary school places. The Primary Expansion
Programme created a mechanism to assist with the delivery of extra capacity
required. Not providing places could not be considered an option. The

following proposals had been considered but rejected:

Increasing class sizes to over 30 pupils. Current legislation stipulates
that Key Stage One classes could not exceed 30 pupils with only one



Page 99

CABINET - 19.6.2013

qualified teacher. This did not apply to Key Stage two. However, school
accommodation did not normally allow for more than 30 pupils in one
class base.

The use of community halls as emergency class bases. This option had
been explored with a number of head teachers in relation to the
development of the Partner School initiative. However, the revised
strategy seeks to deliver a programme of permanent expansions.

DECISION: The Cabinet agreed to approve:

1.

6.

the updated strategy to provide the additional school places required
between 2013/2014 and 2017/2018.

the establishment of the school expansion programme to run from
2013/14 to 2017/18.

the recommendation to full Council of a provisional budget of up to
£44.318 million to deliver 1,680 extra Council funded Primary school
reception places, including the cost of rebuilding and re-configuring
existing schools between 2013/14 and 2017/18, subject to availability
of funding, agreement of detailed scheme costs, and clear
demonstration of value for money.

that the projects and budgets for the new build of Garfield Primary
School and the main scheme at Grange Park Primary School move into
phase two of the school expansion programme with their budgets
added to the programme budget referred to in paragraph 2.1.3.

delegated authority to the Cabinet Members for Children and Young
People and for Finance and Property in consultation with the Director of
Schools and Children’s Services and Finance, Resources and
Customer Services to take decisions on:

e The individual schools and sites that could be expanded, and
decisions on statutory expansions, to meet the need for extra
pupil places up to 2017/18.

e Entering in to contractual arrangements and placing orders for
each expansion project; and

e Conducting any necessary land transactions as individual
schemes were developed.

delegated authority to the Directors of Schools and Children’s Services
and Finance, Resources and Customer Services to take decisions on
the:

e Detail of programme and project management arrangements,
including any subsequent changes to arrangements that were
required.

e Submission of planning applications; and

e The appropriate procurement routes for individual schemes.



Page 100

CABINET - 19.6.2013

RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL for approval and adoption in the Council’s
capital programme.

Reason: The Council had an overriding statutory duty to provide sufficient
pupil places to meet anticipated demand. The report set out the proposed
strategy and delivery arrangements to oversee delivery arrangements for
schools with funding secured for expansion, to further develop options for
expansion by conducting feasibility studies and consultation with the schools
identified and to secure funding through opportunities that become available.
This strategy and delivery arrangements would deliver the additional reception
places required in the areas of highest demand up to 2017/18. The expanded
capacity aimed to provide a higher level of flexibility built in to counter sudden
increases in demand.

(Key decision — reference number 3719)

9
CONTRACT FOR RESIDENTIAL AND NURSING CARE SERVICES FOR
PEOPLE WITH DEMENTIA AT HONEYSUCKLE HOUSE

Councillor Don McGowan (Cabinet Member for Adult Services, Care and
Health) introduced the report of the Director of Health, Housing and Adult
Social Care (No.14) noting the closure of the previous procurement process
and considering the contractual options.

NOTED
1. that Report No.15 also referred as detailed in Minute No.22 below;

2. that recommendations for Parkview House had been considered by the
Cabinet previously in April 2013.

Alternative Options Considered: To facilitate development of best value in
the longer term, an options appraisal would be undertaken. This would involve
an engagement exercise with care home providers to explore current and
future market direction and the range of means available to meet service
users’ developing needs.

DECISION: The Cabinet noted the closure of the previous procurement
process and considered the contractual options as set out in Report No.15
Minute No.22 below refers).

Reason: In the context of the tender process not identifying a new provider,
these recommendations offer the most effective and practical means of
ensuring continuity of care for service users.

(Key decision — reference number 3685)



Page 101

CABINET - 19.6.2013

10
MEMBERSHIP OF CABINET SUB-COMMITTEES - MUNICIPAL YEAR
2013/14

NOTED, that at its meeting on 24 April 2013, Cabinet agreed that Councillor
Doug Taylor (Leader of the Council) be given delegated authority to agree any
required changes to the membership or composition of the Cabinet Sub-
Committees, to be ratified at the next appropriate Cabinet meeting. There had
been no changes to the Cabinet Sub-Committees and therefore the existing
memberships would continue unchanged for the municipal year 2013/14. The
memberships were listed below for information and noting:

Enfield Residents’ Priority Fund Cabinet Sub-Committee
Councillors: Charalambous (Chairman), Bond, Georgiou and Hamilton

Local Plan Cabinet Sub-Committee
Councillors: Goddard (Chairman), Bond, Georgiou and Oykener

Policy Cabinet Sub-Committee
Councillors: Georgiou (Chairman), Charalambous, Hamilton and Taylor

Enfield Community Capacity Building Fund Cabinet Sub-Committee
Councillors: Hamilton (Chairman), Bond, Charalambous and Georgiou

11
ISSUES ARISING FROM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
PANEL/SCRUTINY PANELS

NOTED, that no items had been received for consideration at this meeting.

12
CABINET AGENDA PLANNING - FUTURE ITEMS

NOTED the provisional list of items scheduled for future Cabinet meetings.

13
NOTICE OF KEY DECISION LIST

NOTED that the next Notice of Key Decision List was due to be published on
28 June 2013, this would be effective from 1 August 2013.

14
MINUTES

AGREED, that the minutes of the previous meeting of the Cabinet held on 24
April 2013 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

15
MINUTES OF ENFIELD RESIDENTS PRIORITY FUND CABINET SUB-
COMMITTEE - 16 APRIL 2013



Page 102

CABINET - 19.6.2013

NOTED the minutes of a meeting of the Enfield Residents’ Priority Fund
Cabinet Sub-Committee held on 16 April 2013.

16
MINUTES OF ENFIELD RESIDENTS' PRIORITY FUND CABINET SUB-
COMMITTEE -8 MAY 2013

NOTED the minutes of a meeting of the Enfield Residents’ Priority Fund
Cabinet Sub-Committee held on 8 May 2013.

17
MINUTES OF ENFIELD RESIDENTS' PRIORITY FUND CABINET SUB-
COMMITTEE - 15 MAY 2013

NOTED the minutes of a meeting of the Enfield Residents’ Priority Fund
Cabinet Sub-Committee held on 15 May 2013.

18
MINUTES OF LOCAL PLAN CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 16 MAY 2013

NOTED the minutes of a meeting of the Local Plan Cabinet Sub-Committee
held on 16 May 2013.

19
ENFIELD STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP FEEDBACK

NOTED that there were no written updates to be received at this meeting.

20
DATE OF NEXT MEETING

NOTED that the next meeting of the Cabinet was scheduled to take place on
Wednesday 10 July 2013 at 8.15pm.

21
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act
1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the items of
business listed on part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that they involve the
likely disclosure of confidential information as defined in Paragraph 3
(information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person (including the authority holding that information)) of Part 1 of Schedule
12A to the Act (as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information)
(Variation) Order 2006).



Page 103

CABINET - 19.6.2013

22
CONTRACT FOR RESIDENTIAL AND NURSING CARE FOR PEOPLE
WITH DEMENTIA AT HONEYSUCKLE HOUSE

Councillor Don McGowan (Cabinet Member for Adult Services, Care and
Health) introduced the report of the Director of Health, Housing and Adult
Social Care (No. 15).

NOTED
1. that Report No.14 also referred as detailed in Minute No.9 above;
2. the background to the proposals and the processes which had been

followed, as set out in full in the report. Members discussed the
proposed way forward and noted that any risks had been evaluated
and detailed in the report.

Alternative Options Considered: NOTED the alternative options which had
been considered as detailed in section 4 of the report.

DECISION: The Cabinet agreed

1. that officers enter into direct negotiation with the provider detailed in
recommendation 2.1 of the report, to agree terms for an interim care
agreement of no longer than three years (including options for
extension) while longer term options were evaluated.

2. that all options relating to Honeysuckle House identified in the
background options paper submitted to April 2013 Cabinet along with
KD 3558 (Parkview House) were explored; including the potential for
selling the Council’'s property interests subject to the findings of a
qualified valuer.

3. negotiations under decision 1 above include a revision of existing
property arrangements and seek to transfer these to a more equitable
footing.

4. subsequent to the decisions in 1 and 2 above, the decision to award

the care agreement be delegated to the Cabinet Member for Adult
Services, Care and Health in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Finance and Property.

5. that officers develop contingency measures should negotiations with
the provider detailed in recommendation 2.5 of the report, not deliver
viable contractual terms.

6. revised rates be charged to full cost service users at the
commencement date of the interim care services agreement identified
in decision 1 above.



Page 104

CABINET - 19.6.2013

7. pending the outcome of current negotiation, that existing contractual
arrangements be continued with the provider detailed in
recommendation 2.7 of the report.

Reason: NOTED the reasons for the recommendations as detailed in section
5 of the report.
(Key decision — reference number 3685)



Page 105 Agenda Item 18

ENFIELD RESIDENTS PRIORITY FUND CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.6.2013
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE ENFIELD RESIDENTS PRIORITY FUND
CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE
HELD ON THURSDAY, 6 JUNE 2013

COUNCILLORS

PRESENT Bambos Charalambous (Chair), Chris Bond and Achilleas
Georgiou

ABSENT Christine Hamilton

OFFICERS: Alison Trew (Head of Corporate Policy and Performance) and

Jayne Middleton-Albooye (Principal Lawyer) Penelope
Williams (Secretary)

Also Attending:  Graham Sharp (Chair Hadley Wood Association)

1
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. Apologies for absence were
received from Councillor Hamilton, Joanne Stacey, Performance Information
Manager, Peter Doherty, ERPF Administrator and Ann Freeman, Head of
Finance.

2
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Councillor Charalambous declared non pecuniary interests in applications
PALO029, PAL0O30 which were in his Palmers Green Ward.

3
URGENT ITEMS

AGREED that the following application be dealt with as an urgent item
pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended
by the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) Access to Information
(England) Amendment Regulation 2002).

e Grange (GRA007) and Town (TOWNO023) Enfield Town Library Green
Community Events.

Urgent consideration of the application listed above was approved by the Sub
Committee on the grounds that a decision had to be made at this meeting as
the equipment applied for was needed for an event which was due to take
place on 28 June 2013.



Page 106

ENFIELD RESIDENTS PRIORITY FUND CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.6.2013

NOTED the other reports listed on the agenda had been circulated in
accordance with the requirements of the Council’s Constitution and the Local
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)
Amendment Regulations 2002.

4
APPLICATIONS TO THE ENFIELD RESIDENTS PRIORITY FUND

Councillor Bambos Charalambous introduced the report of the Chief
Executive (No.10) presenting the applications that had been formally
submitted up to 21 May 2013 for the Enfield Residents Priority Fund 2013-14.

Alison Trew, Head of Corporate Policy and Performance, presented the report
to members.

NOTED

1. The summary of the applications received as detailed in Appendix A to
the report:

2. Members considered each of the applications in detail, as follows:

21 Hadley Wood Association Car Park (CF013)

A project for Cockfosters Ward to resurface the Hadley Wood Association Car
Park. Members noted that the application met the social and environmental
wellbeing objective and the following criteria: fairness for all, growth and
sustainability, strong communities and education, skills and training.

Graham Sharp, Chairman of the Hadley Wood Association, spoke on the
application. He highlighted the following:

e The Hadley Wood Association provided activities for all age groups
including preschool, tennis, golf, football and bridge.

e Good facilities for parties and funerals were available for hire.

e They had raised £50,000 to refurbish the playground with the help of
the Parks Service.

e The green belt land was well used by dog walkers.

e The car park was well used by local shops and businesses.

e Over 75% of the parents with children at Hadley Wood Primary School
used the car park to drop off and pick up their children daily.

e The School supported the application.

e Legal issues raised on a previous application had been resolved.

e The Hadley Wood Association were providing the majority of the
funding.

Jayne Middleton Albooye, for Legal, said that there was a repairing covenant
on the Hadley Wood Association Lease, but this did not explicitly cover the car
park. .



Page 107

ENFIELD RESIDENTS PRIORITY FUND CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.6.2013

Members suggested that the school children should be encouraged to walk to
school and that the school should be asked to contribute to the cost of repairs.

The application was approved subject to obtaining three quotations for the
work including one from the Council.

2.2 Enfield Island Village Trust Developing the Community (ENFL023)

A project for Enfield Lock Ward to provide various activities for Enfield Island
Village residents. Members noted that the application met the economic and
environmental wellbeing objectives and the following criteria: fairness for all,
growth and sustainability, strong communities, health and disability and
education, skills and training.

Alison Trew reported that this was the continuation of successful projects run
by the Enfield Island Trust which had contributed to improving the atmosphere
and community spirit of the area which suffered from crime and gang violence.

The application was approved subject to clarification on the project costs.
2.3 Information and Advice Surgery for Turkish Speakers (JUB021)

A project for Jubilee Ward to provide an information and advice surgery for
Turkish speakers. Members noted that the application met the economic and
environmental wellbeing objectives and the following criteria: fairness for all,
growth and sustainability, strong communities, and education, skills and
training.

Alison Trew reported that this was a well used resource and that evaluation
forms were to be sent through.

The application was approved subject to clarification on the project costs.

24 Future Success English for Speakers of Other Languages
(ESOL)for Turkish Speakers (JUB022)

A project for Jubilee Ward to provide ESOL classes for Turkish speakers.
Members noted that the application met the economic and environmental
wellbeing objectives and the following criteria: fairness for all, growth and
sustainability, strong communities, and education, skills and training.

The application was approved subject to clarification on the project costs.
2.5 Elderly and Disabled Lunch Club (JUB023)

A project for Jubilee Ward for a lunch club to provided activities,advice and
support for elderly and disabled Turkish speakers in the ward. Members
noted that the application met the economic and environmental wellbeing
objectives and the following criteria: fairness for all, growth and sustainability,
strong communities, and education, skills and training.



Page 108

ENFIELD RESIDENTS PRIORITY FUND CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.6.2013

The application was approved subject to a reduction of £400 on the original
application.

2.6 Repainting and Refurbishment of Alleygates in Chatsworth Drive
and Dimsdale Drive (JUB024)

A project for Jubilee Ward to repaint and refurbish the alleygates on
Chatsworth Drive and Dimsdale Drive

The application was not approved as it had been found that it would be more
cost effective to replace the gates. The applicants would be advised and
would be able to submit another application to cover the costs of replacing the
gates.

2.7 Fulfil Your Dreams Youth Event DJ and MC Academy (LOEDO035)

A project for Lower Edmonton Ward to run twice weekly mobile unit sessions
on local housing estates. Members noted that the application met the social
and economic wellbeing objectives and the following criteria: fairness for all,
growth and sustainability, strong communities, employment, education, skills
and training and crime.

The application was approved.
2.8 Security at the Ruth Winston Centre (PAL029)

A project for Palmers Green Ward to install CCTV security measures at the
Ruth Winston Centre. Members noted that the application met the social and
environmental wellbeing objectives and the following criteria: fairness for all,
growth and sustainability, strong communities and crime.

The application was deferred to find out the reasons behind the discrepancies
in the costings.

2.9 Palmers Green Triangle Flower Beds (PAL030)

A project for Palmers Green Ward for planting flower beds on the Palmers
Green Triangle. Members noted that the application met the social and
economic wellbeing objectives and the following criteria: fairness for all,
growth and sustainability, strong communities, crime and environment.

The application was deferred.
2.10 Walker Cricket Ground (SGT019) (SGCT015)
A project for Southgate and Southgate Green Wards to carry out health and

safety improvements and provide disabled toilets for the Walker Cricket
Ground. Members noted that the application met the environmental wellbeing



Page 109

ENFIELD RESIDENTS PRIORITY FUND CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.6.2013

objectives and the following criteria: fairness for all, growth and sustainability,
strong communities, crime and environment.

The application had been deferred from the last meeting to obtain further
information on community support. This had now been provided.

The application was approved at the reduced rate of £45,775 to be split
equally between the two wards.

211 Fountains Crescent Strawberry Tea Party (SGT020)

A project for Southgate Ward to hold a street party in Fountains Crescent.
Members noted that the application met the environmental wellbeing
objectives and the following criteria: fairness for all, growth and sustainability,
strong communities and environment.

The application was approved.

212 Riverside and Parsonage Gardens Street Party (TOWNO022)

A project for Town Ward to hold a street party in Riverside and Parsonage
Gardens. Members noted that the application met the environmental
wellbeing objectives and the following criteria: fairness for all, growth and
sustainability, strong communities and crime.

The application was approved.

213 Youth Development Project (TST046)

A project for Turkey Street Ward to hold youth activities in Kempe Hall.

The application was not approved. Any youth activities would need to fit in
with that being provided by the Council Youth Service and other youth
organisations in the area.

2.14 Rely on Yourself ESOL Classes for Turkish Speakers (TST047)

A project for Turkey Street Ward to provide ESOL classes for Turkish
speakers. Members noted that the application met the environment wellbeing
objectives and the following criteria: fairness for all, growth and sustainability,
strong communities, employment and education, skills and training.

The application was approved subject to clarification on the project costs.

2.15 Grovelands Road Street Party (WMHO015)

A project for Winchmore Hill Ward for a street party in Grovelands Road.

The application was not approved as the party had already taken place.



Page 110

ENFIELD RESIDENTS PRIORITY FUND CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.6.2013

216 Enfield Town Library Green Community Events (GRAO007)
(TOWNO023)

A project for Grange and Town Wards to provide free events and
entertainment on Enfield Town Library Green. Members noted that the
application met the social and environment wellbeing objectives and the
following criteria: fairness for all, growth and sustainability, strong
communities, employment and environment.

The application was approved.

Alternative Options Considered

That the projects were not considered and funding was not allocated, this
would not be recommended as this will not support community engagement
and will not allow residents the opportunity to further improve the local area in
which they live and work.

DECISION

1. The Cabinet Sub Committee, following detailed consideration of the

applications and the criteria, agreed that the following applications were
suitable for funding from the Enfield Residents Priority Fund.

Ward Project Title Amount

Jubilee (JUB023) Elderly and Disabled Lunch | £9,128

Club
Lower Edmonton | Fulfil Your Dreams Youth |£13,210
(LOEDQ35) Event — DJ and MC Academy
Southgate (SGT018) and | Walker Cricket Ground - |Up to £45,755
Southgate Green | Health and Safety | split between the
(SGTGO15) Improvements two wards
Southgate (SGT020) Fountains Crescent | £340

Strawberry Tea Party
Town (TOWNO022) Riverside and Parsonage | £440

Gardens Street Party
Grange (GRAO007) and | Enfield Town Library Green | £1,000 (£500 per
Town (TOWNO023) Community Events ward)
2. The following applications were approved in principle, subject to listed

conditions:

e Cockfosters (CF013) Hadley Wood Association Car Park Resurfacing -
£10,000 subject to obtaining three quotes for the work including one
from the Council.

e Enfield Lock (ENFL023) Enfield Island Village Trust Developing the
Community - £26,680 — subject to clarification on the project costs.

e Jubilee (JUB021) - Information and Advice Surgery for Turkish
Speakers — up to £13,270 subject to clarification on the project costs.




ENFIELD RESIDENTS PRIORITY FUND CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.6.2013

Page 111

e Jubilee (JUB022) — Future Success ESOL Classes for Turkish

Speakers — up to £16,450 subject to clarification on the project costs.
e Turkey Street (TST047) - Rely on Yourself ESOL Classes for Turkish
Speakers — up to £4,330 subject to clarification on the project costs.

3. The following applications were deferred for consideration at a future
meeting of the Sub Committee, to enable more information to be

provided, before a decision was made:

Palmers Green (PAL029) | Security at the Ruth Winston | £4,488
Centre

Palmers Green (PALO30) | Palmers Green  Triangle | £5,495
Flower Beds

4. The following applications were not approved:

Jubilee (JUB024) Repainting and | £375
Refurbishment of Alleygates

Turkey Street (TST046) Youth Development Project £7,151

Winchmore Hill | Grovelands Road Street Party | £515

(WHMO015)

5. The Chair of the Sub Committee be given delegated authority to
provide final project approval in cases where applications are agreed in
principle subject to certain conditions and these conditions have been

met.

Reason: The projects submitted had been proposed and developed by the
local people of Enfield, to help improve the social, economic or environmental
well being by tackling local need and deprivation. The projects all support the
Council’s vision of making Enfield a better place to live and work, delivering

fairness for all, growth and sustainability and strong communities.

5

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

AGREED as a correct record the minutes of the meetings held on 8 May and

15 May 2013.

6

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

The Sub Committee noted the dates agreed for future meetings as follows:

Thursday 11 July 2013
Thursday 22 August 2013
Thursday 12 September 2013
Thursday 10 October 2013




Page 112

ENFIELD RESIDENTS PRIORITY FUND CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.6.2013

e Thursday 7 November 2013

e Thursday 5 December 2013

e Tuesday 21 January 2014 (previously scheduled for Thursday 23
January)

e Thursday 6 February 2014

e Thursday 6 March 2014

e Thursday 3 April 2014

7
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

AGREED to pass a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting for the
following item (Complaint Against Councillor - Update) moved from the Part 1
to Part 2 agenda on the grounds that it would involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 (information relating to an
individual) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local
Government (Access to Information Variation Order 2006).

Part 2
8
MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

8.1  Southgate Community Market (SGT018)

Councillor Charalambous reported that he had received an email expressing
concern that the Committee could have received misleading information about
the consultation which had taken place with local businesses on the
application for the Southgate Community Market, approved at the last
meeting.

Members discussed the allegations, but concluded that there was no reason
to change the decision to approve the application.



Page 113 Agenda Item 19

POLICY CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 17.6.2013

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE POLICY CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE
HELD ON MONDAY, 17 JUNE 2013

COUNCILLORS

PRESENT Achilleas Georgiou (Deputy Leader) and Bambos
Charalambous (Cabinet Member for Culture, Sport and
Leisure)

ABSENT Christine Hamilton (Cabinet Member for Community Wellbeing

and Public Health) and Doug Taylor (Leader of the Council)

OFFICERS: Rob Flynn (Corporate Policy and Research Manager,
Communities, Communications, Policy and Performance),
James Rolfe (Director of Finance, Resources and Customer
Services), Neil Rousell (Director of Regeneration, Leisure &
Culture), Mike Ahuja (Head of Corporate Scrutiny and
Community Outreach), Claire Corbett (Transformation
Manager), Jayne Middleton-Albooye (Principal Solicitor
Corporate) (Iltems 4 and 5 only), Jane Creer (Secretary)

1
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Doug Taylor (Leader of
the Council) and Councillor Christine Hamilton (Cabinet Member for
Community Wellbeing and Public Health).

2
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest.

3
URGENT ITEMS

NOTED, that the reports listed on the agenda had been circulated in
accordance with the requirements of the Council’s Constitution and the Local
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information and Meetings)
(England) Regulations 2012. These requirements state that agendas and
reports should be circulated at least 5 clear days in advance of meetings.

4
QUEEN'S SPEECH

RECEIVED a presentation from Rob Flynn (Corporate Policy and Research
Manager) and Jayne Middleton-Albooye (Principal Solicitor Corporate) on the
content and implications of the Queen’s Speech.



Page 114

POLICY CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 17.6.2013

NOTED

1.

5

The forthcoming legislation which would have a local authority impact,
or an impact on Enfield was highlighted.

At this point there was very little detail about many of the Bills listed.

The Pensions Bill had potentially positive implications for older people
in Enfield, but may increase the amount of national insurance that
some public sector employees and employers will pay. James Rolfe
agreed to provide further detail about the impact on Enfield.

ACTION: James Rolfe

The Care Bill was now at the second reading committee stage. There
would be a new duty for councils to inform residents about the
provision available. Impacts of the new cap on social care costs had
been identified as a risk in the budget.

The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Bill was also at the
second reading stage. Civil ASBOs would be replaced by a new
Injunction to Prevent Nuisance and Disorder (IPNA).

The Local Audit and Accountability Bill would bring a more localist
approach to audit. Local authorities would be given more power to
appoint local auditors.

POLICY GRID

NOTED

1.

Members noted the Policy Grid, circulated with the agenda, from the
Assistant Director Communities, Communications, Policy and
Performance, providing an assessment of new legislation, strategies
and programmes.

Members requested further information on Council responses to

consultations, and on the progress of legislation and timetable for

implementation. This information would be added to the Policy Grid.
ACTION: Rob Flynn/Jayne Middleton-Albooye

In relation to Crossrail 2, consultation would close on 2™ August. A
response was being prepared, and Enfield was lobbying for the
Stansted corridor route. Members asked to be notified of progress on
this and on four tracking on the West Anglia route.

ACTION: Neil Rousell

It was clarified that the Lead Member for Local Audit and Accountability
Bill would be Councillor Lemonides and for Defence Reform Bill would
be Councillor Stafford.



6

Page 115

POLICY CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 17.6.2013

ENFIELD POST 2014

RECEIVED a presentation from Rob Flynn (Corporate Policy and Research
Manager) on Enfield post 2014.

NOTED

1.

The presentation followed discussions at the previous Policy Cabinet
Sub-Committee meeting, and covered the following areas:
e Definition of the Coordinating Council, key features, and objectives
e The three strands and draft workstreams identified:

(i) Innovative and enterprising approach — key elements

(i) Democratic engagement

(iif) Collaboration and coordination
e A mini-review was proposed to take forward each strand.

This work needs to be considered alongside any organisational
changes.

Consideration of appropriate levels of consultation and engagement.

There was a need to continue developing an enterprising approach.
Working with the business community, partnership working, and
empowering local people were highlighted. Recent examples of
success in this approach, and potential future enterprises, were
discussed. It was suggested these should be given greater publicity
and a higher profile.

Ways forward involving collaboration and coordination were discussed,
and the role of the Council in bringing together services and ensuring
they were delivered where they were needed and without duplication. A
mapping exercise may be useful.

Mike Ahuja presented a diagram of how the Coordinating and
Enterprising Council would work, focussing on community engagement,
which was not limited to the Council.

Members wished to see the workstreams taken forward quickly and
worked up by the end of 2013, in preparation for agreement early after
May 2014. These issues would affect any incoming Council.

The workstreams would each be led by a Cabinet Member, and the
suggested involvement of:

e Innovative and Enterprising — Councillor Goddard / Councillor Sitkin /
Neil Rousell

e Democratic Engagement — Councillor Georgiou / James Rolfe / John
Austin / Mike Ahuja



Page 116

POLICY CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 17.6.2013

e Collaboration and Coordination — Councillor Charalambous / Rob
Flynn / Transformation Team

9. The groups would set up their own meetings and terms of reference.
10.  The groups would report back to the Policy Cabinet Sub-Committee.

11.  Once the vision was clear there would be engagement with all
stakeholders and a report to Cabinet in the New Year.

12. A scope of the work and the timeline would be drafted by Mike Ahuja
and shared with member of the Sub-Committee.
ACTION: Mike Ahuja

7
MP'S BRIEFING

NOTED a verbal update from James Rolfe on issues raised in relation to the
decentralised energy network by Andy Love MP. A meeting would be
scheduled as soon as possible to discuss. Members asked to be provided
with the 25.01.12 Council decision in respect of North London Waste
Authority.

ACTION: Jane Creer

8
MINUTES

AGREED that the minutes of the meeting held on 6 March 2013 be agreed as
a correct record.

9
MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

There were no outstanding matters arising from the minutes.

10
DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

NOTED that future meetings of the Policy Cabinet Sub-Committee were
scheduled to take place on:

Wednesday 2 October 2013
Wednesday 4 December 2013
Wednesday 5 March 2014



	Agenda
	6 ISSUES ARISING FROM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL/SCRUTINY PANELS
	8 Capital Outturn 2012/13
	9 Quarterly Corporate Performance Report
	Q4 performance schedule (Cabinet 100713)

	10 ALLEGED CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY BLACKLISTING
	12 ALMA PHASE 1 (ACADEMY STREET) DEVELOPMENT - COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER
	LBE-SV-PRIN-004_PR-ECC01-300204-ADV5255_3198_001
	Appendix 2 - CPO Process
	Appendix 3 - Academy Street CPO Timetable v1
	Appendix 4 - Draft Statement of Reasons

	13 Tender for the Provision of Housing Related Floating Support
	14 RE-PROVISION PROJECT - NEXT STEPS
	15 CABINET AGENDA PLANNING - FUTURE ITEMS
	17 MINUTES
	18 MINUTES OF ENFIELD RESIDENTS PRIORITY FUND CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 6 JUNE 2013
	19 MINUTES OF POLICY CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE - 17 JUNE 2013

